
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Audit and Pensions 
Committee 

 
Agenda 

 
Thursday 15 March 2012 

7.00 pm 
Courtyard Room - Hammersmith Town Hall 

King Street, London, W6 9JU 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
 
Administration: Opposition Co-optees 
Councillor Michael Adam 
(Chairman) 
Councillor Nicholas Botterill 
Councillor Marcus Ginn 
Councillor Robert Iggulden 
 

Councillor Michael Cartwright 
(Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor PJ Murphy 
 

Eugenie White 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Owen Rees 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 02087532088 
 E-mail: owen.rees@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

06 March 2012 
 

 
 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Audit and Pensions Committee 
Agenda 

 
15 March 2012 

 
 
Item  Pages 
1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  1 - 10 
 (a) To approve as an accurate record and the Chairman to sign the 

minutes of the meeting of the Pension and Audit Committee 
 
(b) To note the outstanding actions. 
 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 If a Councillor has any prejudicial or personal interest in a 

particular item, they should declare the existence and nature of 
the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that 
item or as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest 
may also make representations, give evidence or answer 
questions about the matter.  The Councillor must then withdraw 
immediately from the meeting before the matter is discussed and 
any vote taken, unless a dispensation has been obtained from 
the Standards Committee.   

 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 

 

4. GOLDMAN SACHS- PRESENTATION   
5. PENSION VALUE AND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE  11 - 28 
 This report prepared by P-Solve, provides details of the performance 

and the market value of the Council’s pension fund investments for the 
quarter ending 31st December 2011. 
 

 

6. ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS  29 - 35 
 This report prepared by Psolve gives various options for investing in 

alternative investments.  
 

 

7. COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION ON 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
PENSION SCHEME (LGPS) REGULATIONS CONTAINED IN THE 
DRAFT LGPS (MISCELLANEOUS) REGULATIONS 2012  

36 - 56 

 This report sets out proposed amendments to the LGPS regulations  



currently under consultation. These amendments are of a technical 
nature and required to bring LGPS regulations into line with primary 
legislation. As such, no response was submitted. 
 

8. LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM AUDIT 
OPINION PLAN 2011/12  

57 - 83 

 This plan sets out the external audit work that the Audit Commission 
proposes to undertake for the audit of the financial statements 2011-12. 
 

 

9. LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM PENSION 
FUND AUDIT OPINION PLAN 2011-12  

84 - 102 

 This plan sets out the external audit work that the Audit Commission 
proposes to undertake for the audit of the Pension Fund financial 
statements 2011-12 
 

 

10. CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS- ANNUAL REPORT 
2010-11  

103 - 114 

 The report details the results of work conducted by the Audit 
Commission to certify grant claims in respect of the 2010/11 financial 
year. 

 

11. AUDIT COMMISSION RECOMMENDATIONS UPDATES & ANNUAL 
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2011 ACTION PLAN  

115 - 119 

 This report gives an update on the implementation of Audit Commission 
recommendations and on the AGS 2011 action plan. 
 

 

12. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2012-13  120 - 132 
 This report sets out the Internal Audit Plan for 2012-13, for the 

Committee’s approval. 
 

 

13. RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT  133 - 138 
 This report informs the Committee on the overall arrangements for, and 

performance of, risk management across the Council.  
 

 

14. INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 1 
OCTOBER TO 31 DECEMBER 2011  

139 - 146 

 This report summarises internal audit activity in respect of audit 
reports issued during the period to 31 December 2011, as well as 
reporting on the performance of the Internal Audit service. 
 

 

15. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 The Committee is invited to resolve, under Section 100A (4) of the Local 

Government Act 1972, that the public and press be excluded from the 
meeting during the consideration of the following items of business, on 
the grounds that they contain the likely disclosure of exempt information, 
as defined in paragraphs 1 and 3 of Schedule 12A of the said Act, and 
that the public interest in maintaining the exemption currently outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

 



16. EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

147 - 148 

17. ANNUAL BUSINESS PLAN FOR THE PENSION FUND  149 - 153 
 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

. London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Audit and 
Pensions 
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Thursday 8 December 2011 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Michael Adam (Chairman), Nicholas Botterill, 
Marcus Ginn, Robert Iggulden, Michael Cartwright (Vice-Chairman) and PJ Murphy 
 
Apologies for Absence: Eugenie White (Coopted Member) 
 
Trade Union Representative: Sheela Selvajothy 
 
In Attendance: Jon Hayes and Julian McGowan, Audit Commission 
Steve Russell and Caroline Ader, Ruffer, Helen Smith, Nikhill Agarwal and John Conroy 
P-Solve 
 
Officers:  Jane West, Director of Finance and Governance, Hitesh Jolapara, Deputy 
Director of Finance, Geoff Drake, Chief Internal Auditor, Dave McNamara, Assistant 
Director of Finance, Environment and Children’s Services, Michael Sloniowski, Principal 
Consultant, Risk Management, Bob Pearce, Group Accountant - Technical and Owen 
Rees, Committee Coordinator 
 

 
35. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2011 be agreed as a true and 
correct record. 
 

36. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were apologies for absence from Eugenie White. 
 

37. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Cartwright and Councillor Murphy declared personal interests in items 
38, 39, 40, 41, 42 and 43 as members of the London Borough of Hammersmith 
and Fulham Pension Fund. 
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

38. PENSION FUND MANAGER PRESENTATION- RUFFER  
 
Steve Russell, Investment Director for Ruffer LLP, gave a presentation on Ruffer, 
their investment approach and their current thinking, with particular emphasis on 
alternative investments. He said that Ruffer were focused on absolute return 
investment only, and held a wide variety of assets, which were chosen with the 
aim, in the first instance, of protecting the capital under management. He said that 
making returns was extremely difficult, given the prevailing economic climate.  
 
He said that, while a significant proportion of the funds under management at 
Ruffer were invested in equities, the fund was also investing heavily in index-linked 
gilts. This followed its expectation that, in the light of domestic and global debt 
levels, inflation could remain high in the medium term, with negative real interest 
rates. This would be accompanied by a period of deleveraging by banks, which 
would affect the viability of certain types of investment.  He noted that the value of 
equities had risen highly in the period between 1980 and 2000, but had not always 
done so historically, particularly in periods of high inflation. 
 
With regards to alternative investments, he noted the high correlation between 
equity returns and returns in some investments perceived as alternative. He also 
noted the dependency of some alternative assets on bank finance, instancing 
infrastructure and private equity. He described other alternatives that Ruffer was 
investing in, including illiquid assets, which could be a good match for pension 
funds provided they were identified and priced correctly. He said that there were 
five issues to bear in mind when choosing alternative investments- correlation to 
other assets, fee levels, the impact of the withdrawal of bank finance on the asset 
class, the liquidity of the assets acquired, and the risk of inflation, and/or 
Government intervention; he gave the action taken by the Swiss Government to 
lower the value of the Swiss Franc as an example of this.  
 
The Chairman asked what Ruffer’s position on commodities was. Mr Russell said 
that, given the possibility of a demand shock as a result of the break-up of the 
Euro, Ruffer was cautious about their purchase at the present, but believed that 
they might be more attractive in the medium term, once that risk had either 
diminished or come to pass. 
 
Councillor Ginn asked what percentage of a portfolio should be held in alternative 
investments to protect against equities volatility. Mr Russell said that Ruffer had a 
10 % net exposure to alternatives, which could still make money. He would 
suggest around 20% should be invested in alternatives. He said that he believed 
that active management was of high importance, as it allowed investors to benefit 
from decisions made by managers regarding when to sell and when to buy. He 
added that returns in alternatives were not necessarily giving drastically better 
returns, when fee levels were taken into account, however.  
 
Councillor Iggulden asked what returns had been in the sector. Mr Russell said 
that this could be difficult to ascertain, though the illiquid assets purchased by 
Ruffer had been returning 5-7% in the 18 months since the strategy was adopted, 
with returns scheduled to improve over time. He said that forestry returns had also 
been good, but were, to a large degree, synthetic. 
 

Page 2



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Councillor Iggulden asked about the purchase of art, wine, stamps, and guns as an 
investment. Mr Russell said that they could provide good returns and provided an 
excellent inflation hedge but realising the asset could be difficult. Given their 
illiquidity, he felt that they were a better investment for individuals than for 
institutional funds or managers.  
 
The Chairman asked about property as an investment, given the presumption of 
more inflation. Mr Russell said that property was in general overvalued, with the 
risk of commercial rents falling in the light of economic conditions. Where there had 
been no boom in value, such as Germany and Japan, investment could be 
worthwhile, given the prevailing low rate of interest. 
 
Councillor Botterill asked what the effect of demographics would be. Mr Russell 
said that he had seen no direct evidence of impact, and the long-term nature of 
change meant that investment would need to be made on very broad principles. 
He said that he did not believe that land and property would offer strong returns in 
the next decade, though there would be an end to any inflationary period.  
 
Councillor Murphy asked whether the gap between the interest rate paid by banks 
and the rate at which they lent would not contain some of the inflationary effect of 
low rates. Mr Russell said that this was true, but that investors could not, given the 
need for banks to increase their assets rely on this, investors did not have access 
to the cheaper rates to borrow or the more expensive rates on their deposits.  
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
The presentation be noted. 
 
 

39. PENSION VALUE AND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE  
 
Helen Smith, P-Solve, presented the report, which set out the performance of the 
fund in the quarter to 30 September 2011. She said that the quarter had been 
turbulent and traumatic with the fund down by 5.6%. She said that, given the 
prevailing market conditions, it made sense to consider the fund’s performance in 
relative terms, both in terms of its peers and in terms of the performance of its 
managers relative to the markets. On these measures, the fund had weathered the 
quarter well. She added that the following quarter would see Legal & General 
move to the new mandate and matching benchmark.  
 
The Chairman said that he was concerned with the performance of Goldman 
Sachs. Ms Smith said that, following the change to the mandate suggested by 
Goldman Sachs, two good quarters had followed. The problems experienced in the 
quarter under discussion were typical of managers in their class and was 
considered acceptable but was under quarterly review.  
 
Councillor Iggulden noted that the figures bore out that good managers could 
outperform the equities market as a whole. Ms Smith said that this was true, but 
that it was important not to assume future over-performance, in what could be an 
emotive market. 
 

Page 3



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Regarding the current volatility, Bob Pearce, Group Accountant- Technical 
Services, said that the fund was now valued at the same level as before the 
quarter under discussion’s losses. 
 
Councillor Iggulden stressed the importance of considering both capital and 
income growth in assessing the value of equities as an asset class. Ms Smith said 
that total return was considered, and that there were legitimate investment cases 
to be made for equities, though it was important to take a holistic view of their 
place within the whole fund. 
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
The report be noted. 
 

40. PENSION FUND INVESTMENT STRATEGY  
 
Bob Pearce, Group Accountant- Technical Services, introduced the report, which 
sought to amend the fund’s liability benchmark in line with the last actuarial 
valuation (backdated to 1st April 2011 to match the alteration in the contribution 
rate). He said that a further report on possible alternative investments for the fund, 
including the possibility of amending the allocation between mandates, would be 
submitted to the Committee’s next meeting.  
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
With effect from 1st April 2011, the new Liability Benchmark Portfolio (LBP), with an 
out-performance target of 2.2%, be agreed. 
 

41. CONSULTATION ON PROPOSED INCREASES TO EMPLOYEE 
CONTRIBUTION RATES AND CHANGES TO SCHEME ACCRUAL RATES FOR 
THE LGPS  
 
Jane West, Director of Corporate Finance and Governance, introduced the report, 
which presented a draft consultation on proposed changes to employee 
contribution rates.  
 
Councillor Cartwright noted the emphasis placed on potential loss of members, 
which was an objection put forward by the trade unions. He asked whether officers 
expected members to exit the scheme.  
 
Ms West said that the combination of rises, inflation and a pay freeze meant that 
she believed the risk had been underplayed in the Government analysis. In 
response to a question from Councillor Murphy, she confirmed that 66% of staff 
employed by the Council were at the top of their pay grade, meaning that the pay-
freeze would affect them.  
 
Councillor Iggulden suggested that withdrawals from the fund would be, at worst, 
neutral in the effect. Ms West said that withdrawals might reduce the demands on 
the fund in the long-term, but would also reduce cash flow into the fund; this might 
require a change in structure of the fund, with associated risk. 
 

Page 4



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

In response to a question from Councillor Ginn regarding the importance of cash 
flow, Ms West said that income had always exceeded expenditure, with the deficit 
the product of current gilt yields. Bob Pearce, Group Accountant - Technical, said 
that a recent survey of Local Authority Pension Funds had shown that employer 
contributions for April to September 2011 had fallen 2.2 percent compared to the 
same period last year, with the employee contributions down 5.5 percent.  
Councillor Murphy asked whether this was attributable to a reduction in staff 
numbers, rather than staff withdrawing from the scheme. Ms West said that officers 
would provide the Committee with figures on opt-outs in the last 6 months. 
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
(i) The consultation response be agreed for submission, and; 
 
(ii) Officers provide the Committee with figures on the level of opt-outs by staff in 
the previous 6 months.  
 

42. TRI-BOROUGH TREASURY AND PENSION SERVICE  
 
Hitesh Jolapara, Deputy Director of Finance, gave the Committee a short verbal 
briefing on the move to a Tri-Borough Pensions and Treasury Service. Bob Pearce 
also updated the Committee on staff changes at P-Solve. 
 

43. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER  
 
Jon Hayes, District Auditor, introduced the auditor’s annual letter to the Council, 
and drew the Committee’s attention to the section on challenges and to the section 
outlining the schedule of fees. He said that the fees were set following a sector-
wide consultation. 
 
Councillor Cartwright asked about the fee set for the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable 
Trust audit, and asked whether this could be carried out as a Small Body audit. Mr 
Hayes said that as the organisation was a charity and the Council was a corporate 
trustee, the approach taken was common. In response to further questions from 
the Committee, he said that the Audit Commission’s position as auditor to the 
Council meant that they were better equipped to audit the Trust than another 
auditor would be, and that while the trust could be incorporated into the Council’s 
main accounts, neither the Council nor the auditor thought this sensible.  
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
The report be noted. 
 
 
 

44. WORMWOOD SCRUBS ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 2010-11  
 
Hitesh Jolapara, Deputy Director of Finance, introduced the report, which 
contained the audited accounts of the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust, and the 
annual governance report compiled by the auditor. 
 

Page 5



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Dave McNamara, Assistant Director of Finance, clarified that the Council had 
begun to make a contribution to the trust to ensure that it could meet the costs of 
the upkeep of Wormwood Scrubs. He said that the accounts had netted 
contributions to and from the Council against each other. 
 
The Chairman asked about the possibility of a development on the car park. Dave 
McNamara said that the area was metropolitan open land, but that the service 
could provide a briefing on the practicality of any change to the area. He said that 
the service would also be able to give an explanation of the circumstances under 
which the Trust made a contribution to the Linford Christie Stadium.  
 
In response to a question from Councillor Murphy, he said that the risk of the 
artillery wall further deteriorating was minimal.  
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
(i) The annual governance report be agreed, and;  
 
(ii) That the 2010/11 audited statement of accounts and Trustee’s report be 
approved, and  
 
(iii) That the 2011/12 contribution to the running costs of Linford Christie stadium, 
up to a maximum of £115,500 be approved. 
 
 

45. AUDIT COMMISSION RECOMMENDATIONS UPDATES & ANNUAL 
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2011 ACTION PLAN  
 
Geoff Drake, Chief Internal Auditor, introduced the report, which showed no 
outstanding Audit Commission recommendations, and one outstanding Annual 
Governance Statement action, which was not scheduled to complete for some 
time.   
 
RESOLVED THAT  
 
The report be noted. 
 

46. TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE FOR THE FIRST SIX MONTHS OF 2011-
12  
 
The Chairman asked what had enabled the reduction in general fund debt. Hitesh 
Jolapara, Deputy Director of Finance, said that it had been capital receipts: he 
agreed to supply the Committee with a breakdown of what the receipts related to.  
 
Councillor Ginn asked about the reforms affecting the Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA). Mr Jolapara said that the Council’s HRA debt was estimated to be £186 
million following the alteration of the subsidy arrangements. The Housing and 
Regeneration department were drawing up a 30-year business plan in response to 
the changes, while CIPFA guidance was that debt should be continue to be pooled 
separately. 
 

Page 6



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

RESOLVED THAT  
 
The report be noted 
 

47. COMBINED RISK MANAGEMENT HIGHLIGHT REPORT  
 
Michael Sloniowski, Principal Consultant- Risk Management, introduced the report, 
which set out risk management activity in the period since the last meeting. He 
said that there had been intensive work on the integration of risk management as 
part of the Tri-Borough programme. He said that work also included work on the 
Fraud Risk Register, the adoption of a new Local Governance Code, and 
assessing the implications of the employee code of conduct in light of the Bribery 
Act.  
 
Councillor Cartwright asked about the impact of the Bribery Act, in light of the 
recent publicity surrounding the Post Office. Mr Sloniowski said that the employee 
Code of Conduct was compliant with the Act. With regards to the position of 
contractors, John Hayes, District Auditor, said that the act required authorities to 
have assurances that contractors were compliant, and that issues could arise in 
areas such as trade waste collection. Dave McNamara, Assistant Director of 
Finance- Environment and Children’s Services, said that the Serco contract did 
include a clause forbidding contractors from accepting tips. 
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
The report be noted. 
 

48. ST MARY'S PRIMARY SCHOOL AUDIT  
 
Dave McNamara, Assistant Director of Finance- Environment and Children’s 
Services, introduced the report, which set out, further to the nil assurance audit 
issued on St Mary’s Primary School, the progress of the subsequent investigation, 
and the measures taken by the Council following the audit. He said that, of the 
schools audited that year, only St Mary’s had failed to meet the required financial 
standard, and would be audited again in 2012. He said that additional measures 
had been put in place, including a quarterly review of schools by officers to identify 
those that might require an audit and an additional audit when schools when 
through a management change; with the agreement of the Chair of Governors at 
Holy Cross Primary School, this had included an audit of voluntary funds. The 
Schools Management Service made its report directly to the Governors. 
 
Councillor Iggulden asked where responsibility lay for voluntary funds. Mr 
McNamara said that the responsibility for grant and diocesan funds was clear, but 
the responsibility for voluntary funds lay with the school. As such, the discovery of 
the issues at St Mary’s Primary School by the Council, given their isolation from 
grant funds, were coincidental, and the nature of the problem was unusual. Recent 
amendments to the law had made it easier for local authorities to report concerns 
regarding voluntary funds, and the Council urged schools not to keep a separate 
bank account for voluntary funds, however. 
 
RESOLVED THAT 

Page 7



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
(i) The report be noted, and; 
 
(ii) The follow up audit scheduled for 2012 be noted.  
 

49. PARKING PAY AND DISPLAY DEPARTMENTAL RESPONSE  
 
Dave McNamara, Assistant Director of Finance- Environment and Children’s 
Services, introduced the report, which set out a response to the recent audit of 
Parking Pay and Display. He said that the service did not have any concerns about 
the contractor, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, or their management of 
concerns about individual operators. He noted that there had been issues about 
evidencing the controls that RBKC had in place for the audit, but that these 
controls were in force. 
 
With regards to the issues identified with reconciliations, he said that the service 
felt that the audit overstated the issue. He said that the machines involved were 
often older ones, and had failed to sync immediately with the database, though this 
evened out over time and represented an improvement over a spot reconciliation 
process. He added that the problems with foreign coins were endemic to the 
method of collection. 
 
Councillor Murphy asked if, in the light of problems with reconciliation, the Council 
had sufficient assurance that the amount collected was correct. Mr McNamara said 
that the Council was able to see where there had been consistent undercollection 
and acted accordingly. However, given the level of variation in relation to the level 
of income, when measured against the cost of replacing the machines to remove 
the problem, it was considered it as an operational risk.  
 
RESOLVED THAT  
 
The report be noted 
 

50. CORPORATE ANTI FRAUD SERVICE REPORT 1 APRIL TO 30 SEPTEMBER 
2011  
 
Geoff Drake, Chief Internal Auditor, introduced the report, which set out the work 
undertaken by the Corporate Anti-Fraud Service (CAFS) in the first 6 months of the 
2011-12 financial year. He said that 76 sanctions had been issued against a target 
of 60, with £235,000 recovered in real financial terms, and £3.6 million when 
including property, using the Audit Commission’s valuation scale. These figures 
excluded £94,000 recovered and paid out to partners.  
 
He said that the focus of the service had been shifted at the start of the year, with a 
focus on recovery of tenancy properties. He said that joint working had taken place 
with the Housing and Regeneration department to tackle tenancy fraud, and with 
the Police to investigate criminal activity. The service also now has 3 financial 
investigators, who work to identify assets which could be targeted for confiscation.  
 

Page 8



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

He drew the Committee to the collection of press releases and press coverage at 
the back of the report, and said that the service would feature in an upcoming 
episode of Saints and Scroungers.  
 
The Chairman asked whether it was felt that sentences imposed by the courts 
were strong enough. Mr Drake said that officers felt not, but that the level of 
financial penalties imposed was more of an issue. Councillor Cartwright noted that 
sentences were given in line with guidelines issued by the Government. 
 
The Chairman asked about the efforts made on recovery. Mr Drake said that the 
Council’s Debt Management team were involved from an early stage in the 
interview process. He said that this was part of the unit’s orientation towards 
income generation.  
 
Councillor Iggulden asked whether the services provided to other Councils were on 
a commercial basis. Mr Drake said that the chief service provided was through the 
Council’s financial investigators, and that a service level agreement was being 
developed.  
 
Councillor Cartwright asked about the work undertaken on tenancy fraud, given the 
high value of the assets, and asked how CAFS interacted with the Housing 
service. Mr Drake said that CAFS received referrals from Housing, and had done 
educational work with the service. Work was now underway to use data mining to 
identify potential fraud cases; this involved checking other databases maintained 
by the Council and external databases, such as Experian. 
 
In response to a question from Sheela Selvajothy, Trade Union Representative, Mr 
Drake said that any employee, and their trade union if they were a member, would 
not be informed of an investigation until disciplinary charges were brought: this was 
both to protect the integrity of the investigation and to protect the reputation of the 
employee, lest the investigation exonerate them. 
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
The report be noted. 
 

51. INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL TO 30 
SEPTEMBER 2011  
 
Geoff Drake, Chief Internal Auditor, introduced the report, which set out internal 
audit activity undertaken in the quarter to 30 September 2011.He said that, at the 
time of the Committee, there were 5 outstanding reports, 20 outstanding 
recommendations, and 9 outstanding recommendations over 6 months past their 
due date. The audit plan was being delivered broadly to target.  
 
RESOLVED THAT  
 
The report be noted. 
 

52. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 

Page 9



______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

RESOLVED THAT 
 
Under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, that the public and 
press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the following items 
of business, on the grounds that they contain the likely disclosure of exempt 
information, as defined in paragraphs 1 and 3  of Schedule 12A of the said Act, 
and that the public interest in maintaining the exemption currently outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
 

53. EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETING ON 22 SEPTEMBER 2011  
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
The exempt minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2011 be agreed as a 
true and correct record. 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 10.00 pm 

 
 

Chairman   
 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Owen Rees 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 02087532088 
 E-mail: owen.rees@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

Page 10



 

 

AUDIT AND 
PENSIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 
15th March 2012 

 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 

 
DF 

PENSION FUND VALUE AND INVESTMENT 
PERFORMANCE  
 
This report prepared by P-Solve, provides 
details of the performance and the market value 
of the Council’s pension fund investments for the 
quarter ending 31st December 2011. 

 WARDS 
 All 

 
  RECOMMENDATION: 
 
1. To note the report. 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No. Description of 

Background Papers 
Name/Ext. of Holder of 

File/Copy 
Department/ 
Location 

1. P-Solve quarterly fund 
manager reports 

B Pearce, Extn 1808 16th Floor, Westminster 
City Hall, 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



��
��

��
��

�	

�

	

��
��

��
��
��
��

	

��
���


�
�
��
��

��

��
��
��




�
��
��

���
��
��

��

��
��
��
�
��
���

��
��
�

��
��
��

��
���
�
�
�

���

���
� 
!"
"

Page 12



	

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

S
u

m
m

a
ry M

aj
ed

ie
F

T
S

E
 A

ll 
S

ha
re

 +
 2

%
 p

.a
. 

ov
er

 t
hr

ee
 y

ea
r 

ro
lli

ng
 p

er
io

ds

M
F

S
M

F
S

 C
us

to
m

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

B
ar

in
gs

3 
m

on
th

 S
te

rli
ng

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 4

%
 p

.a
.

R
uf

fe
r

3 
m

on
th

 S
te

rli
ng

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 4

%
 p

.a
.

G
ol

dm
an

 S
ac

hs
3 

m
on

th
 S

te
rli

ng
 L

IB
O

R
 +

 2
%

 p
.a

.

Le
ga

l &
 G

en
er

al
2 

x 
F

T
S

E
 +

 1
5y

r 
In

de
x 

Li
nk

ed
 G

ilt
s 

- 
LI

B
O

R
 p

.a
.

Th
e

as
se

ts
of

th
e

S
ch

em
e

ar
e

co
ns

id
er

ed
in

te
rm

s
of

fo
ur

eq
ua

lly
w

ei
gh

te
d

se
ct

io
ns

:
U

K
E

qu
iti

es
,

O
ve

rs
ea

s
E

qu
iti

es
,

D
yn

am
ic

A
ss

et
A

llo
ca

tio
n

M
an

da
te

s
an

d
th

e
M

at
ch

in
g

F
un

d.
 

Th
e

U
K

E
qu

iti
es

ar
e

m
an

ag
ed

by
M

aj
ed

ie
an

d
th

e
O

ve
rs

ea
s

E
qu

iti
es

by
M

F
S

.
Th

er
e

ar
e

tw
o

D
yn

am
ic

A
ss

et
A

llo
ca

tio
n

m
an

ag
er

s,
B

ar
in

gs
an

d
R

uf
fe

r,
m

an
ag

in
g

th
re

e
qu

ar
te

rs
an

d
on

e
qu

ar
te

r
of

th
is

se
ct

io
n

re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

Th
e

M
at

ch
in

g
F

un
d

is
sp

lit
eq

ua
lly

be
tw

ee
n

a
gl

ob
al

bo
nd

m
an

da
te

m
an

ag
ed

by
G

ol
dm

an
S

ac
hs

an
d

a
Li

ab
ili

ty
D

riv
en

In
ve

st
m

en
t

(L
D

I)
fu

nd
m

an
ag

ed
by

Le
ga

l
&

G
en

er
al

.
W

ith
th

e
ex

ce
pt

io
n

of
th

e
LD

I
fu

nd
,

al
l

ot
he

rs
ar

e
ac

tiv
el

y
m

an
ag

ed
by

fu
nd

m
an

ag
er

s
w

ho
ai

m
to

m
ee

t
or

ex
ce

ed
th

ei
r

st
at

ed
be

nc
hm

ar
k.

 

L
ia

b
il

it
y 

B
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
 (

L
B

)

Th
is

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
B

en
ch

m
ar

k 
w

as
 la

st
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 in
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
11

.

To
m

at
ch

th
e

pr
ed

ic
te

d
gr

ow
th

in
th

e
lia

bi
lit

ie
s,

th
e

To
ta

l
F

un
d

re
tu

rn
ne

ed
s

to
m

ee
t

a
re

tu
rn

eq
ui

va
le

nt
to

th
e

Li
ab

ili
ty

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

pl
us

2.
2%

p.
a.

(n
et

of
fe

es
).

Th
e

To
ta

lF
un

d
st

ra
te

gy
ai

m
s

to
ex

ce
ed

th
is

an
d

ta
rg

et
s

a
re

tu
rn

2.
5%

p.
a.

(n
et

of
fe

es
)

in
ex

ce
ss

of
th

e
Li

ab
ili

ty
B

en
ch

m
ar

k.
W

ith
in

th
is

,
th

e
M

at
ch

in
g

F
un

d
is

ta
rg

et
in

g
a

re
tu

rn
of

1%
p.

a.
in

ex
ce

ss
 o

f t
he

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
B

en
ch

m
ar

k.

A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

,
th

e
P

an
el

ha
s

ag
re

ed
to

in
ve

st
up

to
£1

5
m

ill
io

n
in

fo
ur

pr
iv

at
e

eq
ui

ty
fu

nd
of

fu
nd

s.
Tw

o
m

an
ag

ed
by

In
ve

sc
o,

w
hi

ch
ha

s
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y

75
%

in
ve

st
ed

in
th

e
U

ni
te

d
S

ta
te

s 
an

d 
25

%
 in

 E
ur

op
e,

 a
nd

 t
he

 o
th

er
 t

w
o 

by
 U

ni
ge

st
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 is
 in

ve
st

ed
 a

lm
os

t 
en

tir
el

y 
in

 E
ur

op
e.

 

P
ri

va
te

 E
q

u
it

y

Th
e

lia
bi

lit
ie

s
m

ov
e

in
ac

co
rd

an
ce

w
ith

ch
an

ge
s

in
re

le
va

nt
gi

lt
yi

el
ds

.
F

or
th

is
re

as
on

,
th

e
be

nc
hm

ar
k

us
ed

to
m

ea
su

re
th

e
es

tim
at

ed
m

ov
em

en
t

in
lia

bi
lit

ie
s,

th
e

"L
ia

bi
lit

y
B

en
ch

m
ar

k"
 is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 t
he

 m
ov

em
en

t 
of

 a
 s

el
ec

tio
n 

of
 In

de
x-

Li
nk

ed
 g

ilt
s,

 in
 t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

pr
op

or
tio

ns
:

45
%

In
de

x-
lin

ke
d

Tr
ea

su
ry

G
ilt

1¼
%

20
17

,
20

%
In

de
x-

lin
ke

d
Tr

ea
su

ry
G

ilt
1¼

%
20

27
,

10
%

In
de

x-
lin

ke
d

Tr
ea

su
ry

G
ilt

1�
%

20
37

,
5%

In
de

x-
lin

ke
d

Tr
ea

su
ry

G
ilt

0¾
%

20
47

,
20

%
 In

de
x-

lin
ke

d 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 G

ilt
 1

¼
%

 2
05

5.

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
B

e
n

ch
m

a
rk

s 

E
ac

h 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

er
 h

as
 a

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

w
hi

ch
 t

he
y 

ar
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
ag

ai
ns

t 
on

 a
n 

on
go

in
g 

ba
si

s.
 T

he
se

 a
re

:

Page 13



�

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 O
ve

rv
ie

w

N
ot

es
: 

1)
 

A
ll 

nu
m

be
rs

 a
re

 s
ou

rc
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
us

to
di

an
, N

or
th

er
n 

T
ru

st
, a

nd
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 v
er

ifi
ed

. F
ig

ur
es

 m
ay

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y

ro
un

di
ng

.
2)

 
A

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 r
ep

or
tin

g,
 th

e 
Le

ga
l &

 G
en

er
al

 m
an

da
te

 c
on

si
st

ed
 o

f i
nd

ex
-li

nk
ed

 g
ilt

s,
 th

e 
fir

st
 s

te
p 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
 L

D
I m

an
da

te
. T

he
 lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

co
ns

is
ts

 o
f a

 b
le

nd
 o

f 
be

nc
hm

ar
ks

, r
ef

le
ct

iv
e 

of
 L

eg
al

 &
 G

en
er

al
’s

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ho

ld
in

gs
.

B
re

a
kd

o
w

n
 o

f 
S

ch
e

m
e

 P
e

fo
rm

a
n

ce
 b

y 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
s 

a
t 

31
st

 D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
20

11

F
u

n
d

M
a

n
a

g
e

r
 M

a
rk

e
t 

V
a

lu
e

 (
£0

00
) 

 %
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
F

u
n

d
 

 T
a

rg
e

t 
%

 o
f 

T
o

ta
l 

F
u

n
d

 
 3

 m
o

n
th

 
re

tu
rn

 (
%

) 
 1

 y
e

a
r 

re
tu

rn
 

(%
) 

 2
 y

e
a

r 
re

tu
rn

 
(%

) 
p

.a
. 

 3
 y

e
a

r 
re

tu
rn

 
(%

) 
p

.a
. 

T
o

ta
l 

F
u

n
d

61
1,

72
2

10
0.

0
10

0.
0

6.
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3.
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

7.
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

10
.9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

N
ew

 L
ia

b
ili

ty
 B

en
ch

m
ar

k
 +

 2
.2

%
 p

.a
.

9.
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

22
.4

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
17

.1
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

13
.5

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

(2
.2

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
9.

0)
  

  
  

  
  

  
(9

.7
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(2

.6
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
U

K
 E

q
u

it
ie

s
15

5,
77

7
25

.5
25

.0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
M

a
je

d
ie

6.
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1.
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

6.
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

15
.5

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
F

T
S

E
 A

ll 
S

ha
re

 +
 2

%
 p

.a
.

8.
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

.5
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
7.

2
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

15
.1

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
iff

er
en

ce
(2

.3
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3.

3
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(0

.4
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
O

ve
rs

e
a

s 
E

q
u

it
ie

s
14

9,
97

8
24

.5
25

.0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
M

F
S

8.
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(4
.2

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5.
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

10
.0

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
M

F
S

 C
us

to
m

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

7.
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(6

.3
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
5.

2
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

10
.3

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
iff

er
en

ce
0.

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2.

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
0.

7
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(0

.3
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

D
yn

a
m

ic
 A

ss
e

t 
A

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

 M
a

n
d

a
te

s
14

8,
76

0
24

.3
25

.0
2.

2
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1.

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6.

6
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1
0
.3

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

B
a

ri
n

g
s

11
0,

35
9

18
.0

18
.8

2.
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1.
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

5.
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

10
.5

  
  

  
  

  
  

3 
m

on
th

 S
te

rli
ng

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 4

%
 p

.a
.

1.
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4.

9
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4.
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5.

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
iff

er
en

ce
0.

9
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(3

.3
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1.

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
5.

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
R

u
ff

e
r

38
,4

01
6.

3
6.

2
2.

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1.

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
8.

9
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
10

.1
  

  
  

  
  

  
3 

m
on

th
 S

te
rli

ng
 L

IB
O

R
 +

 4
%

 p
.a

.
1.

2
4.

9
4.

8
5.

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
iff

er
en

ce
1.

2
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
(3

.8
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4.

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
5.

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

M
a

tc
h

in
g

 F
u

n
d

14
2,

95
9

23
.4

25
.0

10
.4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
14

.9
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

9.
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

7
.5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

 +
 1

%
 p

.a
.

8.
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

21
.2

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
16

.0
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

12
.5

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

1.
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

(6
.3

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(7
.0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(5
.0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

G
o

ld
m

a
n

 S
a

ch
s 

58
,1

83
9.

5
12

.5
(0

.1
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

.7
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.

6
(0

.1
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3 

m
on

th
 S

te
rli

ng
 L

IB
O

R
 +

 2
%

 p
.a

.
0.

8
2.

9
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2.
8

(0
.4

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
(0

.9
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(4

.6
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(2

.2
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0.

3
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
L

e
g

a
l 

&
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
(n

o
te

 2
)

84
,7

77
13

.9
12

.5
19

.0
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

29
.9

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
16

.1
  

  
  

  
  

  
14

.2
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2 
x 

F
T

S
E

 +
 1

5y
r 

IL
 G

ilt
s 

- 
LI

B
O

R
 p

.a
.

25
.2

  
  

  
  

  
  

54
.8

  
  

  
  

  
  

32
.5

  
  

  
  

  
  

22
.2

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
iff

er
en

ce
(6

.2
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(2

4.
9)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
6.

4)
  

  
  

  
  

  
(8

.0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

P
ri

va
te

 E
q

u
it

y
14

,2
47

2.
3

0.
0

11
.3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
28

.5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

23
.7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

In
ve

sc
o

8,
18

4
1.

3
0.

0
14

.6
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

31
.5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
27

.6
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
U

n
ic

a
p

it
a

l
6,

06
3

1.
0

0.
0

7.
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

24
.4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
18

.7
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

Page 14






A
ss

et
 R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

an
d 

V
al

ua
tio

n

N
ot

es
:  

A
ll 

nu
m

be
rs

 a
re

 s
ou

rc
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
us

to
di

an
, N

or
th

er
n 

T
ru

st
, a

nd
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 v
er

ifi
ed

. F
ig

ur
es

 m
ay

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

ro
un

di
ng

.

A
ss

e
t 

R
e

co
n

ci
li

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 V

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

F
u

n
d

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

 C
lo

si
n

g
 M

a
rk

e
t 

V
a

lu
e

 a
s 

a
t 

30
th

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
20

11
 

£0
00

 

 %
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
F

u
n

d
 

 N
e

t 
In

ve
st

m
e

n
t 

£0
00

 
 A

p
p

re
ci

a
ti

o
n

 
£0

00
 

In
co

m
e

 R
e

ce
iv

e
d

 
£0

00
F

e
e

s 
£0

00

 C
lo

si
n

g
 M

a
rk

e
t 

V
a

lu
e

 a
s 

a
t 

31
st

 
D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

20
11

 
£0

00
 

 %
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
F

u
n

d
 

 T
a

rg
e

t 
%

 o
f 

T
o

ta
l 

F
u

n
d

 

 T
o

ta
l 

F
u

n
d

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 5

73
,7

24
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

10
0.

0 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(9
30

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 3

7,
15

4 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1,
77

4 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 8

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 6

11
,7

22
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

00
.0

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
00

.0
 

 U
K

 E
q

u
it

ie
s 

 M
a

je
d

ie
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
46

,0
91

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

25
.5

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 8
,5

97
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1,

08
9 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

55
,7

77
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
5.

5 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 2

5.
0 

 O
ve

rs
e

a
s 

E
q

u
it

ie
s 

 M
F

S
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
38

,9
33

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

24
.2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 (

8)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

0,
59

6 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 4

57
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 8
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
49

,9
78

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 2

4.
5 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
5.

0 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
45

,6
37

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

25
.4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 (
27

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2,
96

2 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

88
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

48
,7

60
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
4.

3 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 2

5.
0 

B
ar

in
gs

10
8,

14
9

18
.9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
7)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2,

18
3 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 5

5 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

 
11

0,
35

9
18

.0
18

.7
5

R
uf

fe
r

37
,4

88
6.

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 7

80
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
33

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

 
38

,4
01

6.
3

6.
25

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
29

,4
63

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

22
.6

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

3,
49

5 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
42

,9
59

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 2

3.
4 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
5.

0 

G
ol

dm
an

 S
ac

hs
58

,2
47

10
.2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(6

5)
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

  
 

58
,1

83
9.

5
12

.5

Le
ga

l &
 G

en
er

al
71

,2
16

12
.4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
3,

56
0 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

  
 

84
,7

77
13

.9
12

.5

 P
ri

va
te

 E
q

u
it

y 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 1
3,

59
9 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2.
4 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(8

95
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1,

50
4 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 3

8 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

4,
24

7 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 2
.3

 
0.

0

In
ve

sc
o

7,
24

2
1.

3
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
14

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1,
05

6 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(0

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

 
8,

18
4

1.
3

0.
0

U
ni

ca
pt

ia
l

6,
35

7
1.

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(7
81

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 4

49
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 3

8 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
  

 
6,

06
3

1.
0

0.
0

 M
a

tc
h

in
g

 F
u

n
d

 

 D
yn

a
m

ic
 A

ss
e

t 
A

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

 M
a

n
d

a
te

s 

Page 15



�

F
un

d 
B

re
ak

do
w

n

N
ot

es
:  

B
re

ak
do

w
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 e
st

im
at

ed
 b

y 
C

A
M

R
A

D
A

T
A

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

m
an

ag
er

 d
at

a.
 

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 B
re

ak
d

o
w

n
 a

s 
at

 3
1 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
1

U
K

 E
qu

ity
, 2

8.
9%

E
ur

o
pe

an
 e

x-
U

K
 E

qu
ity

, 7
.8

%

N
or

th
 A

m
e

ric
a

n 
E

qu
ity

, 1
3.

4%

As
ia

 P
ac

ifi
c 

E
qu

ity
, 2

.1
%

G
lo

ba
l E

qu
ity

, 2
.2

%
E

m
er

gi
n

g 
M

ar
ke

ts
 E

qu
ity

, 2
.4

%

P
riv

at
e 

E
qu

ity
, 2

.2
%

U
K

 In
de

x 
Li

nk
e

d 
G

ilt
s,

 1
5.

1%

G
lo

ba
l I

nd
ex

 L
in

ke
d,

 1
.2

%

G
lo

ba
l S

ov
er

ei
gn

 F
ix

ed
 In

te
re

st
, 6

.9
%

U
K

 C
o

rp
or

at
e 

B
on

ds
, 1

.1
%

G
lo

ba
l C

or
po

ra
te

 B
on

ds
, 0

.7
%

E
M

D
, 0

.4
%

H
ig

h 
Yi

el
d,

 0
.3

%
M

B
S

/A
B

S
, 4

.5
%

P
ro

pe
rty

, 0
.7

%
G

ol
d,

 0
.3

%
C

as
h 

, 5
.3

%

O
th

er
, 2

.8
%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

Percentage of Fund

Page 16



�

O
ve

ra
ll 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

T
he

 F
un

d 
un

de
rp

er
fo

rm
ed

 it
s 

lia
bi

lit
y 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
by

 2
.1

9%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r,

 r
et

ur
ni

ng
 

6.
79

%
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 8

.9
8%

. W
hi

ls
t t

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 w

as
 s

tr
on

g,
 

m
ak

in
g 

up
 th

e 
lo

ss
es

 in
cu

rr
ed

 la
st

 q
ua

rt
er

, c
on

tin
ue

d 
m

ar
ke

t v
ol

at
ili

ty
 a

nd
 a

 fl
ig

ht
 to

 

sa
fe

ty
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
 g

ilt
 y

ie
ld

s 
fa

lli
ng

 fu
rt

he
r 

ca
us

ed
 th

e 
un

de
rp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. T

he
 F

un
d’

s 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f 3

.4
2%

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 w

as
 b

eh
in

d 
its

 ta
rg

et
 b

y 
19

.0
1%

, a
s 

it 
su

ffe
re

d 

fr
om

 th
e 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
th

ird
 q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 2
01

1.
 T

he
 F

un
d 

ha
s 

al
so

 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

ed
 o

ve
r 

lo
ng

er
 p

er
io

ds
. 

N
ot

es
:  

A
ll 

nu
m

be
rs

 a
re

 s
ou

rc
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
us

to
di

an
, N

or
th

er
n 

T
ru

st
, a

nd
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 v
er

ifi
ed

. A
ll 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 fi
gu

re
s 

ov
er

 1
 y

ea
r 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
an

nu
al

is
ed

. 

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 Q

u
ar

te
rl

y 
R

e
tu

rn
s

-1
0-505101520

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 R

e
la

ti
ve

 R
e

tu
rn

s

-2
0

-1
5

-1
0-5051015

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

3M
 R

el
3Y

 R
el

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

3
M

 R
e

l
-3

.2
9

1.9
0

11
.7

6
1.0

0
1.4

9
-8

.18
2.

09
4.

56
-0

.0
3

-1
.7

3
-1

3.
84

-2
.0

1

3
Y

 R
e

l
2.

79
3.

37
7.

14
7.

52
8.

10
4.

86
5.

57
6.

83
6.

55
5.

98
-0

.2
2

-2
.2

2

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

F
u

n
d

-6
.6

8
6.

46
15

.2
1

3.
59

4.
75

-6
.3

4
6.

87
6.

20
0.

14
2.

27
-5

.6
2

6.
79

T
a

rg
e

t
-3

.5
0

4.
47

3.
09

2.
57

3.
21

2.
00

4.
68

1.5
7

0.
17

4.
07

9.
54

8.
98

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce

0510152025

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Tw
o 

Ye
ar

s
Th

re
e 

Ye
ar

s
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

T
h

re
e

 M
o

n
th

s
O

n
e

 Y
e

a
r

T
w

o
 Y

e
a

rs
T

h
re

e
 Y

e
a

rs
In

c
e

p
ti

o
n

 T
o

 D
a

te

F
u

n
d

6.
79

3.
42

7.
37

10
.9

4
3.

69

T
a

rg
e

t
8.

98
22

.4
3

17
.0

6
13

.4
6

3.
11

Page 17



�

M
aj

ed
ie

N
ot

es
: A

ll 
nu

m
be

rs
 a

re
 s

ou
rc

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

us
to

di
an

, N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

, a
nd

 h
av

e 
no

t b
ee

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 v

er
ifi

ed
. A

ll 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 fi

gu
re

s 
ov

er
 1

 y
ea

r 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

an
nu

al
is

ed
. 

Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

M
an

ag
er

 u
p

d
at

e

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

P
ro

ce
ss

T
he

 fu
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
as

 6
.6

3%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r,

 2
.2

9%
 b

eh
in

d 
its

 ta
rg

et
. O

ve
r 

12
 m

on
th

s,
 th

e 
po

rt
fo

lio
 w

as
 3

.3
1%

 a
he

ad
 o

f i
ts

 ta
rg

et
. T

he
 p

or
tfo

lio
’s

 s
ho

rt
 

po
si

tio
ns

 in
 R

ol
ls

 R
oy

ce
, w

ho
 s

tr
uc

k 
a 

lu
cr

at
iv

e 
de

al
 w

ith
 U

S
 fi

rm
 P

ra
tt 

&
 W

itn
ey

, 
an

d 
A

G
K

, w
hi

ch
 r

eb
ou

nd
ed

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r,
 h

ar
m

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 p
or

tfo
lio

s 
po

si
tio

ns
 in

 P
fiz

er
 a

nd
 B

P
 a

id
ed

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
.

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

T
he

 M
aj

ed
ie

T
or

to
is

e 
F

un
d 

ha
s 

re
ac

he
d 

its
 p

la
nn

ed
 c

ap
ac

ity
 li

m
it 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
th

ey
 a

re
 c

lo
si

ng
 it

. M
aj

ed
ie

ha
ve

 b
ui

lt 
in

 a
 s

m
al

l a
m

ou
nt

 o
f e

xt
ra

 c
ap

ac
ity

 fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 c

as
h 

flo
w

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f o
ur

 e
xi

st
in

g 
cl

ie
nt

s.
 M

aj
ed

ie
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

fo
llo

w
 it

s 
no

rm
al

 p
ol

ic
y 

of
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

an
y 

ou
tfl

ow
s 

to
 n

ew
 in

ve
st

or
s,

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
.

P
ro

du
ct

 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n

M
aj

ed
ie

 a
re

 a
 s

m
al

l b
ou

tiq
ue

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t a

ct
iv

e 
U

K
 E

qu
ity

 m
an

ag
er

w
ith

 a
 fl

ex
ib

le
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
pp

ro
ac

h.
 T

he
ir 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
s 

m
ai

nl
y 

as
 s

to
ck

 p
ic

ke
rs

.  
T

he
y 

w
er

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

in
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

5 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
 O

JE
U

 te
nd

er
 p

ro
ce

ss
. T

he
y 

st
ar

te
d 

m
an

ag
in

g 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
fu

nd
 in

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
5.

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 Q

u
ar

te
rl

y 
R

e
tu

rn
s

-1
5

-1
0-50510152025

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

F
u

n
d

-5
.4

7
12

.9
7

20
.7

2
4.

80
4.

73
-1

0.
47

11
.3

6
7.

29
1.5

6
2.

34
-8

.15
6.

63

T
a

rg
e

t
-8

.6
3

11
.4

3
22

.9
4

5.
99

6.
93

-1
1.3

5
14

.17
7.

90
1.5

3
2.

41
-1

3.
05

8.
92

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 R

e
la

ti
ve

 R
e

tu
rn

s

-4-202468

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

3M
 R

el
3Y

 R
el

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

3
M

 R
e

l
3.

46
1.3

8
-1

.8
1

-1
.12

-2
.0

6
0.

99
-2

.4
6

-0
.5

7
0.

03
-0

.0
7

5.
64

-2
.10

3
Y

 R
e

l
4.

88
5.

82
5.

27
4.

96
4.

35
4.

11
2.

93
2.

11
2.

48
2.

13
3.

00
0.

32

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce

-505101520

T
hr

ee
 M

o
nt

hs
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

T
w

o
 Y

ea
rs

T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
rs

In
ce

p
ti

o
n 

T
o

 D
at

e

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

T
h

re
e

 M
o

n
th

s
O

n
e

 Y
e

a
r

T
w

o
 Y

e
a

rs
T

h
re

e
 Y

e
a

rs
In

c
e

p
ti

o
n

 T
o

 D
a

te

F
u

n
d

6.
63

1.7
9

6.
78

15
.4

9
8.

88

T
a

rg
e

t
8.

92
-1

.5
2

7.
24

15
.12

6.
77

Page 18



�

M
F

S

N
ot

es
: A

ll 
nu

m
be

rs
 a

re
 s

ou
rc

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

us
to

di
an

, N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

, a
nd

 h
av

e 
no

t b
ee

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 v

er
ifi

ed
. A

ll 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 fi

gu
re

s 
ov

er
 1

 y
ea

r 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

an
nu

al
is

ed
. 

Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

M
an

ag
er

 u
p

d
at

e

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

P
ro

ce
ss

T
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
w

as
 7

.9
6%

, 0
.4

7%
 a

he
ad

 o
f t

he
 

ta
rg

et
. O

ve
r 

12
 m

on
th

s,
 th

e 
fu

nd
 w

as
 2

.1
4%

 a
he

ad
 o

f i
ts

 ta
rg

et
. S

to
ck

 
se

le
ct

io
n 

in
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

, b
as

ic
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
ai

de
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
s 

di
d 

in
di

vi
du

al
 s

to
ck

 h
ol

di
ng

s 
in

 N
at

io
na

l O
ilw

el
lV

ar
co

, 
P

er
no

d-
R

ic
ar

d,
 D

un
 &

 B
ra

ds
tr

ee
t, 

W
W

 G
ra

in
ge

r 
an

d 
no

t o
w

ni
ng

 
A

m
az

on
.c

om
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, s
to

ck
 s

el
ec

tio
n 

in
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
in

du
st

ria
l g

oo
ds

 &
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
an

 u
nd

er
w

ei
gh

t p
os

iti
on

 a
nd

 s
to

ck
 s

el
ec

tio
n 

in
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

w
as

 d
et

rim
en

ta
l t

o 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
. I

nd
iv

id
ua

l h
ol

di
ng

s 
of

 O
ra

cl
e,

 P
hi

lip
 

M
or

ris
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l, 

C
re

di
t S

ui
ss

e,
 In

di
te

x,
 S

hi
n-

E
ts

u 
C

he
m

ic
al

, 
D

an
on

e
an

d 
Lo

ja
s

R
en

ne
r 

al
so

 d
et

ra
ct

ed
 fr

om
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r.

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

P
ro

du
ct

 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n

M
F

S
 a

re
 o

w
ne

d 
by

 S
un

 L
ife

 F
in

an
ci

al
 b

as
ed

 in
 B

os
to

n.
 T

he
ir 

in
ve

st
m

en
t p

hi
lo

so
ph

y 
is

 to
 s

el
ec

t t
he

 b
es

t i
nv

es
tm

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

ac
ro

ss
 r

eg
io

ns
 a

nd
 s

ec
to

rs
. T

he
y 

w
er

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

in
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

5 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
 O

JE
U

 te
nd

er
 p

ro
ce

ss
. T

he
y 

st
ar

te
d 

m
an

ag
in

g 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
fu

nd
 in

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
5.

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 Q

u
ar

te
rl

y 
R

e
tu

rn
s

-2
0

-1
00102030

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

F
u

n
d

-1
1.2

1
3.

23
23

.4
3

4.
74

9.
83

-1
0.

85
7.

54
11

.19
0.

04
2.

73
-1

3.
61

7.
96

T
a

rg
e

t
-1

0.
25

6.
44

22
.3

0
3.

73
10

.8
0

-1
0.

65
8.

77
9.

57
1.1

6
0.

86
-1

4.
56

7.
49

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s 

Ro
lli

ng
 R

el
at

iv
e 

Re
tu

rn
s

-4-2024

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

3M
 R

el
3Y

 R
el

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

3
M

 R
e

l
-1

.0
7

-3
.0

2
0.

92
0.

98
-0

.8
7

-0
.2

2
-1

.13
1.4

8
-1

.11
1.8

5
1.1

1
0.

44

3
Y

 R
e

l
3.

02
1.3

2
1.2

1
2.

11
2.

39
2.

71
2.

76
2.

59
0.

90
2.

38
1.4

4
-0

.2
5

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce

-1
0-5051015

T
hr

ee
 M

o
nt

hs
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

T
w

o
 Y

ea
rs

T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
rs

In
ce

p
ti

o
n 

T
o

 D
at

e

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

T
h

re
e

 M
o

n
th

s
O

n
e

 Y
e

a
r

T
w

o
 Y

e
a

rs
T

h
re

e
 Y

e
a

rs
In

c
e

p
ti

o
n

 T
o

 D
a

te

F
u

n
d

7.
96

-4
.15

5.
94

9.
97

8.
41

T
a

rg
e

t
7.

49
-6

.2
9

5.
15

10
.2

5
7.

05

Page 19



�

D
yn

am
ic

 A
ss

et
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

G
ro

up

T
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 g

ro
up

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
w

as
 2

.1
6%

, t
he

 L
IB

O
R

-b
as

ed
 ta

rg
et

 

re
tu

rn
ed

 1
.2

4%
. B

ot
h 

B
ar

in
gs

 a
nd

 R
uf

fe
r

en
jo

ye
d 

si
m

ila
r 

ga
in

s 
by

 ta
ct

ic
al

 p
os

iti
on

s 
in

 le
ss

 

vo
la

til
e 

as
se

ts
 c

la
ss

es
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 fr
om

 m
ar

ke
t u

nc
er

ta
in

ty
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r.

 O
ve

r 
th

e 
pa

st
 

12
 m

on
th

s,
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

3.
46

%
 b

el
ow

 ta
rg

et
, a

s 
bo

th
 m

an
ag

er
s 

ha
ve

 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

ed
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

.  

N
ot

es
:  

A
ll 

nu
m

be
rs

 a
re

 s
ou

rc
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
us

to
di

an
, N

or
th

er
n 

T
ru

st
, a

nd
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 v
er

ifi
ed

. A
ll 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 fi
gu

re
s 

ov
er

 1
 y

ea
r 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
an

nu
al

is
ed

. 

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 Q

u
ar

te
rl

y 
R

e
tu

rn
s

-5051015

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

F
u

n
d

-3
.3

8
6.

10
11

.8
2

2.
99

4.
73

-2
.2

2
5.

32
3.

94
0.

01
1.1

8
-1

.8
6

2.
16

T
a

rg
e

t
1.5

0
1.3

3
1.1

9
1.1

4
1.1

4
1.1

6
1.1

7
1.1

7
1.1

8
1.1

9
1.2

1
1.2

4

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 R

e
la

ti
ve

 R
e

tu
rn

s

-1
0-5051015

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

3M
 R

el
3Y

 R
el

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

3
M

 R
e

l
-4

.8
1

4.
71

10
.5

1
1.8

3
3.

54
-3

.3
4

4.
10

2.
74

-1
.16

-0
.0

1
-3

.0
3

0.
91

3
Y

 R
e

l
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

5.
10

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce

024681012

T
hr

ee
 M

o
nt

hs
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

T
w

o
 Y

ea
rs

T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
rs

In
ce

p
ti

o
n 

T
o

 D
at

e

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

T
h

re
e

 M
o

n
th

s
O

n
e

 Y
e

a
r

T
w

o
 Y

e
a

rs
T

h
re

e
 Y

e
a

rs
In

c
e

p
ti

o
n

 T
o

 D
a

te

F
u

n
d

2.
16

1.4
5

6.
64

10
.3

2
10

.3
2

T
a

rg
e

t
1.2

4
4.

91
4.

82
4.

97
4.

97

Page 20



�


B
ar

in
gs

N
ot

es
: A

ll 
nu

m
be

rs
 a

re
 s

ou
rc

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

us
to

di
an

, N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

, a
nd

 h
av

e 
no

t b
ee

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 v

er
ifi

ed
. A

ll 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 fi

gu
re

s 
ov

er
 1

 y
ea

r 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

an
nu

al
is

ed
. 

Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

M
an

ag
er

 u
p

d
at

e

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

P
ro

ce
ss

T
he

 fu
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
as

 2
.0

7%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r,

 0
.8

3%
 a

he
ad

 o
f i

ts
 ta

rg
et

. O
ve

r 
12

 m
on

th
s,

 th
e 

fu
nd

 is
 3

.3
4%

 b
el

ow
 ta

rg
et

.  
T

he
 fu

nd
 w

as
 a

bl
e 

to
m

ak
e 

ga
in

s 
by

 
ta

ki
ng

 a
 r

el
at

iv
el

y 
de

fe
ns

iv
e 

po
si

tio
n,

 A
us

tr
al

ia
n,

 lo
ng

 C
an

ad
ia

n 
an

d 
U

K
 b

on
ds

 
w

er
e 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. T
he

 h
ol

di
ng

 in
 m

ul
tin

at
io

na
l e

qu
ity

 
fu

nd
s 

an
d 

a 
gl

ob
al

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

 fu
nd

 a
ls

o 
bo

os
te

d 
re

tu
rn

s.
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 s

ho
rt

 p
os

iti
on

 in
 F

T
S

E
 fu

tu
re

s 
an

d 
ex

po
su

re
 to

 g
ol

d
w

as
 d

et
rim

en
ta

l 
to

 o
ve

ra
ll 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

.

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

P
ro

du
ct

 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n

B
ar

in
gs

 a
re

 a
 la

rg
e 

U
K

 b
as

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t m
an

ag
er

 in
ve

st
in

g 
in

 g
lo

ba
l a

ss
et

 c
la

ss
es

. T
he

y 
w

er
e 

ap
po

in
te

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
D

yn
am

ic
 A

ss
et

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
m

an
da

te
 in

 J
un

e 
20

08
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
 O

JE
U

 
te

nd
er

 p
ro

ce
ss

. T
he

y 
st

ar
te

d 
m

an
ag

in
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 fo
r t

he
 fu

nd
 in

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
8.

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 Q

u
ar

te
rl

y 
R

e
tu

rn
s

-5051015

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

F
u

n
d

-2
.4

2
6.

42
12

.5
0

2.
94

3.
77

-3
.12

5.
73

3.
88

0.
22

1.1
9

-1
.8

9
2.

07

T
a

rg
e

t
1.5

0
1.3

3
1.1

9
1.1

4
1.1

4
1.1

6
1.1

7
1.1

7
1.1

8
1.1

9
1.2

1
1.2

4

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

a
rs

 R
o

ll
in

g
 R

e
la

ti
v

e
 R

e
tu

rn
s

-1
0-505

1
0

1
5

Q
1 
0
9

Q
2
 0

9
Q

3
 0

9
Q

4
 0

9
Q

1 
10

Q
2
 1
0

Q
3
 1
0

Q
4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2
 1
1

Q
3
 1

1
Q

4
 1

1

% Return

3
M

 R
e
l

3
Y

 R
e
l

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

3
M

 R
e

l
-3

.8
6

5.
02

11
.18

1.7
8

2.
59

-4
.2

3
4.

51
2.

68
-0

.9
5

0.
00

-3
.0

6
0.

82

3
Y

 R
e

l
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
4.

51
5.

26

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce

024681012

T
hr

ee
 M

o
nt

hs
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

T
w

o
 Y

ea
rs

T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
rs

In
ce

p
ti

o
n 

T
o

 D
at

e

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

T
h

re
e

 M
o

n
th

s
O

n
e

 Y
e

a
r

T
w

o
 Y

e
a

rs
T

h
re

e
 Y

e
a

rs
In

c
e

p
ti

o
n

 T
o

 D
a

te

F
u

n
d

2.
07

1.5
7

5.
90

10
.4

9
8.

74

T
a

rg
e

t
1.2

4
4.

91
4.

82
4.

97
5.

44

Page 21



��

R
uf

fe
r

N
ot

es
: A

ll 
nu

m
be

rs
 a

re
 s

ou
rc

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

us
to

di
an

, N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

, a
nd

 h
av

e 
no

t b
ee

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 v

er
ifi

ed
. A

ll 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 fi

gu
re

s 
ov

er
 1

 y
ea

r 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

an
nu

al
is

ed
.

Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

M
an

ag
er

 u
p

d
at

e

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

P
ro

ce
ss

T
he

 fu
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
as

 2
.4

4%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r,

 1
.2

0%
 a

he
ad

 o
f i

ts
 

ta
rg

et
. O

ve
r 

12
 m

on
th

s,
 th

e 
fu

nd
 w

as
 3

.8
0%

 b
el

ow
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

. T
he

po
rt

fo
lio

 a
ls

o 
to

ok
 a

 r
el

at
iv

el
y 

de
fe

ns
iv

e 
po

si
tio

n 
w

ith
 in

de
x-

lin
ke

d 
bo

nd
s,

 la
rg

e 
m

ul
tin

at
io

na
l e

qu
ity

 h
ol

di
ng

s 
an

d 
U

S
 D

ol
la

r 
ex

po
su

re
 

be
in

g 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

dr
iv

er
s 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. H

ow
ev

er
, A

us
tr

al
ia

n 
an

d 
C

an
ad

ia
n 

D
ol

la
r 

pu
t w

ar
ra

nt
s 

lo
st

 g
ro

un
d 

as
 o

n 
ris

k 
as

se
ts

 r
ec

ov
er

ed
. 

T
he

 p
or

tfo
lio

’s
 e

xp
os

ur
e 

to
 g

ol
d 

w
as

 a
ls

o 
de

tr
im

en
ta

l t
o 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

.

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

P
ro

du
ct

 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n

R
uf

fe
r 

ar
e 

a 
sm

al
l b

ou
tiq

ue
 in

ve
st

m
en

t m
an

ag
er

 in
ve

st
in

g 
in

 g
lo

ba
l a

ss
et

 c
la

ss
es

. T
he

y 
w

er
e 

ap
po

in
te

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
D

yn
am

ic
 A

ss
et

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
m

an
da

te
 in

 J
un

e 
20

08
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
 O

JE
U

 
te

nd
er

 p
ro

ce
ss

. T
he

y 
st

ar
te

d 
m

an
ag

in
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 fo
r t

he
 fu

nd
 in

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
8.

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 Q

u
ar

te
rl

y 
R

e
tu

rn
s

-1
0-5051015

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

F
u

n
d

-5
.4

9
5.

17
9.

81
3.

12
7.

64
0.

41
4.

13
4.

11
-0

.6
1

1.1
3

-1
.8

0
2.

44

T
a

rg
e

t
1.5

0
1.3

3
1.1

9
1.1

4
1.1

4
1.1

6
1.1

7
1.1

7
1.1

8
1.1

9
1.2

1
1.2

4

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

a
rs

 R
o

ll
in

g
 R

e
la

ti
v

e
 R

e
tu

rn
s

-1
0-5051015

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

3M
 R

el
3Y

 R
el

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

3
M

 R
e

l
-6

.9
0

3.
79

8.
52

1.9
6

6.
42

-0
.7

4
2.

93
2.

91
-1

.7
7

-0
.0

6
-2

.9
7

1.1
9

3
Y

 R
e

l
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
9.

79
4.

86

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce

0246810121416

T
hr

ee
 M

o
nt

hs
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

T
w

o
 Y

ea
rs

T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
rs

In
ce

p
ti

o
n 

T
o

 D
at

e

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

T
h

re
e

 M
o

n
th

s
O

n
e

 Y
e

a
r

T
w

o
 Y

e
a

rs
T

h
re

e
 Y

e
a

rs
In

c
e

p
ti

o
n

 T
o

 D
a

te

F
u

n
d

2.
44

1.1
1

8.
85

10
.0

7
14

.8
2

T
a

rg
e

t
1.2

4
4.

91
4.

82
4.

97
5.

44

Page 22



�	

M
at

ch
in

g 
F

un
d

T
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 M

at
ch

in
g 

F
un

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
qu

ar
te

r o
f 1

0.
42

%
 is

 1
.7

5%
 b

el
ow

 it
s 

gi
lts

-b
as

ed
 li

ab
ili

ty
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k.
 T

hi
s 

ca
n 

be
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ed

 to
 h

ol
di

ng
 lo

ng
 d

at
ed

 in
de

x-
lin

ke
d 

gi
lts

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 m
as

k 
th

e 
lim

ite
d 

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
LG

IM
 m

an
da

te
 to

 

tr
ac

k 
th

e 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 R

el
at

ed
 B

en
ch

m
ar

k.
 T

hi
s 

is
 b

ei
ng

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 w

ith
 a

 n
ew

 m
an

da
te

. T
he

 

M
at

ch
in

g 
F

un
d 

re
tu

rn
 o

f 1
4.

92
%

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 w

as
 6

.2
4%

 b
el

ow
 ta

rg
et

.

N
ot

es
:  

A
ll 

nu
m

be
rs

 a
re

 s
ou

rc
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
us

to
di

an
, N

or
th

er
n 

T
ru

st
, a

nd
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 v
er

ifi
ed

. A
ll 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 fi
gu

re
s 

ov
er

 1
 y

ea
r 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
an

nu
al

is
ed

. 

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 Q

u
ar

te
rl

y 
R

e
tu

rn
s

-1
0-5051015

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

F
u

n
d

-6
.4

5
4.

04
5.

66
1.6

7
-0

.8
8

-0
.4

8
2.

98
1.7

5
-1

.3
2

2.
90

2.
50

10
.4

2

T
a

rg
e

t
-3

.6
8

4.
28

2.
90

2.
38

3.
02

1.8
1

4.
49

1.3
8

-0
.0

1
3.

88
9.

35
8.

67

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 R

e
la

ti
ve

 R
e

tu
rn

s

-8-6-4-2024

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

3M
 R

el
3Y

 R
el

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

3
M

 R
e

l
-2

.8
7

-0
.2

3
2.

68
-0

.6
9

-3
.7

9
-2

.2
5

-1
.4

5
0.

36
-1

.3
1

-0
.9

4
-6

.2
6

1.6
1

3
Y

 R
e

l
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-4
.4

7

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce

0510152025

T
hr

ee
 M

o
nt

hs
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

T
w

o
 Y

ea
rs

T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
rs

In
ce

p
ti

o
n 

T
o

 D
at

e

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

T
h

re
e

 M
o

n
th

s
O

n
e

 Y
e

a
r

T
w

o
 Y

e
a

rs
T

h
re

e
 Y

e
a

rs
In

c
e

p
ti

o
n

 T
o

 D
a

te

F
u

n
d

10
.4

2
14

.9
2

8.
99

7.
49

7.
49

T
a

rg
e

t
8.

67
21

.16
16

.0
2

12
.5

2
12

.5
2

Page 23



��

G
ol

dm
an

 S
ac

hs

N
ot

es
: A

ll 
nu

m
be

rs
 a

re
 s

ou
rc

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

us
to

di
an

, N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

, a
nd

 h
av

e 
no

t b
ee

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 v

er
ifi

ed
. A

ll 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 fi

gu
re

s 
ov

er
 1

 y
ea

r 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

an
nu

al
is

ed
. 

Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

M
an

ag
er

 u
p

d
at

e

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

P
ro

ce
ss

T
he

 fu
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
as

 -
0.

11
%

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r,
 0

.8
6%

 b
eh

in
d 

its
 

ta
rg

et
. O

ve
r 

12
 m

on
th

s,
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

as
 4

.5
4%

 b
el

ow
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

. T
he

 
fu

nd
’s

 c
ou

nt
ry

 a
nd

 c
ur

re
nc

y 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 w
er

e 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 E

M
D

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
de

liv
er

ed
 p

os
iti

ve
 e

xc
es

s 
re

tu
rn

s.

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

P
ro

du
ct

 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n

G
ol

dm
an

 S
ac

hs
 a

re
 a

 v
er

y 
la

rg
e 

A
m

er
ic

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

t b
an

k 
w

ho
 w

er
e

fir
st

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 in

 1
99

9 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

a 
te

nd
er

 p
ro

ce
ss

. T
he

y 
ha

ve
 m

an
ag

ed
 b

ot
h 

eq
ui

tie
s 

an
d 

bo
nd

s 
on

 a
n 

ac
tiv

e 
ba

si
s 

an
d 

si
nc

e 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
09

 m
an

ag
e 

an
 a

ct
iv

e 
bo

nd
 fu

nd
.

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 Q

u
ar

te
rl

y 
R

e
tu

rn
s

-1
2

-1
0-8-6-4-20246

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

F
u

n
d

-9
.7

0
3.

78
3.

36
1.6

6
1.1

0
0.

03
0.

68
1.1

0
0.

18
-0

.2
7

-1
.4

5
-0

.11

T
a

rg
e

t
-8

.3
9

0.
56

0.
70

0.
65

0.
65

0.
67

0.
68

0.
68

0.
69

0.
70

0.
72

0.
75

T
hr

e
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
ll

in
g

 R
e

la
ti

ve
 R

e
tu

rn
s

-3-2-101234

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

3M
 R

el
3Y

 R
el

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

3
M

 R
e

l
-1

.4
3

3.
20

2.
64

1.0
1

0.
44

-0
.6

4
0.

00
0.

42
-0

.5
1

-0
.9

6
-2

.15
-0

.8
5

3
Y

 R
e

l
0.

47
1.4

8
2.

37
2.

68
2.

86
2.

51
2.

37
2.

19
1.6

0
1.6

8
1.2

0
0.

34

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce

-2-101234

T
hr

ee
 M

o
nt

hs
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

T
w

o
 Y

ea
rs

T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
rs

In
ce

p
ti

o
n 

T
o

 D
at

e

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

T
h

re
e

 M
o

n
th

s
O

n
e

 Y
e

a
r

T
w

o
 Y

e
a

rs
T

h
re

e
 Y

e
a

rs
In

c
e

p
ti

o
n

 T
o

 D
a

te

F
u

n
d

-0
.11

-1
.6

5
0.

62
-0

.10
2.

71

T
a

rg
e

t
0.

75
2.

89
2.

80
-0

.4
4

2.
04

Page 24



�


Le
ga

l &
 G

en
er

al

N
ot

es
: A

ll 
nu

m
be

rs
 a

re
 s

ou
rc

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

us
to

di
an

, N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

, a
nd

 h
av

e 
no

t b
ee

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 v

er
ifi

ed
. A

ll 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 fi

gu
re

s 
ov

er
 1

 y
ea

r 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

an
nu

al
is

ed
. 

Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

M
an

ag
er

 u
p

d
at

e

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

P
ro

ce
ss

T
he

 fu
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
as

 1
9.

04
%

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r,
 6

.1
2%

 b
eh

in
d 

its
 

ta
rg

et
. O

ve
r 

12
 m

on
th

s,
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

as
 2

4.
90

%
 b

eh
in

d 
ta

rg
et

. T
he

 
fu

nd
, w

hi
ch

 is
 in

ve
st

ed
 in

 th
e 

20
55

 In
de

x-
Li

nk
ed

 G
ilt

, h
as

 a
ga

in
 b

ro
ad

ly
 

tr
ac

ke
d 

its
 m

ar
ke

t b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

ov
er

 th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

an
d 

ha
s 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
to

 
tr

ac
k 

its
 m

ar
ke

t b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

si
nc

e 
in

ce
pt

io
n.

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

P
ro

du
ct

 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 o

ve
r t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
.

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n

Le
ga

l &
 G

en
er

al
 a

re
 a

 v
er

y 
la

rg
e 

m
an

ag
er

 o
f i

nd
ex

ed
 fu

nd
s.

 T
he

y 
w

er
e 

fir
st

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

fu
nd

 in
 1

99
3.

T
he

y 
ha

ve
 m

an
ag

ed
 b

ot
h 

eq
ui

tie
s 

an
d 

bo
nd

s 
on

 a
n 

in
de

xe
d 

ba
si

s.
 T

he
ir 

cu
rr

en
t i

nv
es

tm
en

t m
an

da
te

 s
ta

rt
ed

 in
 J

ul
y 

20
09

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t s
tr

uc
tu

re
 r

ev
ie

w
.

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 Q

u
ar

te
rl

y 
R

e
tu

rn
s

-2
0

-1
00102030

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

F
u

n
d

-3
.3

2
4.

29
7.

85
1.6

8
-2

.6
9

-0
.9

6
5.

18
2.

34
-2

.6
9

5.
85

5.
96

19
.0

4

T
a

rg
e

t
-1

3.
51

9.
52

7.
48

2.
08

0.
36

0.
39

9.
89

2.
38

-3
.3

0
9.

60
16

.7
3

25
.16

T
h

re
e

 Y
e

ar
s

 R
o

lli
n

g
 R

e
la

ti
ve

 R
e

tu
rn

s

-2
0

-1
001020

Q
1 0

9
Q

2 
09

Q
3 

09
Q

4 
09

Q
1 1

0
Q

2 
10

Q
3 

10
Q

4 
10

Q
1 1

1
Q

2 
11

Q
3 

11
Q

4 
11

% Return

3M
 R

el
3Y

 R
el

Q
1 

0
9

Q
2

 0
9

Q
3

 0
9

Q
4

 0
9

Q
1 

10
Q

2
 1

0
Q

3
 1

0
Q

4
 1

0
Q

1 
11

Q
2

 1
1

Q
3

 1
1

Q
4

 1
1

3
M

 R
e

l
11

.7
8

-4
.7

7
0.

34
-0

.4
0

-3
.0

3
-1

.3
4

-4
.2

9
-0

.0
4

0.
63

-3
.4

2
-9

.2
3

-4
.8

9

3
Y

 R
e

l
8.

07
6.

34
6.

46
6.

29
5.

20
4.

71
3.

23
3.

22
3.

37
1.8

9
-2

.9
2

-6
.5

1

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce

0102030405060

T
hr

ee
 M

o
nt

hs
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

T
w

o
 Y

ea
rs

T
hr

ee
 Y

ea
rs

In
ce

p
ti

o
n 

T
o

 D
at

e

% Return

Fu
nd

Ta
rg

et

T
h

re
e

 M
o

n
th

s
O

n
e

 Y
e

a
r

T
w

o
 Y

e
a

rs
T

h
re

e
 Y

e
a

rs
In

c
e

p
ti

o
n

 T
o

 D
a

te

F
u

n
d

19
.0

4
29

.9
3

16
.10

14
.2

3
4.

66

T
a

rg
e

t
25

.16
54

.8
3

32
.4

7
22

.18
5.

17

Page 25



��

M
ar

ke
t C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 –

Q
ua

rt
er

 4
 2

01
1

T
he

 fo
ur

th
 q

ua
rt

er
 h

as
 o

nc
e 

ag
ai

n 
be

en
 a

 r
ol

le
rc

oa
st

er
 r

id
e 

fo
r 

in
ve

st
or

s.
 

W
hi

ls
t t

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

es
 a

nd
 r

eg
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

gr
ou

nd
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

fin
al

 p
ar

t o
f 2

01
1 

th
is

 te
nd

ed
 to

 m
as

k 
vo

la
til

ity
 in

 a
ll 

m
ar

ke
ts

as
 p

ric
es

 
re

ac
te

d 
st

ro
ng

ly
 to

 th
e 

ne
w

s 
of

 th
e 

da
y,

 m
os

tly
 c

om
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
E

ur
oz

on
e.

A
s 

th
e 

S
ov

er
ei

gn
 E

ur
o 

D
eb

t c
ris

is
 c

on
tin

ue
d,

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
G

re
ek

 a
nd

 It
al

ia
n 

P
rim

e 
M

in
is

te
rs

 s
te

pp
ed

 d
ow

n.
 L

ou
ka

s
P

ap
ad

em
os

re
pl

ac
ed

 G
eo

rg
e 

P
ap

an
dr

eo
u 

an
d 

fo
rm

er
 E

ur
op

ea
n 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
 M

ar
io

 M
on

ti
re

pl
ac

ed
 

S
ilv

io
B

er
lu

sc
on

i. 
B

er
lo

sc
on

iw
as

 fo
rc

ed
 o

ut
 a

s,
 a

m
on

gs
t o

th
er

 th
in

gs
, 

Ita
ly

’s
 d

eb
t b

ec
am

e 
un

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

w
ith

 s
ov

er
ei

gn
 y

ie
ld

s 
in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 7

%
.

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 
E

U
 s

um
m

it,
 a

 tr
ea

ty
 c

ha
ng

e 
ai

m
ed

 a
t i

m
po

si
ng

fis
ca

l d
is

ci
pl

in
e 

ac
ro

ss
 E

U
 c

ou
nt

rie
s 

w
as

 v
et

oe
d 

by
 D

av
id

 C
am

er
on

. 
C

am
er

on
 r

ea
so

ne
d 

th
at

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

tr
im

en
ta

l f
or

 th
e 

U
K

 
F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ec

to
r.

 In
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

w
ee

ks
 o

th
er

 m
em

be
r 

st
at

es
 v

oi
ce

d 
co

nc
er

ns
 le

av
in

g 
th

e 
cr

is
is

 u
nr

es
ol

ve
d 

at
 y

ea
r 

en
d.

W
ith

 p
ol

iti
ci

an
s 

se
em

in
gl

y 
un

ab
le

 to
 fi

nd
 a

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 c

re
di

bl
e 

so
lu

tio
n 

to
 

th
e 

gr
ow

in
g 

de
bt

 c
ris

is
, t

he
 E

ur
op

ea
n 

C
en

tr
al

 B
an

k 
of

fe
re

d 
3 

ye
ar

 lo
an

s,
 

cu
t i

nt
er

es
t r

at
es

 b
y 

50
bp

s 
an

d 
cu

t r
es

er
ve

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

E
ur

oz
on

e
ba

nk
in

g 
sy

st
em

. T
hi

s 
w

as
 s

ee
n 

by
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

ts
 a

s 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

st
ep

 to
w

ar
ds

 b
ol

st
er

in
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
y.

 A
lth

ou
gh

 o
nl

y 
tim

e 
w

ill
 te

ll 
if 

th
e 

E
C

B
’s

m
ea

su
re

s 
w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
ba

nk
 le

nd
in

g 
an

d 
ea

se
 fe

ar
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

 
st

ab
ili

ty
 o

f s
om

e 
of

 E
ur

op
e’

s 
bi

gg
es

t b
an

ks
 a

nd
 it

s 
pe

rip
he

ra
l e

co
no

m
ie

s.
A

s 
th

e 
fe

st
iv

e 
pe

rio
d 

dr
ew

 n
ea

re
r,

 s
en

tim
en

t i
m

pr
ov

ed
 in

 th
e 

m
aj

or
 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
ec

on
om

ie
s 

to
 g

en
er

al
ly

 le
av

e 
th

ei
r 

eq
ui

ty
 in

 p
os

iti
ve

 te
rr

ito
ry

 
ov

er
 th

e 
qu

ar
te

r.
 T

hi
s 

w
as

 s
ca

nt
 c

on
so

la
tio

n 
fo

r 
m

an
y 

in
ve

st
or

s 
ho

w
ev

er
, 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 a
 s

ha
rp

 p
ric

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
io

n 
ov

er
 th

e 
ye

ar
, t

yp
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

A
C

40
 r

et
ur

ni
ng

 -
13

.4
%

.
C

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
m

aj
or

 w
es

te
rn

 e
co

no
m

ie
s,

 th
e 

U
K

 s
ee

m
ed

 to
 b

e 
ho

ld
in

g 
qu

ite
 w

el
l. 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 o
ut

lo
ok

 fo
r 

th
e 

re
ta

il 
se

ct
or

 lo
ok

s 
w

ea
k 

fo
r 

20
12

. I
t w

as
 a

 d
iff

ic
ul

t C
hr

is
tm

as
 o

n 
th

e 
hi

gh
 s

tr
ee

t a
s 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
s 

an
d 

en
te

rt
ai

nm
en

t r
et

ai
le

rs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 D
ix

on
s,

 C
om

et
, H

M
V

 a
nd

 G
am

e,
 

re
po

rt
ed

 s
ha

rp
 a

nn
ua

l f
al

ls
 in

 s
al

es
, a

s 
di

d 
su

pe
rm

ar
ke

t c
ha

in
 T

es
co

. A
ls

o 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 2
01

1 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

, c
re

di
t c

ar
d 

sp
en

di
ng

 h
as

 fa
lle

n 
by

 4
%

 y
ea

r 
on

 
ye

ar
, a

 s
ig

n 
th

at
 c

on
su

m
er

s 
ar

e 
be

co
m

in
g 

m
or

e 
co

ns
ci

ou
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

ir 
pe

rs
on

al
 d

eb
t a

nd
 a

re
 p

os
si

bl
y 

co
nc

er
ne

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
U

K
 o

ut
lo

ok
.

U
K

 d
eb

t m
ar

ke
ts

 s
aw

 p
os

iti
ve

 r
et

ur
ns

 fo
r 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r.

 L
oo

ki
ng

 a
tt

he
 

an
nu

al
 r

et
ur

ns
 fo

r 
20

11
, 1

-3
 y

ea
r 

gi
lts

 r
et

ur
ne

d 
3.

2%
. T

he
 F

T
S

E
 1

00
 h

ad
 

a 
st

ro
ng

 q
ua

rt
er

, r
et

ur
ni

ng
 9

.4
%

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
w

as
 n

ot
 e

no
ug

h 
to

 r
ec

ov
er

 
th

e 
lo

ss
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 th
re

e 
qu

ar
te

rs
, t

he
 in

de
x 

re
tu

rn
ed

 -
2.

2%
 fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
. D

es
pi

te
 th

e 
st

ro
ng

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, v

ol
at

ili
ty

 w
as

 m
ar

ke
d 

w
ith

 d
ai

ly
 v

ar
ia

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
F

T
S

E
10

0 
of

 u
p 

to
 3

.7
%

 (
se

e 
fig

ur
e 

1
be

lo
w

).
 

F
ig

ur
e 

1 
–

P
ro

gr
es

si
on

 o
f t

he
 F

T
S

E
10

0 
In

de
x 

ov
er

 q
ua

rt
er

 4
 2

01
1.

S
en

tim
en

t d
id

 g
ro

w
 o

ff 
th

e 
ba

ck
 o

f a
 u

na
ni

m
ou

s 
vo

te
 b

y 
th

e 
B

an
k 

of
 

E
ng

la
nd

 o
n 

a 
£7

5b
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
to

 it
s 

as
se

t p
ur

ch
as

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

vo
la

til
ity

, G
ilt

 y
ie

ld
s 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
to

 fa
ll 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f 

th
e 

cu
rv

e 
w

ith
 1

5 
ye

ar
 y

ie
ld

s 
do

w
n 

by
 4

5b
ps

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

e 
im

pl
ie

d 
in

fla
tio

n 
cu

rv
e 

re
m

ai
ne

d 
fa

irl
y 

st
ab

le
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
lo

ng
er

 e
nd

 (
se

e 
fig

ur
e 

2
ov

er
le

af
).

C
on

ta
gi

on
 o

f E
ur

oz
on

e
is

su
es

 a
ls

o 
im

pa
ct

ed
 th

e 
U

S
, a

s 
di

d 
a 

do
w

nw
ar

d 
re

vi
si

on
 o

f q
ua

rt
er

 th
re

e 
G

D
P

 g
ro

w
th

. T
he

re
 w

as
 s

om
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

ne
w

s 
as

 
un

em
pl

oy
m

en
t f

el
l t

o 
a 

2 
ye

ar
 lo

w
 o

f 8
.6

%
. H

ow
ev

er
, i

nv
es

to
r 

se
nt

im
en

t 
in

 th
e 

U
S

 is
 s

til
l r

el
at

iv
el

y 
lo

w
, f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
do

w
ng

ra
de

 o
f U

S
G

ov
er

nm
en

t D
eb

t i
n 

qu
ar

te
r 

th
re

e.
 T

hi
s 

is
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 in
 c

re
di

t s
pr

ea
ds

, 
w

hi
ch

 r
em

ai
n 

hi
gh

, a
t l

ev
el

s 
la

st
 s

ee
n 

du
rin

g 
20

09
.

4,
80

0

4,
90

0

5,
00

0

5,
10

0

5,
20

0

5,
30

0

5,
40

0

5,
50

0

5,
60

0

5,
70

0

5,
80

0

30
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

1
30

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

1
30

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

1
30

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

1

Page 26



��

M
ar

ke
t C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 –

Q
ua

rt
er

 4
 2

01
1

F
ig

ur
e 

2 
–

P
re

va
ili

ng
 in

fla
tio

n 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
 r

at
es

 o
ve

r 
qu

ar
te

r 
4 

20
11

.

Lo
ok

in
g 

at
 in

di
vi

du
al

 U
S

 s
ec

to
r 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

, a
ll 

th
e 

de
bt

 s
ec

to
rs

 e
nd

ed
 

th
e 

ye
ar

 in
 p

os
iti

ve
 te

rr
ito

ry
, w

ith
 U

S
 A

gg
re

ga
te

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t D

eb
t 

ou
tp

er
fo

rm
in

g 
al

l m
aj

or
 s

ec
to

rs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

H
ig

h 
Y

ie
ld

. 1
-3

 Y
ea

r 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t D
eb

t r
et

ur
ne

d 
1.

6%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r.

 U
S

 H
ig

h 
Y

ie
ld

 h
ad

 a
 

st
ro

ng
 q

ua
rt

er
 r

et
ur

ni
ng

 6
.2

%
, a

s 
ris

k 
ap

pe
tit

e 
ap

pe
ar

ed
 to

 r
et

ur
n.

 
T

he
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
d 

ac
tio

n 
ta

ke
n 

by
 th

e 
F

ed
 a

nd
 fi

ve
 o

th
er

 m
aj

or
 c

en
tr

al
 

ba
nk

s 
to

 e
as

e 
th

e 
do

lla
r 

fu
nd

in
g 

pr
es

su
re

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 d

at
a 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 U

S
 s

to
ck

 m
ar

ke
ts

 h
av

in
g 

a 
st

ro
ng

 q
ua

rt
er

 a
nd

 r
ec

ov
er

in
g 

al
l 

th
e 

lo
ss

es
 in

 2
01

1,
 th

e 
S

&
P

 5
00

 e
nd

ed
 th

e 
ye

ar
 2

.2
%

 h
ig

he
r.

E
qu

ity
 m

ar
ke

ts
 in

 J
ap

an
 s

tr
ug

gl
ed

 a
nd

 w
er

e 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

fe
w

 m
ar

ke
ts

 to
 

re
tr

ea
t o

ve
r 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r.

 T
he

 s
tr

en
gt

h 
of

 th
e 

Ja
pa

ne
se

 Y
en

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

on
go

in
g 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
de

bt
 c

ris
is

, w
ei

gh
ed

 o
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r 

Ja
pa

ne
se

 
go

od
s.

 W
or

rie
d 

ab
ou

t t
he

 c
ou

nt
ry

’s
 p

os
t-

qu
ak

e 
re

co
ve

ry
, t

he
 J

ap
an

es
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t s

te
pp

ed
 in

 to
 d

riv
e 

th
e 

Y
en

 lo
w

er
 to

 a
id

 e
xp

or
tin

g 
fir

m
s.

 In
 

ad
di

tio
n,

 T
he

 B
an

k 
of

 J
ap

an
 e

xp
an

de
d 

its
 a

ss
et

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
by

 
5t

n 
Y

en
 (

£4
1b

n)
 in

 a
 b

id
 to

 b
oo

st
 g

ro
w

th
.

T
he

 r
es

t o
f A

si
a 

fa
re

d 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 b

et
te

r 
w

ith
 e

qu
ity

 m
ar

ke
ts

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

, u
p 

on
 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r.

 T
hi

s 
w

as
 d

es
pi

te
 C

hi
na

 p
re

di
ct

in
g 

a 
gr

im
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ic
at

ed
 

20
12

 fo
r 

th
e 

gl
ob

al
 e

co
no

m
y.

 H
ow

ev
er

, p
ol

ic
y 

m
ak

er
s 

re
as

su
re

d 
in

ve
st

or
s 

th
at

 m
on

et
ar

y 
po

lic
y 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ud
en

t a
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
cy

, t
he

Y
ua

n,
 

w
ou

ld
 r

em
ai

n 
ba

si
ca

lly
 s

ta
bl

e.
 W

ith
 th

e 
ai

m
 o

f e
ns

ur
in

g 
st

ab
le

 g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 
pr

ic
e 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 a

he
ad

.
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 r

eg
io

n 
fa

ce
d 

ad
de

d 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

de
at

h 
of

 N
or

th
 

K
or

ea
n 

le
ad

er
 K

im
 J

on
g-

il
an

d 
th

e 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

in
st

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 th

re
at

 o
f 

co
nf

lic
t t

ha
t c

am
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

ap
po

in
tm

en
t o

f h
is

 s
uc

ce
ss

or
, K

im
 J

on
g-

un
. 

S
tr

on
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

cs
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 in
 S

ou
th

K
or

ea
 

he
lp

ed
 o

ffs
et

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f t
he

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 c

ha
ng

e.
T

he
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 m
ar

ke
ts

, a
s 

m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 th
e 

F
T

S
E

 A
ll-

W
or

ld
 E

m
er

gi
ng

 
M

ar
ke

t I
nd

ex
, p

ro
du

ce
d 

po
si

tiv
e 

re
tu

rn
s 

ov
er

 th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

(+
3.

9%
),

 d
riv

en
 

by
 a

 r
al

ly
 in

 O
ct

ob
er

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

y 
di

d 
te

nd
 to

 u
nd

er
pe

rf
or

m
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 
m

ar
ke

ts
 g

iv
en

 in
ve

st
or

s’
fr

ag
ile

 r
is

k 
ap

pe
tit

e,
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 
m

ac
ro

ec
on

om
ic

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
in

 th
e 

E
ur

oz
on

e.
 It

 w
as

 th
er

ef
or

e 
un

su
rp

ris
in

g 
to

 le
ar

n 
th

at
 E

M
E

A
 m

ar
ke

ts
 u

nd
er

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 th

e 
br

oa
de

r 
em

er
gi

ng
 

m
ar

ke
ts

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r.

S
ou

rc
es

: D
at

as
tr

ea
m

, P
-S

ol
ve

 R
M

S
.

So
ur

ce
: P

-S
ol

ve
 R

M
S 

Sw
ap

 C
ur

ve
s

0.
0%

0.
5%

1.
0%

1.
5%

2.
0%

2.
5%

3.
0%

3.
5%

4.
0%

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29
30

31
32

33
34

35
36

37
38

39
40

41
42

43
44

45
46

47
48

49
50

51

Du
ra

tio
n 

(y
rs

)

In
te

re
st

 R
at

es
 3

0 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
1

In
te

re
st

 R
at

es
 3

1 
De

ce
m

be
r 2

01
1

In
fla

tio
n 

30
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

1

In
fla

tio
n 

31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
1

Page 27



��

C
on

ta
ct

s 
an

d 
Im

po
rt

an
t N

ot
ic

e

B
ob

.P
ea

rc
e@

lb
hf

.g
ov

.u
k

02
0 

87
53

 1
80

8

2n
d 

F
lo

or
, T

ow
n 

H
al

l E
xt

en
si

on
, K

in
g 

S
tr

ee
t, 

H
am

m
er

sm
ith

, L
on

do
n

W
6 

9J
U

S
ch

em
e 

A
ct

u
ar

y

G
ra

em
e 

M
ui

r,
 B

ar
ne

tt 
W

ad
di

ng
ha

m

B
ob

 P
ea

rc
e

C
lie

n
t 

C
o

n
ta

ct

P
-S

o
lv

e 
C

o
n

ta
ct

C
ha

rlo
tte

 H
ou

se
, 2

 S
ou

th
 C

ha
rlo

tte
 S

tr
ee

t, 
E

di
nb

ur
gh

 E
H

2 
4A

W

12
6 

Je
rm

yn
 S

tr
ee

t, 
Lo

nd
on

 S
W

1Y
 4

U
J

Ia
n.

B
is

ho
p@

ca
m

ra
da

ta
.c

om

01
31

 6
24

 8
60

4

N
ik

hi
l A

gg
ar

w
al

02
0 

75
33

 1
82

8

N
ik

hi
l.A

gg
ar

w
al

@
ps

ol
ve

.c
om

Ia
n 

B
is

ho
p

C
A

M
R

A
D

A
T

A
 C

o
n

ta
ct

D
at

as
ou

rc
e:

 D
at

a 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

ou
rc

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

us
to

di
an

, N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

, a
nd

 th
e 

M
an

ag
er

s.
 

IM
P

O
R

T
A

N
T

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
C

A
M

R
A

D
A

T
A

 A
na

ly
tic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Li
m

ite
d 

(‘C
A

M
R

A
D

A
T

A
’),

 a
 c

om
pa

ny
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

 &
 W

al
es

 w
ith

 r
eg

is
tr

at
io

n 
nu

m
be

r 
06

65
15

43
. C

A
M

R
A

D
A

T
A

 is
 a

n 
as

so
ci

at
e 

of
 P

S
ig

m
a 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 L
im

ite
d.

 A
s 

of
 1

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
9,

 P
-S

ol
ve

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 L
im

ite
d 

(p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

P
S

ig
m

a 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 L

im
ite

d)
, a

ct
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
its

 b
us

in
es

s 
di

vi
si

on
 P

-S
ol

ve
 A

ss
et

 S
ol

ut
io

ns
 (

‘P
-

S
o

lv
e’

),
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 in

ve
st

m
en

t g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
s 

(‘r
ep

o
rt

s’
) 

to
 C

A
M

R
A

D
A

T
A

. B
ot

h 
P

-S
ol

ve
 a

nd
 C

A
M

R
A

D
A

T
A

 a
re

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 P

un
te

r 
S

ou
th

al
l G

ro
up

 o
f C

om
pa

ni
es

.
C

A
M

R
A

D
A

T
A

 d
oe

s 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

 in
ve

st
m

en
t a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
ac

co
rd

in
gl

y 
is

 n
ot

 a
ut

ho
ris

ed
 b

y 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
M

ar
ke

ts
 A

ct
 2

00
0

to
 d

o 
so

. C
A

M
R

A
D

A
T

A
 is

 n
ot

 r
eg

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
. T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 is

 n
ot

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
n 

in
vi

ta
tio

n
or

 a
n 

in
du

ce
m

en
t t

o 
en

ga
ge

 in
 a

ny
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
ct

iv
ity

 n
or

 is
 it

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 c

on
st

itu
te

 in
ve

st
m

en
t a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 
no

t b
e 

re
lie

d 
up

on
 a

s 
su

ch
.W

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
th

at
 y

ou
 s

pe
ak

 to
 y

ou
r 

re
le

va
nt

 a
dv

is
er

s 
be

fo
re

 ta
ki

ng
 a

ny
 a

ct
io

n.
T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 c

on
ta

in
s 

ex
pr

es
si

on
s 

of
 o

pi
ni

on
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

no
t b

e 
ta

ke
n 

as
 fa

ct
. T

he
 c

om
m

en
ta

ry
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

cu
rr

en
tly

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
on

 c
er

ta
in

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ch
an

ge
 w

ith
ou

t n
ot

ic
e.

 A
lth

ou
gh

 C
A

M
R

A
D

A
T

A
 h

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t u
si

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
de

riv
ed

 fr
om

 s
ou

rc
es

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

to
 b

e 
re

lia
bl

e,
 C

A
M

R
A

D
A

T
A

 h
as

 n
ot

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 v
er

ifi
ed

 th
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 
of

 s
uc

h 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 g

oo
d 

fa
ith

, n
ei

th
er

 C
A

M
R

A
D

A
T

A
, i

ts
 h

ol
di

ng
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 n
or

 a
ny

 o
f i

ts
 o

r 
th

ei
r 

as
so

ci
at

es
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s,
 w

ar
ra

nt
s 

or
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

s 
th

at
 s

uc
h 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 

ac
cu

ra
te

, c
om

pl
et

e 
or

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 fo
r 

yo
ur

 p
ur

po
se

s 
an

d 
no

ne
 o

f t
he

m
 s

ha
ll 

be
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r 
or

 h
av

e 
an

y 
lia

bi
lit

y 
to

 y
ou

 fo
r 

lo
ss

es
 o

r 
da

m
ag

es
 (

w
he

th
er

 c
on

se
qu

en
tia

l, 
in

ci
de

nt
al

 o
r 

ot
he

rw
is

e)
 a

ris
in

g 
in

 a
ny

 w
ay

 fo
r 

er
ro

rs
 o

r 
om

is
si

on
s 

in
, o

r 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 o
r 

re
lia

nc
e

up
on

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t. 
C

A
M

R
A

D
A

T
A

 A
na

ly
tic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

its
 lo

go
 a

re
 p

ro
pr

ie
ta

ry
 tr

ad
em

ar
ks

 o
f C

A
M

R
A

D
A

T
A

 a
nd

 a
re

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
.

T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
st

ric
tly

 c
on

fid
en

tia
l a

nd
 is

 fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 p

ar
ty

 to
 w

ho
m

 it
 is

 s
en

t. 
It 

m
us

t n
ot

 b
e 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 to

 a
ny

 th
ird

 p
ar

tie
s 

an
d 

is
 n

ot
 in

te
nd

ed
 a

nd
 m

us
t n

ot
 b

e,
 r

el
ie

d 
up

on
by

 th
em

. 
U

na
ut

ho
ris

ed
 c

op
yi

ng
 o

f t
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
pr

oh
ib

ite
d.

Page 28



 

 

AUDIT AND 
PENSIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 
15th March 2012 

 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 

 
DF 

ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS  
 
This report prepared by Psolve gives various 
options for investing in alternative investments.  
 

 WARDS 
 All 

   RECOMMENDATION: 
 
1. That  the committee agree to increase the 
allocation of the Pension Fund’s investments to 
Ruffer by 5% of the total value of the fund with 
2.5% coming from each of Majedie and MFS. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

No. Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext. of 
Holder of File/Copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1 
 

Psolve File B Pearce 
Extension 1808 

16th Floor, 
Westminster 
City Hall,  

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 29



1. Introduction 
 
1.1  Members will recall that at a briefing meeting on the 22nd November 2011, 
Psolve proposed a change in the investment strategy of the fund to include an allocation 
of the fund’s investments to Alternative Investments.  
 
1.2  At the last Audit and Pensions Committee on 8th December 2011 members 
received a presentation from Ruffer on their investment strategy and their opinion on 
Alternative Investments. It was proposed that Psolve prepare a paper for the next 
committee. 
 
1.3  Psolve has now produced their paper which is attached. In the paper they 
have proposed two main options for investing in Alternative Investments: 
 

a) Allocate more funds to Ruffer to manage with the same mandate as at 
present. Ruffer invests in a broad range of equities, bonds, different regions, credit and 
alternative investments. This will give access to Alternative Investments chosen by 
Ruffer as and when they think fit but not as much as the second option. 
 

b) Go through OJEU procedures to arrive at preferred manager(s). Psolve 
propose three different options for this route.  
 
1.4  Of the four options, the Ruffer option has the lowest fees. 
 
1.5  Psolve are proposing that 10% of the fund (approx £60million) be invested in 
Alternative Investments and that this money should come form Majedie’s UK Equity 
mandate.  
 
2.  Options 
 
2.1  Officers have considered the proposal by Psolve and believe that there are 
two options for consideration: 
 

a) Do nothing and leave the investments strategy as it is now. The current 
strategy has served the fund well and officers are not convinced that a move into 
Alternative Investments will add much to the Fund apart from diversification and would 
increase fees. There also does not seem to be much information about the returns they 
have produced over the long term compared to conventional investments. Alternative 
Investments by their nature are often illiquid and not easily realisable, which would 
mean that the fund would not be able to move the assets back into equities or other 
investments quickly should it be felt necessary.  
 

b)  Increase the allocation to Ruffer with the same mandate as at present which 
will give some exposure to Alternative Investments. The choice of investments will be 
theirs.  Ruffer will be able to switch quickly between asset classes as they can now. 
Officers only recommend an extra allocation of 5% (Psolve recommend 10%) of the 
fund with 2.5% coming from both Majedie and MFS. Officers feel that taking the monies 
only from Majedie (UK Equities) will increase the fund’s exposure to currency 
movements as well as too much from one manager.  
 

Page 30



3. Recommendation 
 

3.1  That  the committee agree to increase the allocation of the Pension Fund’s 
investments to Ruffer by 5% of the total value of the fund with 2.5% coming from each 
of Majedie and MFS. 

Page 31



�

�

�

������������	
�����
��������
������

���
�������������

�
�

�

�

�
�������� ���
�������������
����������������������������� ��
�������������������
��������������	
�����
��������
���
���

�����������������
���������������
�������
���� ����!��
��	"�#�$��%�%������������
���������������&�������� ���
��
�'���"�
�����	(���$�����"��
��
������)"����� �������������
�����$�����"�)"���	���
��
��� 
��������� ��� 
��"��
��)�
����%
����*+���
,���
��� ��
�(�%����� ������������� ��	�
��
��� 
��������������
��$�����

�
�� �������� ��� �
��� ����� ��� ��� ��� ��)�� �
�� ���������
����� �������� 
$
��
)��� ���� ���� ��	� �
�� �'���"� 
�����	� 
��� �
��
	�$���
� ������� 
�����������
 
���

��� 
� ��������� ���� �
�� ���������(� %�� )�	��� %��
� %

�� %����
�� )"� ������
��$��� 
��� %
"� %�� �������� �
�� ����������
 ���������
��������� ��������
��������
��$����
��
����

�

�����������	�
���
���	�������
�

�
�������
�$��"�%�����
�	�������$����������

�� 
��)�� ����������
���
�����
��$�������%�$��(��������������� 
��"��
�"� 
��)��
�
��	
�����
�� �$����	��
���������������"���������$�������(�
���
�%������
���
)���)���%����

�

���������� ����������	 �����
��

��������	�
��

����� ��������

����������� 
��������
�������������

$��
������
������
��"�)���
�

��
�������'��������
�����

���$
����'���"

���$
�����)�����	����
���

�������"

��	���������	�
��
����� ��������

����������� 
�����

$��
�"�� 
��"������������	���� 
���"�)����

��

������
��$��"��
�"������
���

�����������

-��.��
������
��
 ��$���
�
	������
���
��	�������	�����	��������

�
�)��. ������

!
�����	

��	���������	�
����
����!�	!��

�����

��������

����������� 
�����

$��
�"�� 
��"������������	���� 
���"�
����

��

���
��������'�������
������ �����
���������������

��
���������� �������
����	��

/���0
����� 

,����
� �����&����� �������

,������ ��
�� 
���
�

�

�

�����
���	��������	��"��������""����	!������	��
�

1��� ��� �
���
��� ��
����� ���� ��$�����	� ��� 
�����
��$��� ��� 
� )������ �

�� �
���� 
��� 
�	
��� 
��0�������� ��$����� ���&.
�2������
��������
$
��
)������

�
���������
�	�������
������
��$��"����
�	
����%
��3�

==== 4����������� ����� �	��%�
������$��������
�&�����
&������&��	�
�����
��$������ ������������������������
���

==== 5
��"� ��
	�� 	��%�
� �������������� 

$�� ���� ����� "�
��� ������� ��� )�� ����'���� 
�"%
"� 
��� ��$������� 
��� ��%
����� ����
���$����	���'�����"�

==== 6�$������ 
�����)"�����������$���������
)���)���%�����)� ����	������ ������
�������
�� �������� ����� � ���
���7��
�"�

���

������
  �������� ��"���
����

���
���	
�������
��$����

,�$��������!��
��	"�#�$��%���8�������3�������
��$������������
��������6���

Page 32



�

�

�

==== �
��	��
����
$
��
)����"����  
���
�� ������$
����
�&���� ��� ��
���	� ���
������ ���� ������������� ��� �
��&�
)���� �������	� ����
�������� ��
��� ���������
���"� ������
�����	�����$����.������	���� 
���
���
�&���(�
����
���"�)� 
������� �
�������������$
���
���
� ��	���
���	���	����%
����,��
�������(��
���
	����� 
���
����	����)
�&�������	�����	����
���	����������������������$
���
 
���
���

�

,������������
 �����
��� ���	��������(�%�� 
������
�����%

�����$������	���������������$������������������������"��	�)��
��
�
 ��������
����
����
�%������
���
)���)���%��

�

������� #��������������������	��

$������� !���������� ���
��������������(���� ��������
���(���
����
������'����
��%��&�������
��������
��
�������
�������������
��� 
� ��"����$��������� ����

%���
����	�&����� �$
��
)����"����������������������$�������$� ��0	����

&�%�����'����� �������%��&��	�

����0��������� �����"��� ��
��������� ��$��"

����	��	���(���� �

�	�������
���
�������%��&������������������ 
�� �����)�������	��%�


$���	!��(���� �
��)
�
� ��)��%�����������	���� �������������%�
�����$�����������	����
����������	��%�
�
�
��� �����������

���������� *��� ���
�"��������	�����
����������(���8��"�	����(�����
"�
�����

(��)����	�"�� ������������������8�����
�������
���%�����	�����
"��8��
�����������
	
��������8�� ���0�
�	��
��������

$�
���� 9�$����������������
�	�������������� ����$�������� ���
	�����������
�&���
 ��$��"����)�

$����(�
	�$��	��8������������)�� ��� �������� "���
)����"��

*		������	 �

�	��	�)�

$�������
���	
��
��	
�0����� ����$��������

�
���+��
����!� #������ 
��)��	����
�����
���	
��
��
���� 
���������&������������ ��
�� 
���
���
����
���8�����
�����
���������
�����

�

1���
�����
 ����(� �����
��� �������������� ����� �	��%�
(����%
� 
��
���
2����"���� �������
������
����8���������
����
���
�����
�����9��%�
(�96�������
���
(�6������� "�#
����
���!
$��	��#
�����

�
����
����
 ����(�
�%�$��(���������)����	���� 
���"������������� ��(����������������
��
��(������
������
�����������������������

�����������������
��$������������� 
��)����������	
���
  ��������
������
�������������$�������

�

���������"������	�"�������,�	��
�

�
���
)���)���%��
�%���
���8��������
�������

������
���������������$��������������
 ������
����$���������
��
������
�

&�
��� -.�������� /��������
�������

���� %�������
�������

#��!��
,�	���

�������

�����
���	
���

�
���
���	
���

��������
��
���

��
��
��
���

���������
�������
��
���

������ ��
!�����"� ��

��������
# �" ����

$�������� � � � � � � �

���	�����&������ �� �� �� �� �� �� �

����������� � � � � � � �

(��)����	�"��� � � � � � � �

$�
����� � � � � � � �

*		������	� � � � � � 4
")�� �

�
���+��
����!�� � � � � !���� !���� ��

�

Page 33



�

�

�

/�������

���
���
������$����������������� ����� �	��%�
���
��	
��
�������������8������������
������$�������������(��
���	
�
�
�� ���$
��� �'���"� 
��� 
��	�� ������
��
���(� �
���� ���"� ���������� :;���� �
�� ����<�� 
������� ,�� 
�������(� �
�� ��$��������
���
��	"����
�
$��"�%��	
������%
����'���"��8������(�
�������
��� ��
��*+��'���"��8��������

�����
�����
���(�%�����������

���
������������ ���������%
"�� ���%
� 
���$������ 
�����)"�����������$��� 
��)�� �����$���
%��
����
�� ���������$�����������
��	"���
��������)$�����%
"����
 
��$��)��������$������ 
������������������ ��
��
��� 
�����
���������
��$���� ��%�$��(� �
�� ���������� ������ ���  �������� �
�� ���������
����� �������� 
��� 	�$���
� �� ����� 
������ ���
�� 
�
��
 ���������
�����
��$����
���������� ��	�����
� �����*+��'���"���������%�����)������� ��
����
��
��� 
��������6�����

�

*��
���	�����	��	��!����	�	�����	���������	��
�

�
�� ���������� �� ����"� ���� %��
� #������ %
�� ��� ��)��� ����� ��� �
�� 
��� 
������ ��� 
�����
��$�� ��$��������� ��� �
�� 6���
�
��
�����
����
�����������
���"� ����'�������
��	����%
� 
�
�������	�������)������� ������
�&������������
���
��
)����"����
���$������'�����"�����
���
�&�����
��	
�#�������������������
���
���
�����
�����
��$����$������������(��
������������ �����
��$���
������
��� 
�������������
����
�
	��������$�����"��
��
����������
��(�
������	
��"��� ��
����
���8����������������
��$����
,�� �
�� ���������� ��$����� ����
��� ������ %��
� #�����(� �
�"� %���� 
���� )������� ����� �
�� �� ��
���� 
��� 
����� ��� ���
����
��
�
��
���(�%
���)"��
���
�
	���
 ��$��"����
����)��%����
����� �
�����
  �����	����
������	.�����$��%���

�
���
)���)���%���� ��)����
���������)������
�������	
����	����� ���8����������������
��$��(�
��� ���
�����
���%��
��
��
��
������������� ������
)�$�3��� ��
���	��
��
��� 
��������#�������

�

� �
���	���������	������ � ����

� �=�� �>�� �:�� � �?��

�� �������������0�!�
��.

�����

�
�� ���$����"� 6���	
���� � #������

����������	� ��������
��������
�
���	����
�
	���%
�����
��������)������� 
�� ��
���
����� �
�����
��0����
������"��	��
�
	����

�������������������)���
���� 
�� �����
�����
 �
�����
���������"��	�
�
�
	����

6���	
�����
�
	������
��������)������� 
�� ��
���
����� �
�����
���
������"��	��
�
	���(�
%��
������&� �����
�����
����)"��
�����������

� #������
��� 
����������

 �����)��
��
��� ��������
�����
 �
�����
���
 ��$��"�
���
����)��%����
���������� �
�����

�
������
"�������
������$�� 
���
��

���������
����������	��"�
�

������	�

!��	����
��
��� ��&��"����"�>����:�
�
��
���(�������
��$��"�
�
����
��
����� �
�����
��	��9��)
���������"(�
��������
��	��������

58�� ��=@.=A�
������"��	��
��
����
���
�%�����
�	�����

����� �
�������	��
9��)
���������"(������
���
��	�������(�
 ����������(�
 
�
�����
�����&(�
�
�����	(� 
�)���
 �������

� ����$�����������
)��%�����'���"������
������������	����(�
 ������
��������

�����
��$���

4
�
	���

��
���8�)����"�����%�� 
�
)��%���� �
�����

  �����	����������&�

&����	�	���
���������	��

����� ����
��� �
����
%��
����� ���	�
�
�
�
	����
���%����4�������

����� ����
��� �
����
%��
��� ��$��	���
����	�
���
����� �
�����
���
������"��	��
�
	����
�4�������

6���	
�������
��
����
�
��"��
�
	���%��
�
��� ��� ����&� ��������

9�$���
� ���
��������
���������	��
��
6���	
�����
�
	���
���%����4�������

� -��
�������
��
	�$���
� ��
��'����������
���%��

�������"������	�
��
�����	��������

4������ ��%�.�4������ ��	
� � ��%�

*	���������"���� =.>;���
�B� =.>;���
�B� @�A;���
���*4�
 =;���
������������"��	�
�
�
	���B�

� @�CA;���
��

$����������%�&��'� ��(�������)��� �%���������

Page 34



�

�

�

�
�������������
�����)��
%
����

�������
���������%���������(��
 
��
��
���
���������%��
�
���%��
�
	����
"���'�����
�
�����������������������
���� ���������8�� ����
���%������ ���
�$����"�������
 
��������

�
��	
���%��
��
����%����)��
���������%��
������������
�
	��������
������	
����
����
 
����(��
��������
"����"�

$�����
���������
����� ���������8�� ���������
������	
�����
�
	���
����� ����
��
�$����"�����������
��������
�
	����

�

���!���$�����!��
�

��� ��� ������ ��� ���� !��
��	"� #�$��%(�%��%����� �������� �
�� ���������� ���� �� �
�� �8������� ��� *+� 5'���"(� �
���	
� �
��
4
2������
��
��(�)"�=@;� ��� �
$�������
��
�����
��$���
��� 
�������
�� �
)���)���%���� ��)���
�%��
�� ���
��	� �
��� 
������
%����� 

�	����
�������������
�����������

�� �
�����
�� ����� ��$���������
�	���%��������� 

�	��
��
� ����'��� �����
�����������	��
�������������

�

������'
���� 0�	�!��� '����	��$�����!���
�

������	�123�

%���������

������	�
/����	��4�5�123�

%���������

������	�
/����	�6�123�

-.�������� 4
2����� >A�@� 4789� 4789�

/��������������� 4�!� >A�@� >A�@� >A�@�

�
���	�� =C�C� =C�C� =C�C�����

#������ D�>� D�>� 4:8;�

�
���	������� � @�@� 4989� @�@�

0�����	!�,�	�� 9����
��!
 
�0�9,4� >A�@� >A�@� >A�@�

%�������������� ,�$�� �0*�� ������ � � �

����
� � 49989� 49989� 49989�

� � � � �

�

������	����
�
���	�������

1��������������	�!����
�����7�492��

������	3�

48;7�<�;87� 448;7�<�4;87� 48=7�<�587�

�

�����$�����
�

/��%������� ����%��
��
�������������
�����
��$�������������
 
����������
����������������������
��$������>:���)��
�"�>@=>��
,���
��� ��
�(�%��%�������&���
��������������� ��������%
� 
�����
���������(����
�"(����%�����)��
)��������������������8������
����
����6�������	�����
����� �����(��.!��$��%�����)��
)���������$�����
������������%��
�����
�����
����	�����
��
�����
��$��

����� �
�����%
� 
�����%��
��
�����������
��������
������ 
������

!
������
������������ �� ����(�
���
�������(� ������������%
��������� ����%��
�
����� ��
��� 
��������������
��$�����������
����������'��������� ���������
���������(�����������
���������
������������ ������
&��������� ���
��)�
����%
����*+��'���"�
�������� ��
����
��
��� 
���������
��6��������(��
�
	���)"�#��������
��	
��
�������������� ���
���"�
 
��$���
���
�����$������
��$������ 
�����)"����$������������(���������
 
��$��
�)��������$������ 
�����)"�
����� �
���
�����	���(�
���
��
��� 
������������ ��
�'�������
����
��*+������ ��$��"�%�����)������ ����

�

�

%�$�
���

,�
������;94;�

�

�

,�����
���-��� ��

�.!��$��������!������������
���$����������.!��$��,�$�����������������%
� 
����
��
�������
�����	��
��������
��*������+��	����)"��
�����
� �
��!��$� ������
����"��E�!�<��
���%
� 
�����
�������
��
�������!���

���9������������
���������
���������

��
����
����
������� ���)"��.!��$��������� ����
�(�
�����������������
�� �������
�������(�����������
�� �������%��
����
����
���	�����
�����
� �
��
!��$� ���
���4
�&����� ��>@@@��E�!4�<���#��
��������
��� ������������������
 ��
�"�����
� ��������
�� ���������

�
����� �����������������������
���� ����������"���
��������
������8��������������$��������	�����
��
�
���

��)��������
��������	����� ��� �������������)����
���
)���
���
�������
����/
�����
���
������
�����������
�����
���������)����$������)������
)��(�������������
�����(�	�
�
���������%
��
������
����
���
������
��
  ��
 "����������
��������������(�
��������������)����"������
)����"� 
��)��

  ����������
�"������(���������������
  ��
 "��������� ������
�����
����� �������
"�
������ ���������$��%��
����8�� �
�����(�%
� 
� 
�����)���
&���
���
 ����

�
��$
���������$���������
����
���� ����������
��� 
��	����%��
��%����
�����
��
������������
�&���
��� ����� "���� ��
������
�����$��������
"�����	���)
 &��
��
��������$��������
���
�������
� ����������� ���
���"�
�	������������������������

�
����� ��������� ���������
���,���
���������)��������)��������
�"��
�����
������
�������������������
������������)�(�������������)"��
����*�
��
������� ��"��	�����
����� ������������
�)������

(�!���������""���>�=>D�F���"��!�����(��������!/=G�?*F�H�#�	�����������5�	�
���
���/
����H�-���::AI=>J�H��!��#�	����
�����-���=IA@>C�

�
Page 35



 

 

AUDIT AND 
PENSIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 
15 March 2012 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 

 
Communities and Local Government 
Consultation on proposed amendments to 
the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) Regulations contained in the draft 
LGPS (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2012 
 
This report sets out proposed amendments to 
the LGPS regulations currently under 
consultation. These amendments are of a 
technical nature and required to bring LGPS 
regulations into line with primary legislation. As 
such, no response was submitted. 
 

 WARDS 
 All 

 
  RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the report be noted 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 36



 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
Attached as Appendix 1 is a report by Drew Beedall, Technical Consultant at 
Capita Hartshead, pension administrators to the Hammersmith and Fulham 
pension fund, summarising the nature and impact of the changes. 
 
Additional comments as to the potential impact for members and employers of 
the Hammersmith and Fulham pension fund are shown below. 
 
2. BACKGROUND  
 
In general terms these draft regulations deal with various technical issues which 
need to be addressed to comply with changes to primary legislation.  
 
3 H&F COMMENTS 
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 7 
 
The reintroduction of the provision for members to pay additional pension 
contributions for the purpose of providing additional survivor’s pension benefit in 
respect of pre 6 April 1988 membership will not have a material effect on the 
H&F pension fund as it will only apply to the very small number of members who 
have made a nominated co-habiting partner election and have in excess of 24 
years LGPS membership.  
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 8 
 
In the H&F pension fund there are currently 19 members who are in receipt of 
pension benefits following flexible retirement and in all cases the whole of their 
accrued benefits were put into payment.  
 
Flexible retirement is only allowed if agreement is obtained from the employing 
authority. If this draft change is implemented it gives the member the right to 
choose to leave the post 31/3/2008 benefits so that they are taken at final 
retirement date and given that if the member had not been granted flexible 
retirement these benefits would have been payable on the final retirement date 
anyway, there would not be any extra significant cost or extra burden on the 
pension fund. 
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 5, 11 and 12 
 
This seems like a common sense provision, for the administering authority to 
make such discretionary decisions regarding early payment of benefits, where 
the employing authority no longer exists. The administering authority will need to 

Page 37



consider all such cases in line with the ex-employer’s usual practice, the potential 
cost to the pension fund and any knock-on effect to the other employers in the 
pension fund. 
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 15 
 
Since the two-year vesting period was reduced to three months in 2008 the 
number of small pensions has increased, so this extension to the trivial pension 
commutation value is welcomed as an aid to reducing the administration cost of 
paying trivial pensions. 
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 17 and 18 
 
There are no pensioners in the H&F pension fund who currently have suspended 
tier 3 ill health retirement benefits. It is not possible to estimate how many 
members may fall into this category in the future but unless there are significant 
numbers there will be little effect on the pension fund. 
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 19 
 
The removal of the provision to transfer the AVC fund into the LGPS for 
members who commenced before 13 November 2001 will need to be 
communicated to all such members, with an explanation of the remaining options 
open to them. The number of members who have paid into the AVC schemes is 
extremely small. 
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 2, 3, 21, 22, 41 and 43 affecting Transferee 
Admission Bodies 
 
There are 19 transferee admission bodies in the H&F pension fund. All of the 
bodies have a bond/indemnity in place to cover liabilities arising due to 
commercial failure and the bodies who have two contracts already have a 
separate admission agreement and bond or indemnity for each contract. 
 
H&F’s standard admission agreement and bond/indemnity to be reviewed 
following outcome of this consultation. 
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 28 
 
Clarification is needed as to what happens to a member’s in-house AVC fund 
where the tier 3 ill health retirement benefit does not cease because the member 
attains age 65 or if there is uplift from tier 3 to tier 2 following a review. 
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 29 
 

Page 38



This would be of benefit to the member in terms of having their benefits all held in 
the same pension fund and to the employer in terms of simpler administration of 
the retirement benefits and ease of performing checks against the Life Time 
Allowance. 
 
However there would be additional administration work and associated cost in 
the initial stages and it may make it difficult for actuaries to perform fund 
valuations if the actuary is unaware that the deferred benefits may be transferred 
to another fund after the pension fund valuation has taken place... 
 
Actuarial factors to be used in the transfer calculation would have to be devised 
by the Government Actuary’s Department and agreed by the actuaries 
representing the individual pension funds, to ensure fairness for sending and 
receiving pension funds. 
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 31 and 32 
 
Greater flexibility to reduce any deficit is to be welcomed by the administering 
authority and the employers. 
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 34 
 
There are 2 employers in the H&F pension fund who do not have any active 
members and 9 who have less than 5 active members. H&F will need to include 
reference to the 2 employers who no longer have any active members, devising 
policies affecting pensioners and deferred pensioners who were employed by 
these employers. 
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 35 and 36 
 
These regulations place a significant extra administrative burden on the 
administering authority, reducing the deadline for production of annual benefit 
statements from 12 to 6 months. Procedures for the earlier provision of year-end 
data will need to be put in place. 
 
Draft LGPS (Misc) Regulation 44 
 
This regulation is required to cater for the different staging dates which apply to 
different size employers under the Workplace Pensions – Auto Enrolment 
provisions and means that an employee who is not eligible for LGPS on 
commencement, because the contract of employment is less than 3 months, 
does not have to be auto-enrolled if the staging date occurs during this period. 
 
3. Future reporting needs 
 

Page 39



When the final Regulations are made, Capita Hartshead will report the full effects 
on the pension fund members and will process all changes required to 
administration procedures and the H&F pensions website.  
 
Key changes will be notified to members and employers where applicable, via a 
member newsletter. 
 
4. Conclusions 
 
A formal response to this consultation has not been submitted as there are no 
significant effects or issues for the London Borough of Hammersmith and 
Fulham. 
 
 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000- 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

No. Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext. of Holder of 
File/Copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. Consultation document Les Green x 1878 FCS Hammersmith Town 
Hall 

2. draft LGPS (Miscellaneous) 
Regulations 2012 

Les Green x 1878 FCS Hammersmith Town 
Hall 

 

Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



 

 

AUDIT AND 
PENSIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 
15 March 2012 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 

Audit Commission 
Council Audit Opinion Plan 2011-12 
 
This plan sets out the external audit work that 
the Audit Commission proposes to undertake for 
the audit of the financial statements 2011-12. 
 
 
 
 

 WARDS 
 All 

 
  RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
1. To note the content of the report 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 57



A
u

d
it

 p
la

n
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
H

am
m

er
sm

it
h

 a
n

d
 F

u
lh

am

A
u

d
it

 2
01

1/
12

 

  

Page 58



C
o

n
te

n
ts

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

3

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.5

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.9

M
ile

st
o

n
es

 a
n

d
 d

ea
d

lin
es

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

11

T
h

e 
au

d
it

 t
ea

m
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
12

In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 q
u

al
it

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
3

F
ee

s
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
4

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
ct

iv
it

y.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
6

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 B
as

is
 f

o
r 

fe
e

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
18

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 A
u

d
it

o
r 

q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
to

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
19

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 4
 –

 A
u

d
it

o
r 

q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
to

 t
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
21

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 5
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

23
      

Page 59



In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

T
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
’s

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

o
f 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 o
f 

A
u

d
it

o
rs

 a
n

d
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
ed

 B
o

d
ie

s 
se

ts
 

o
u

t 
th

e 
re

sp
ec

ti
ve

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
o

r 
an

d
 t

h
e 

au
d

it
ed

 b
o

d
y.

 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

se
ts

 o
ut

 th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 is

su
ed

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t t
o 

yo
u.

  

T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t s

um
m

ar
is

es
 w

he
re

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

ite
d 

bo
dy

 b
eg

in
 a

nd
 e

nd
 a

nd
 I 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
m

y 
au

di
t w

or
k 

to
 

m
ee

t t
he

se
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s.
 

I c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 g

ov
er

ni
ng

 m
y 

au
di

t w
or

k,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
: 

!
 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8;

 a
nd

  
!

 
th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l N

H
S

 b
od

ie
s.

  

M
y 

au
di

t d
oe

s 
no

t r
el

ie
ve

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
an

d 
P

en
si

on
s 

C
om

m
itt

ee
, a

s 
th

os
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 o
f t

he
ir 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

A
ud

iti
ng

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 r

eq
ui

re
 m

e 
to

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
w

ith
 y

ou
 th

e 
pl

an
 fo

r 
th

e 
au

di
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

os
e 

ar
ea

s 
vi

ew
ed

 a
s 

hi
gh

es
t r

is
k.

 I 
ha

ve
 th

er
ef

or
e 

se
t o

ut
 th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 r
is

ks
 a

nd
 th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 I 

w
ill

 ta
ke

 fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 2

01
1/

12
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

 a
ls

o 
de

ta
il 

a 
se

rie
s 

of
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 th
at

 a
ud

iti
ng

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

re
qu

ire
 m

e 
to

 a
sk

 o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 r

eq
ue

st
 a

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 th
es

e 
pr

io
r 

to
 th

e 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f t

he
 a

ud
it.

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
3

 

Page 60



V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 

I w
ill

 a
ls

o 
as

se
ss

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
 a

nd
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f a
 v

al
ue

 fo
r 

m
on

ey
 c

on
cl

us
io

n.
 I 

se
t o

ut
 th

e 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 m

y 
w

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

fo
cu

se
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
11

/1
2 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 c
on

cl
us

io
n.

  

M
ile

st
on

es
 a

nd
 d

ea
dl

in
es

, t
he

 a
ud

it 
te

am
, i

nd
ep

en
de

nc
e 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
. 

I h
av

e 
se

t o
ut

 th
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

tim
et

ab
le

 a
nd

 o
ut

pu
ts

 fr
om

 2
01

1/
12

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k.

 I 
al

so
 c

on
fir

m
 th

e 
au

di
t t

ea
m

 is
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t a
nd

 s
et

 o
ut

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

m
ee

ts
 q

ua
lit

y 
st

an
da

rd
s.

 

F
ee

s

T
he

 fe
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t i
s 

£3
60

,0
00

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 1

0 
pe

r 
ce

nt
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r.

 T
he

 fe
e 

ha
s 

no
t c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 it
 w

as
 o

rig
in

al
ly

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 to
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

.  

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
4

 

Page 61



A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

I w
ill

 c
ar

ry
 o

u
t 

th
e 

au
d

it
 o

f 
th

e 
ac

co
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

o
n

 A
u

d
it

in
g

 (
U

K
 a

n
d

 Ir
el

an
d

) 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

in
g

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

o
ar

d
 (

A
P

B
).

 I 
am

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 

is
su

e 
an

 a
u

d
it

 r
ep

o
rt

 g
iv

in
g

 m
y 

o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

e 
ac

co
u

n
ts

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
u

e 
an

d
 f

ai
r 

vi
ew

.  

M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

 

I w
ill

 a
pp

ly
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

t o
f m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
in

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
m

y 
au

di
t, 

in
 e

va
lu

at
in

g 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f a

ny
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
, a

nd
 in

 fo
rm

in
g 

m
y 

op
in

io
n.

  

Id
en

ti
fy

in
g

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

ks
  

I g
ai

n 
an

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

ris
k 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t (

w
he

th
er

 d
ue

 to
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

) 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
 d

o 
th

is
 b

y:
 

!
 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 r

is
ks

 fa
ci

ng
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
as

se
ss

in
g 

yo
ur

 o
w

n 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
; 

!
 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y;

  
!

 
as

se
ss

in
g 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 

th
e 

IT
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it;
 a

nd
  

!
 

as
se

ss
in

g 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

t a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s.

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
5

 

Page 62



I h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
is

ks
 th

at
 a

re
 r

el
ev

an
t t

o 
th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

se
t t

he
se

 o
ut

 b
el

ow
.  

T
ab

le
 1

: 
A

u
d

it
 r

is
ks

 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

A
cc

ru
al

s

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

n 
A

ud
iti

ng
 (

IS
A

 2
40

 U
K

&
I)

 p
re

su
m

e 
an

 in
he

re
nt

 
ris

k 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 r
ev

en
ue

 r
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

fo
r 

al
l a

ud
its

. G
iv

en
 th

e 
pr

es
su

re
s 

pl
ac

ed
 o

n 
co

un
ci

l f
in

an
ce

s 
by

 th
e 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t f

in
an

ce
 s

et
tle

m
en

t, 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 m
is

st
at

em
en

t e
xc

ee
ds

 th
at

 o
f p

rio
r 

ye
ar

s 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 w

ith
 

re
ga

rd
 to

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

cc
ru

al
s 

of
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
. 

I w
ill

 id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

te
st

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

cc
ru

al
s.

 S
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

, I
 w

ill
: 

!
 

as
se

ss
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
m

et
ho

d 
fo

r 
m

ak
in

g 
ac

cr
ua

ls
 is

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
nd

 h
as

 
be

en
 c

on
si

st
en

tly
 a

pp
lie

d;
 

!
 

re
vi

ew
 th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d;

 

!
 

te
st

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 m
an

ag
em

en
t c

on
tr

ol
s 

ov
er

 th
e 

ac
cr

ua
ls

; a
nd

 

!
 

ve
rif

y 
th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f t
he

 a
cc

ru
al

 b
y 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t 

se
ttl

em
en

t. 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 R
ev

en
u

e 
A

cc
o

u
n

t 
(H

R
A

) 
re

fo
rm

 

T
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t p

la
ns

 to
 r

ef
or

m
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ho
us

in
g 

fin
an

ce
 b

y 
ad

op
tin

g 
a 

se
lf-

fin
an

ci
ng

 m
od

el
 fr

om
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

12
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
on

e-
of

f s
et

tle
m

en
t p

ay
m

en
t t

o 
or

 fr
om

 c
en

tr
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t o

n 
or

 b
ef

or
e 

28
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

H
R

A
 d

eb
t o

f t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 

P
ay

m
en

ts
 fr

om
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t w
ill

 in
 m

os
t c

as
es

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 r

ed
ee

m
 a

n 
eq

ua
l p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
ll 

P
W

LB
 d

eb
t h

el
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 D
ue

 to
 th

e 
co

m
pl

ex
ity

, m
ag

ni
tu

de
 a

nd
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 th
e 

H
R

A
 r

ef
or

m
 th

er
e 

is
 r

is
k 

th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 m

is
st

at
ed

.  

I w
ill

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

H
R

A
 r

ef
or

m
 is

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r 
co

rr
ec

tly
. 

S
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

, I
 w

ill
: 

!
 

ag
re

e 
se

ttl
em

en
t p

ay
m

en
t o

r 
re

ce
ip

t t
o 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

in
 th

e 
S

et
tle

m
en

t P
ay

m
en

ts
 D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
20

12
; 

!
 

ch
ec

k 
th

at
 th

e 
se

ttl
em

en
t t

ra
ns

ac
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r 

in
 li

ne
 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f C

IP
F

A
 g

ui
da

nc
e;

 

!
 

ag
re

e 
de

ta
ils

 o
f l

oa
n 

re
de

m
pt

io
ns

 to
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n;

 a
nd

 

!
 

ch
ec

k 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
to

 c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 n
on

-c
as

h 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
lo

an
 r

ed
em

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r 

co
rr

ec
tly

.  
  A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

A
ud

it 
pl

an
 

6
 

Page 63



 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

 p
ay

ab
le

 a
n

d
 r

ec
ei

va
b

le
 a

u
d

it
 r

ep
o

rt
s 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
re

po
rt

s 
on

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 p
ay

ab
le

 a
nd

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ab
le

 
sy

st
em

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
on

ly
 li

m
ite

d 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

ov
er

 s
ys

te
m

 c
on

tr
ol

s.
 T

he
 w

or
k 

fo
un

d 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

au
th

or
is

at
io

n 
of

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 s
up

pl
ie

rs
 a

nd
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
ta

nd
in

g 
da

ta
. D

ue
 to

 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 

of
 th

es
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 th

e 
sy

st
em

, t
he

re
 is

 a
 r

is
k 

th
at

 in
co

m
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

is
st

at
ed

. 

I w
ill

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 te
st

in
g 

of
 b

ot
h 

ac
co

un
ts

 p
ay

ab
le

 a
nd

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ab
le

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

. 

H
er

it
ag

e 
as

se
ts

 

T
he

 2
01

1/
12

 IF
R

S
 C

od
e 

ad
op

ts
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f F
R

S
 3

0 
H

er
ita

ge
 

A
ss

et
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

fir
st

 ti
m

e.
 T

he
se

 a
re

 a
ss

et
s 

he
ld

 b
y 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ith
 th

e 
in

te
nt

io
n 

of
 p

re
se

rv
in

g 
th

em
 fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 g
en

er
at

io
ns

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

he
ir 

cu
ltu

ra
l, 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l o
r 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

ns
. T

yp
ic

al
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 in
 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t i

nc
lu

de
 m

ay
or

al
 r

eg
al

ia
 a

nd
 p

ai
nt

in
gs

. T
he

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
re

qu
ire

s 
th

at
 w

he
re

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 c

os
t o

r 
va

lu
e 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e,

 h
er

ita
ge

 
as

se
ts

 m
us

t b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ba

la
nc

e 
sh

ee
t a

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 
fo

r 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
od

e 
an

d 
its

 d
is

cl
os

ur
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. T
he

re
 is

 
a 

ris
k 

th
at

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
di

ffi
cu

lty
 in

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
 a

nd
 v

al
ui

ng
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s,
 

th
is

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
po

lic
y 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

co
rr

ec
tly

.  
 

I w
ill

 c
om

pl
et

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l w

or
k 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
al

l p
ot

en
tia

l h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

ha
s 

ap
pl

ie
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 ju

dg
em

en
ts

 w
ith

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 th

ei
r 

cl
as

si
fic

at
io

n,
 

va
lu

at
io

n 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
7

 

Page 64



T
es

ti
n

g
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

 

M
y 

au
di

t w
ill

 in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g.
 

!
 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
e-

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 w

or
k 

of
 y

ou
r 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

ito
rs

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
he

 te
st

in
g 

of
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

in
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 r

ec
ei

va
bl

e,
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

pa
ya

bl
e 

an
d 

pa
yr

ol
l s

ys
te

m
s.

 
!

 
A

n 
IT

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t. 
!

 
P

la
ci

ng
 r

el
ia

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 e

xp
er

ts
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

!
th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y 
fo

r 
pe

ns
io

ns
 li

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

as
se

ts
; a

nd
 

!
th

e 
va

lu
er

 fo
r 

th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

y,
 p

la
nt

 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t. 

 
!

 
S

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
te

st
s 

of
 d

et
ai

l o
f t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

on
 a

ll 
m

at
er

ia
l b

al
an

ce
s.

 

I h
av

e 
so

ug
ht

 to
:  

!
 

m
ax

im
is

e 
re

lia
nc

e,
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
e-

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

, o
n 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 y
ou

r 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
; a

nd
 

!
 

m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
w

or
k 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
pr

ep
ar

e 
yo

ur
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 

T
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 b
y 

30
 J

un
e 

20
12

. I
 a

im
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
m

y 
w

or
k 

an
d 

is
su

e 
m

y 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 b

y 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

. I
 w

ill
 a

gr
ee

 w
ith

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

en
tr

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
.  

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 

A
lo

ng
si

de
 m

y 
w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
, I

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l A

ud
it 

O
ffi

ce
 o

n 
yo

ur
 W

ho
le

 o
f G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
cc

ou
nt

s 
re

tu
rn

. T
he

 e
xt

en
t o

f m
y 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f m

y 
re

po
rt

 a
re

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l A
ud

it 
O

ffi
ce

. 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

IS
A

 (
U

K
&

I)
 2

40
, 2

60
 a

n
d

 3
15

 

U
nd

er
 th

e 
IS

A
 (

U
K

&
I)

 I 
am

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 u
pd

at
e 

m
y 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
an

nu
al

ly
 o

f: 
!

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

; a
nd

  
!

 
ho

w
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

s 
th

os
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ga
in

s 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

ov
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

I n
ee

d 
to

 o
bt

ai
n 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 b

y 
as

ki
ng

 th
e 

qu
es

tio
ns

 
ou

tli
ne

d 
in

 a
pp

en
di

x 
2 

an
d 

3 
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 T

he
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

ns
w

er
ed

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y,
 H

am
m

er
sm

ith
 &

 F
ul

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
an

d 
W

or
m

w
oo

d 
S

cr
ub

s 
C

ha
rit

ab
le

 T
ru

st
 a

ud
its

. I
 r

eq
ue

st
 th

at
 r

es
po

ns
es

 to
 th

e 
qu

es
tio

ns
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 m

e 
pr

io
r 

to
 th

e 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f t

he
 a

ud
it.

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
8

 

Page 65



V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

I a
m

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 r

ea
ch

 a
 c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

's
 a

rr
an

g
em

en
ts

 t
o

 s
ec

u
re

 e
co

n
o

m
y,

 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s.
  

M
y 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 o

n 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
tw

o 
cr

ite
ria

, s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

. T
he

se
 r

el
at

e 
to

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r:

 
!

 
se

cu
rin

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 –
 fo

cu
si

ng
 o

n 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 m

an
ag

in
g 

its
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

is
ks

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
a 

st
ab

le
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on
 fo

r 
th

e 
fo

re
se

ea
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

; a
nd

 
!

 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ho

w
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

se
cu

re
s 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

– 
fo

cu
si

ng
 o

n 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 p

rio
rit

is
in

g 
its

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 w

ith
in

 
tig

ht
er

 b
ud

ge
ts

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
pr

od
uc

tiv
ity

 a
nd

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
. 

Id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

ri
sk

s

I h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
e 

ris
ks

 th
at

 a
re

 r
el

ev
an

t t
o 

m
y 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 c
on

cl
us

io
n.

 I 
ha

ve
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ris

ks
 th

at
 I 

w
ill

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
ro

ug
h 

m
y 

w
or

k.
 

T
ab

le
 2

: 
V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 r

is
ks

 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

T
he

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t F
in

an
ce

 S
et

tle
m

en
t r

ed
uc

ed
 C

en
tr

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
fu

nd
in

g 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y.

 In
 2

01
1/

12
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 ta

rg
et

in
g 

sa
vi

ng
s 

of
 £

27
 m

ill
io

n.
 T

he
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 le
ve

l o
f s

av
in

gs
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

w
ill

 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 fu
tu

re
 y

ea
rs

, i
nc

re
as

in
g 

to
 £

64
 m

ill
io

n 
by

 2
01

3/
14

. 

I w
ill

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ta
sk

s.
 

!
 

M
on

ito
r 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
sa

vi
ng

s 
in

 2
01

1/
12

. 

!
 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 in

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
 s

av
in

gs
 fo

r 
20

12
/1

3.
 

!
 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

la
te

st
 m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

la
n.

 
  A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

A
ud

it 
pl

an
 

9
 

Page 66



 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

In
 M

ay
 2

01
1,

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ag

re
ed

 p
la

ns
 to

 c
om

bi
ne

 c
er

ta
in

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ith
 

C
ity

 o
f W

es
tm

in
st

er
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
R

oy
al

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f K

en
si

ng
to

n 
an

d 
C

he
ls

ea
. T

he
 tr

i-b
or

ou
gh

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e’

s 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

is
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

pe
op

le
’s

 
liv

es
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
th

re
e 

bo
ro

ug
hs

 w
hi

ls
t d

el
iv

er
in

g 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 s
av

in
gs

 to
 th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 fr
on

t-
lin

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n.

 
D

em
on

st
ra

tin
g 

th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 o
ut

co
m

es
 a

nd
 e

m
be

dd
in

g 
so

un
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 u

nd
er

pi
n 

th
e 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
cr

iti
ca

l t
o 

th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

. 

I w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f: 

!
 

sh
or

t a
nd

 m
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

nn
in

g 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

sa
vi

ng
s 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
) 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
bu

dg
et

ar
y 

pr
oc

es
se

s;
 

!
 

th
e 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 fo
r 

th
e 

at
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 s
av

in
gs

; a
nd

 

!
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
jo

in
t m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 th
os

e 
co

nc
er

ni
ng

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

an
d 

sc
ru

tin
y.

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
10

 

Page 67



M
ile

st
o

n
es

 a
n

d
 d

ea
d

lin
es

 
T

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 p

re
pa

re
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 b

y 
30

 J
un

e 
20

12
. I

 a
im

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

m
y 

w
or

k 
an

d 
is

su
e 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

an
d 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 b
y 

30
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

10
2.

 

T
ab

le
 3

: 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 t

im
et

ab
le

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
ed

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
D

at
e

O
u

tp
u

t

In
te

rim
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

ud
it 

vi
si

t 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

12
A

ud
it 

P
la

n 

F
in

al
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

ud
it 

vi
si

t 
Ju

ne
 –

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 

V
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

 c
on

cl
us

io
n:

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
– 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 

Is
su

e 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 
B

y 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

A
ud

ito
r’s

 r
ep

or
t 

S
um

m
ar

is
e 

ov
er

al
l m

es
sa

ge
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

au
di

t 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
2

A
nn

ua
l A

ud
it 

Le
tte

r 

   A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
11

 

Page 68



T
h

e 
au

d
it

 t
ea

m
 

T
he

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

te
am

 fo
r 

th
e 

20
11

/1
2 

au
di

t a
re

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s.

 

T
ab

le
 4

: 
A

u
d

it
 t

ea
m

 

N
am

e
C

o
n

ta
ct

 d
et

ai
ls

 
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es

Jo
n 

H
ay

es
 

D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ito
r 

 

j-h
ay

es
@

au
di

t-
co

m
m

is
si

on
.g

ov
.u

k

08
44

 7
98

 2
87

7 
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t i

nc
lu

di
ng

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 

re
po

rt
s,

 s
ig

ni
ng

 th
e 

au
di

to
r’s

 r
ep

or
t a

nd
 li

ai
so

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s.
  

Ju
lia

n 
M

cG
ow

an
 

A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er
 

j-m
cg

ow
an

@
au

di
t-

co
m

m
is

si
on

.g
ov

.u
k

08
44

 7
98

 2
65

5 

M
an

ag
es

 a
nd

 c
oo

rd
in

at
es

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 e
le

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k.

 
K

ey
 p

oi
nt

 o
f c

on
ta

ct
 fo

r 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
C

or
po

ra
te

 F
in

an
ce

. 

Ja
m

es
 B

ev
er

id
ge

 

P
rin

ci
pa

l A
ud

ito
r 

j-b
ev

er
id

ge
@

au
di

t-
co

m
m

is
si

on
.g

ov
.u

k

08
44

 7
98

 2
05

4 

M
an

ag
es

 th
e 

au
di

t t
ea

m
 w

hi
ls

t o
n 

si
te

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
es

 th
e 

pr
om

pt
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

ud
it 

is
su

es
 to

 C
or

po
ra

te
 F

in
an

ce
. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
12

 

Page 69



In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 q
u

al
it

y 
In

d
ep

en
d

en
ce

 

I c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

et
hi

ca
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

P
B

 a
nd

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

nd
 o

bj
ec

tiv
ity

 a
s 

su
m

m
ar

is
ed

 in
 a

pp
en

di
x 

1.
 I 

am
 n

ot
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 th

at
 m

ig
ht

 c
on

st
itu

te
 a

 th
re

at
 to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. 

Q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 

I a
im

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 y

ou
 w

ith
 a

 fu
lly

 s
at

is
fa

ct
or

y 
au

di
t s

er
vi

ce
. I

f, 
ho

w
ev

er
, y

ou
 a

re
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 a
ny

 d
iff

ic
ul

ty
 th

ro
ug

h 
m

e 
an

d 
m

y 
te

am
 p

le
as

e 
co

nt
ac

t 
C

hr
is

 W
es

tw
oo

d,
 D

ire
ct

or
 –

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 &

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
, A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e,
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, 1
st

 F
lo

or
, M

ill
ba

nk
 T

ow
er

, M
ill

ba
nk

, L
on

do
n 

S
W

1P
 4

H
Q

  
(c

-w
es

tw
oo

d@
au

di
t-

co
m

m
is

si
on

.g
ov

.u
k)

 w
ho

 w
ill

 lo
ok

 in
to

 a
ny

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

 a
nd

 to
 d

o 
w

ha
t h

e 
ca

n 
to

 r
es

ol
ve

 th
e 

po
si

tio
n.

  

If 
yo

u 
ar

e 
st

ill
 n

ot
 s

at
is

fie
d 

yo
u 

m
ay

 o
f c

ou
rs

e 
ta

ke
 u

p 
th

e 
m

at
te

r 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

O
ffi

ce
r 

(T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, 

W
es

tw
ar

d 
H

ou
se

, L
im

e 
K

iln
 C

lo
se

, S
to

ke
 G

iff
or

d,
 B

ris
to

l B
S

34
 8

S
R

).
 

   A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
13

 

Page 70



F
ee

s
T

h
e 

sc
al

e 
fe

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
au

d
it

 is
 £

36
0,

00
0 

as
 s

et
 o

u
t 

in
 m

y 
le

tt
er

 o
f 

29
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

.  

T
h

e 
au

d
it

 f
ee

 

V
ar

ia
tio

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
sc

al
e 

fe
e 

on
ly

 o
cc

ur
 w

he
re

 m
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 o
f a

ud
it 

ris
k 

an
d 

co
m

pl
ex

ity
 a

re
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 d

iff
er

en
t f

ro
m

 th
os

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

20
10

/1
1 

fe
e.

 I 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 th

er
ef

or
e 

se
t t

he
 a

ud
it 

fe
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
fe

e 
w

hi
ch

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

a 
10

 p
er

 c
en

t 
re

du
ct

io
n 

on
 th

e 
au

di
t f

ee
 fo

r 
20

10
/1

1.
  

T
he

 s
ca

le
 fe

e 
co

ve
rs

:  
!

 
m

y 
au

di
t o

f y
ou

r 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

on
 th

e 
W

ho
le

 o
f G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
cc

ou
nt

s 
re

tu
rn

; a
nd

  
!

 
m

y 
w

or
k 

on
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
yo

ur
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 y

ou
r 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

.  

T
he

 s
ca

le
 fe

e 
re

fle
ct

s:
 

!
 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 d
ec

is
io

n 
no

t t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 fe
es

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 in

fla
tio

n;
  

!
 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

ne
w

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 lo
ca

l V
F

M
 a

ud
it 

w
or

k;
 a

nd
  

!
 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
on

e-
of

f w
or

k 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

fir
st

-t
im

e 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l F
in

an
ci

ng
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (

IF
R

S
).

  

A
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s

In
 s

et
tin

g 
th

e 
fe

e,
 I 

ha
ve

 m
ad

e 
th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 a
pp

en
di

x 
2.

 W
he

re
 th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ot

 m
et

, I
 m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 m

or
e 

w
or

k 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

au
di

t f
ee

. W
he

re
 th

is
 is

 th
e 

ca
se

, I
 w

ill
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

is
 fi

rs
t w

ith
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

I w
ill

 
is

su
e 

a 
su

pp
le

m
en

t t
o 

th
e 

pl
an

 to
 r

ec
or

d 
an

y 
re

vi
si

on
s 

to
 th

e 
ris

k 
an

d 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fe
e.

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
14

 

Page 71



S
p

ec
if

ic
 a

ct
io

n
s 

yo
u

 c
o

u
ld

 t
ak

e 
to

 r
ed

u
ce

 y
o

u
r 

au
d

it
 f

ee
 

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

m
e 

to
 in

fo
rm

 y
ou

 o
f s

pe
ci

fic
 a

ct
io

ns
 y

ou
 c

ou
ld

 ta
ke

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
yo

ur
 a

ud
it 

fe
e.

 I 
ha

ve
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ac

tio
ns

 th
at

 
yo

u 
co

ul
d 

ta
ke

: 
!

 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 d

ra
ft 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

; a
nd

 
!

 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s.
  

T
o

ta
l f

ee
s 

p
ay

ab
le

 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

fe
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t, 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 c
ha

rg
es

 fe
es

 fo
r:

 
!

 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s;

 a
nd

 
!

 
th

e 
ag

re
ed

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f n
on

-a
ud

it 
se

rv
ic

es
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

as
si

st
an

ce
 p

ow
er

s.
  

B
as

ed
 o

n 
cu

rr
en

t p
la

ns
 th

e 
fe

es
 p

ay
ab

le
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s.
 

T
ab

le
 5

: 
F

ee
s

20
11

/1
2 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 (
£)

 
20

10
/1

1 
ac

tu
al

 (
£)

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

 (
£)

 

A
ud

it 
36

0,
00

0 
40

0,
00

0
(4

0,
00

0)
 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

70
,0

00
* 

71
,0

00
(1

,0
00

) 

N
on

-a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

- 
-

- 

T
o

ta
l

43
0,

00
0

47
1,

00
0

(4
1,

00
0)

* 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

is
 c

ha
rg

ed
 o

n 
an

 h
ou

rly
 r

at
e,

 s
o 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 fe
e 

is
 a

n 
es

tim
at

e.
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
15

 

Page 72



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 
o

b
je

ct
iv

it
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

in
g 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r 
A

ud
ito

rs
. W

he
n 

au
di

tin
g 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

, a
ud

ito
rs

 m
us

t a
ls

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
iti

ng
 P

ra
ct

ic
es

 B
oa

rd
 (

A
P

B
).

 T
he

se
 

im
po

se
 s

tr
in

ge
nt

 r
ul

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 o
bj

ec
tiv

ity
 o

f a
ud

ito
rs

. T
he

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

pu
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 r
ob

us
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

es
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, o
ve

rs
ee

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
 –

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

, w
ho

 s
er

ve
s 

as
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e’
s 

E
th

ic
s 

P
ar

tn
er

. 

T
ab

le
 6

: 
In

d
ep

en
d

en
ce

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

ct
iv

it
y 

A
re

a
R

eq
u

ir
em

en
t 

H
o

w
 w

e 
co

m
p

ly
 

B
us

in
es

s,
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 

pe
rs

on
al

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

st
af

f s
ho

ul
d 

av
oi

d 
an

y 
of

fic
ia

l, 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 o

r 
pe

rs
on

al
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
, o

r 
co

ul
d 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 b

e 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

to
, c

au
se

 th
em

 in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 o

r 
un

ju
st

ifi
ab

ly
 to

 li
m

it 
th

e 
sc

op
e,

 e
xt

en
t o

r 
rig

ou
r 

of
 th

ei
r 

w
or

k 
or

 
im

pa
ir 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

ity
 o

f t
he

ir 
ju

dg
em

en
t. 

 

T
he

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

r 
an

d 
se

ni
or

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

te
am

 m
us

t 
no

t t
ak

e 
pa

rt
 in

 p
ol

iti
ca

l a
ct

iv
ity

 fo
r 

a 
po

lit
ic

al
 p

ar
ty

, o
r 

sp
ec

ia
l 

in
te

re
st

 g
ro

up
, w

ho
se

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 r

el
at

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 to

 th
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 o
f 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t o

r 
N

H
S

 b
od

ie
s 

in
 g

en
er

al
, o

r 
to

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t o
r 

N
H

S
 b

od
y.

  

A
ll 

au
di

t s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
ec

la
re

 a
ll 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
th

re
at

s 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. D
et

ai
ls

 o
f d

ec
la

ra
tio

ns
 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 a
ud

ito
rs

. W
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, s

ta
ff 

ar
e 

ex
cl

ud
ed

 fr
om

 e
ng

ag
em

en
ts

 
or

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
s 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
th

re
at

 to
 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 to
 a

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
ly

 lo
w

 le
ve

l. 
 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
16

 

Page 73



 

A
re

a
R

eq
u

ir
em

en
t 

H
o

w
 w

e 
co

m
p

ly
 

Lo
ng

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
ud

it 
cl

ie
nt

s 
T

he
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 a
ud

ito
r 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t s
ho

ul
d,

 in
 a

ll 
bu

t 
th

e 
m

os
t e

xc
ep

tio
na

l c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s,
 b

e 
ch

an
ge

d 
at

 le
as

t o
nc

e 
ev

er
y 

se
ve

n 
ye

ar
s,

 w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

re
at

s 
to

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

fte
r 

fiv
e 

ye
ar

s.
  

T
he

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

rs
 a

 
ce

nt
ra

l d
at

ab
as

e 
of

 a
ss

ig
nm

en
t o

f a
ud

ito
rs

 a
nd

 
se

ni
or

 a
ud

it 
st

af
f t

o 
en

su
re

 th
is

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t i
s 

m
et

. 

G
ift

s 
an

d 
ho

sp
ita

lit
y 

T
he

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

r 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

it 
te

am
 m

us
t a

bi
de

 
by

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 p

ol
ic

y 
on

 g
ift

s,
 h

os
pi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
en

te
rt

ai
nm

en
t. 

A
ll 

au
di

t s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
ec

la
re

 a
ny

 g
ift

s 
or

 
ho

sp
ita

lit
y 

irr
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

of
 w

he
th

er
 o

r 
no

t t
he

y 
ar

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
. G

ift
s 

an
d 

H
os

pi
ta

lit
y 

m
ay

 o
nl

y 
be

 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 w

ith
 li

ne
 m

an
ag

er
 a

pp
ro

va
l. 

 

N
on

-a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t p
er

fo
rm

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k 

fo
r 

an
 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

 (
th

at
 is

 w
or

k 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

m
in

im
um

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

ei
r 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s)
 if

 it
 w

ou
ld

 c
om

pr
om

is
e 

th
ei

r 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 o

r 
m

ig
ht

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
a 

re
as

on
ab

le
 p

er
ce

pt
io

n 
th

at
 th

ei
r 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
. 

A
ud

ito
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t a

cc
ep

t e
ng

ag
em

en
ts

 th
at

 in
vo

lv
e 

co
m

m
en

tin
g 

on
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f o
th

er
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 o
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 w
or

k 
w

ith
ou

t f
irs

t c
on

su
lti

ng
 th

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

W
or

k 
ov

er
 a

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
va

lu
e 

m
us

t o
nl

y 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
io

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

ud
it 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n.

  

A
ll 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
th

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 –
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
, t

o 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 is

 n
ot

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 

 

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e,

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 S

ta
nd

in
g 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
an

d 
A

P
B

 E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
17

 

Page 74



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 B
as

is
 f

o
r 

fe
e 

 
 

 
In

 s
et

tin
g 

th
e 

fe
e,

 I 
ha

ve
 a

ss
um

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g.

 
!

 
T

he
 r

is
k 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 is

 n
ot

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 d
iff

er
en

t t
o 

th
at

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 
20

10
/1

1.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
ar

e 
op

er
at

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y.

 
!

 
T

he
 r

is
k 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 m

y 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
is

 n
ot

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 d
iff

er
en

t t
o 

th
at

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 
20

10
/1

1.
 

!
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
m

ee
ts

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l s
ta

nd
ar

ds
. 

!
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
un

de
rt

ak
es

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 w

or
k 

on
 a

ll 
sy

st
em

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

at
er

ia
l f

ig
ur

es
 in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
on

 w
hi

ch
 I 

ca
n 

re
ly

. 
!

 
T

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

pr
ov

id
es

:  
!

go
od

 q
ua

lit
y 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

an
d 

re
co

rd
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

xt
 o

f t
he

 o
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 b
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 b
y 

30
 J

un
e 

20
12

;  
!

ot
he

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
es

te
d 

w
ith

in
 a

gr
ee

d 
tim

es
ca

le
s;

 a
nd

 
!

pr
om

pt
 r

es
po

ns
es

 to
 d

ra
ft 

re
po

rt
s.

 
!

 
T

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

qu
es

tio
ns

 a
sk

ed
 o

r 
ob

je
ct

io
ns

 m
ad

e 
by

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t e

le
ct

or
s.

 

W
he

re
 th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ot

 m
et

, I
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 m
or

e 
w

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
au

di
t f

ee
.  

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
18

 

Page 75



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 A
u

d
it

o
r 

q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
to

 m
an

ag
em

en
t

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f I

S
A

 (
U

K
&

I)
 2

40
, 2

60
 a

nd
 3

15
 to

 u
pd

at
e 

m
y 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 

an
nu

al
ly

, i
n 

re
sp

ec
t o

f t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y,
 H

am
m

er
sm

ith
 &

 F
ul

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
an

d 
W

or
m

w
oo

d 
S

cr
ub

s 
C

ha
rit

ab
le

 T
ru

st
, I

 r
eq

ue
st

 th
at

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
re

sp
on

se
s 

to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

qu
es

tio
ns

.  
!

 
W

ha
t a

re
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

: 
!

un
de

rt
ak

in
g 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f t

he
 r

is
k 

th
at

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 m

is
st

at
ed

 d
ue

 to
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

na
tu

re
, 

ex
te

nt
 a

nd
 fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

of
 th

es
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

);
  

!
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
nd

 r
es

po
nd

in
g 

to
 r

is
ks

 o
f f

ra
ud

 in
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
ny

 s
pe

ci
fic

 r
is

ks
 o

f f
ra

ud
 w

hi
ch

 m
an

ag
em

en
t h

av
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
or

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 b

ro
ug

ht
 to

 it
s 

at
te

nt
io

n,
 o

r 
cl

as
se

s 
of

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

, a
cc

ou
nt

 b
al

an
ce

s,
 o

r 
di

sc
lo

su
re

 fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 a

 r
is

k 
of

 fr
au

d 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 e
xi

st
;  

!
co

m
m

un
ic

at
in

g 
to

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

its
 v

ie
w

s 
on

 b
us

in
es

s 
pr

ac
tic

e 
an

d 
et

hi
ca

l b
eh

av
io

r 
(f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

by
 u

pd
at

in
g,

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

in
g 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
co

de
 o

f c
on

du
ct

);
 a

nd
 

!
co

m
m

un
ic

at
in

g 
to

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
fo

r 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
nd

 r
es

po
nd

in
g 

to
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

.  
!

 
H

ow
 d

oe
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t g

ai
n 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
om

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
? 

 
!

 
H

av
e 

th
er

e 
be

en
 a

ny
 in

st
an

ce
s 

of
 n

on
-c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
du

rin
g 

20
11

/1
2?

 
!

 
A

re
 th

er
e 

an
y 

ac
tu

al
 o

r 
po

te
nt

ia
l l

iti
ga

tio
n 

or
 c

la
im

s 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 a
ffe

ct
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
? 

 
!

 
W

ha
t c

on
tr

ol
s 

do
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
: i

de
nt

ify
; a

ut
ho

ris
e;

 a
pp

ro
ve

; a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r;

 a
nd

 d
is

cl
os

e,
 r

el
at

ed
 p

ar
ty

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
? 

F
or

 a
ny

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 n
ew

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

tie
s 

(ie
 a

ny
 n

ot
 a

lre
ad

y 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

in
 y

ou
r 

ye
ar

-e
nd

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

au
di

te
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

) 
pl

ea
se

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 li

st
 o

f 
th

em
, e

xp
la

in
 th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
se

, a
nd

 w
he

th
er

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
en

te
re

d 
in

to
 a

ny
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 w

ith
 th

es
e 

re
la

te
d 

pa
rt

ie
s 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 to

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2.

 
!

 
A

re
 y

ou
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 in
st

an
ce

s 
of

 a
ct

ua
l, 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
or

 a
lle

ge
d 

fr
au

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
1 

A
pr

il 
20

11
 –

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2?

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
19

 

Page 76



!
 

D
o 

yo
u 

su
sp

ec
t f

ra
ud

 m
ay

 b
e 

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y?
 

!
H

av
e 

yo
u 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

y 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
fr

au
d 

ris
ks

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y?

 
!

D
o 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
ny

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
in

 y
ou

r 
au

th
or

ity
 th

at
 a

re
 a

t r
is

k 
of

 fr
au

d?
 

!
A

re
 th

er
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 w
he

re
 fr

au
d 

is
 m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 o
cc

ur
? 

!
 

A
re

 y
ou

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
se

gr
eg

at
io

n 
of

 d
ut

ie
s,

 e
xi

st
 a

nd
 w

or
k 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y?

 
!

If 
no

t w
he

re
 a

re
 th

e 
ris

k 
ar

ea
s?

 
!

W
ha

t o
th

er
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 h

el
p 

pr
ev

en
t, 

de
te

r 
or

 d
et

ec
t f

ra
ud

? 
!

 
H

ow
 d

o 
yo

u 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

st
af

f t
o 

re
po

rt
 th

ei
r 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 fr

au
d?

 
!

W
ha

t c
on

ce
rn

s 
ab

ou
t f

ra
ud

 a
re

 s
ta

ff 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 r
ep

or
t?

 
!

 
F

ro
m

 a
 fr

au
d 

an
d 

co
rr

up
tio

n 
pe

rs
pe

ct
iv

e,
 w

ha
t a

re
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
to

 b
e 

hi
gh

 r
is

k 
po

st
s 

w
ith

in
 y

ou
r 

au
th

or
ity

? 
!

H
ow

 a
re

 th
e 

ris
ks

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 th
es

e 
po

st
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d,
 a

ss
es

se
d 

an
d 

m
an

ag
ed

? 
!

 
A

re
 y

ou
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 o
r 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 th
at

 c
ou

ld
 g

iv
e 

ris
e 

to
 in

st
an

ce
s 

of
 fr

au
d?

 
!

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u 

m
iti

ga
te

 th
e 

ris
ks

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 fr
au

d 
re

la
te

d 
to

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 a
nd

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

? 
!

 
A

re
 y

ou
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 e
nt

rie
s 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
re

co
rd

s 
of

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 th
at

 y
ou

 b
el

ie
ve

 o
r 

su
sp

ec
t a

re
 fa

ls
e 

or
 in

te
nt

io
na

lly
 m

is
le

ad
in

g?
 

!
A

re
 th

er
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 b

al
an

ce
s 

w
he

re
 fr

au
d 

is
 m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 o
cc

ur
? 

!
A

re
 y

ou
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 a
ss

et
s,

 li
ab

ili
tie

s 
or

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 th
at

 y
ou

 b
el

ie
ve

 w
er

e 
im

pr
op

er
ly

 in
cl

ud
ed

 o
r 

om
itt

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 o

f t
he

 a
ut

ho
rit

y?
 

!
C

ou
ld

 a
 fa

ls
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
en

tr
y 

es
ca

pe
 d

et
ec

tio
n?

 If
 s

o,
 h

ow
? 

!
A

re
 th

er
e 

an
y 

ex
te

rn
al

 fr
au

d 
ris

k 
fa

ct
or

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 b

en
ef

its
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 o
r 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 ta
x 

re
ve

nu
es

, w
hi

ch
 a

re
 h

ig
h 

ris
k 

of
 fr

au
d?

 
!

 
A

re
 y

ou
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l, 

or
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
re

ss
ur

e 
to

 m
ee

t f
in

an
ci

al
 o

r 
op

er
at

in
g 

ta
rg

et
s?

 
!

A
re

 y
ou

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l o
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

re
ss

ur
e 

be
in

g 
ap

pl
ie

d,
 o

r 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

 o
ffe

re
d,

 to
 y

ou
 o

r 
co

lle
ag

ue
s 

to
 m

ee
t 

fin
an

ci
al

 o
r 

op
er

at
in

g 
ta

rg
et

s?
 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
20

 

Page 77



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 4
 –

 A
u

d
it

o
r 

q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
to

 t
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f I

S
A

 (
U

K
&

I)
 2

40
, 2

60
 a

nd
 3

15
 to

 u
pd

at
e 

m
y 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 h
ow

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 g
ai

ns
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
ve

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y,
 H

am
m

er
sm

ith
 &

 F
ul

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
an

d 
W

or
m

w
oo

d 
S

cr
ub

s 
C

ha
rit

ab
le

 T
ru

st
, 

I r
eq

ue
st

 th
at

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 r

es
po

ns
es

 to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

qu
es

tio
ns

. 
!

 
H

ow
 d

o 
yo

u 
ex

er
ci

se
 o

ve
rs

ig
ht

 o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t's
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
: 

!
un

de
rt

ak
in

g 
an

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 r
is

k 
th

at
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

at
er

ia
lly

 m
is

st
at

ed
 d

ue
 to

 fr
au

d 
or

 e
rr

or
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
na

tu
re

, 
ex

te
nt

 a
nd

 fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
of

 th
es

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
);

  
!

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 a

nd
 r

es
po

nd
in

g 
to

 r
is

ks
 o

f f
ra

ud
 in

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

ny
 s

pe
ci

fic
 r

is
ks

 o
f f

ra
ud

 w
hi

ch
 m

an
ag

em
en

t h
av

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

or
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 b
ro

ug
ht

 to
 it

s 
at

te
nt

io
n,

 o
r 

cl
as

se
s 

of
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
, a

cc
ou

nt
 b

al
an

ce
s,

 o
r 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 a
 r

is
k 

of
 fr

au
d 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 e

xi
st

;  
!

co
m

m
un

ic
at

in
g 

to
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
its

 v
ie

w
 o

n 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

an
d 

et
hi

ca
l b

eh
av

io
r 

(f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
by

 u
pd

at
in

g,
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
in

g 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

co
de

 o
f c

on
du

ct
);

 a
nd

  
!

co
m

m
un

ic
at

in
g 

to
 y

ou
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

fo
r 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 a

nd
 r

es
po

nd
in

g 
to

 fr
au

d 
or

 e
rr

or
. 

!
 

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u 

ov
er

se
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
es

 fo
r 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 a

nd
 r

es
po

nd
in

g 
to

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 fr

au
d 

an
d 

po
ss

ib
le

 b
re

ac
he

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

? 
A

re
 y

ou
 

aw
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 b
re

ac
he

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 d
ur

in
g 

20
11

/1
2?

 
!

 
H

ow
 d

o 
yo

u 
ga

in
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 th
at

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

? 
A

re
 y

ou
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 in
st

an
ce

s 
of

 n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

du
rin

g 
20

11
/1

2?
 

!
 

A
re

 y
ou

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 a

ct
ua

l o
r 

po
te

nt
ia

l l
iti

ga
tio

n 
or

 c
la

im
s 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

? 
!

 
H

av
e 

yo
u 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t a

 p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f t
he

 g
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
an

d 
if 

so
 h

av
e 

yo
u 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

y 
ev

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 c

as
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
do

ub
t o

n 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
’s

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 a

s 
a 

go
in

g 
co

nc
er

n?
 

!
 

A
re

 y
ou

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 in

st
an

ce
s 

of
 a

ct
ua

l, 
su

sp
ec

te
d 

or
 a

lle
ge

d 
fr

au
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

1 
A

pr
il 

20
11

 –
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2?
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
21

 

Page 78



!
 

D
o 

yo
u 

su
sp

ec
t f

ra
ud

 m
ay

 b
e 

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

? 
!

H
av

e 
yo

u 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
y 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

fr
au

d 
ris

ks
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

? 
!

D
o 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
ny

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
in

 y
ou

r 
au

th
or

ity
 th

at
 a

re
 a

t r
is

k 
of

 fr
au

d?
 

!
A

re
 th

er
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 w
he

re
 fr

au
d 

is
 m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 o
cc

ur
? 

!
 

A
re

 y
ou

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
se

gr
eg

at
io

n 
of

 d
ut

ie
s,

 e
xi

st
 a

nd
 w

or
k 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y?

 
!

If 
no

t w
he

re
 a

re
 th

e 
ris

k 
ar

ea
s?

 
!

W
ha

t o
th

er
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 h

el
p 

pr
ev

en
t, 

de
te

r 
or

 d
et

ec
t f

ra
ud

? 
!

 
H

ow
 d

o 
yo

u 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

st
af

f t
o 

re
po

rt
 th

ei
r 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 fr

au
d?

 
!

W
ha

t c
on

ce
rn

s 
ab

ou
t f

ra
ud

 a
re

 s
ta

ff 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 r
ep

or
t?

 
!

 
F

ro
m

 a
 fr

au
d 

an
d 

co
rr

up
tio

n 
pe

rs
pe

ct
iv

e,
 w

ha
t a

re
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
to

 b
e 

hi
gh

 r
is

k 
po

st
s 

w
ith

in
 y

ou
r 

au
th

or
ity

? 
!

H
ow

 a
re

 th
e 

ris
ks

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 th
es

e 
po

st
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d,
 a

ss
es

se
d 

an
d 

m
an

ag
ed

? 
!

 
A

re
 y

ou
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 o
r 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 th
at

 c
ou

ld
 g

iv
e 

ris
e 

to
 in

st
an

ce
s 

of
 fr

au
d?

 
!

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u 

m
iti

ga
te

 th
e 

ris
ks

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 fr
au

d 
re

la
te

d 
to

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 a
nd

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

? 
!

 
A

re
 y

ou
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 e
nt

rie
s 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
re

co
rd

s 
of

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 th
at

 y
ou

 b
el

ie
ve

 o
r 

su
sp

ec
t a

re
 fa

ls
e 

or
 in

te
nt

io
na

lly
 m

is
le

ad
in

g?
 

!
A

re
 th

er
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 b

al
an

ce
s 

w
he

re
 fr

au
d 

is
 m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 o
cc

ur
? 

!
A

re
 y

ou
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 a
ss

et
s,

 li
ab

ili
tie

s 
or

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 th
at

 y
ou

 b
el

ie
ve

 w
er

e 
im

pr
op

er
ly

 in
cl

ud
ed

 o
r 

om
itt

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 o

f t
he

 a
ut

ho
rit

y?
 

!
C

ou
ld

 a
 fa

ls
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
en

tr
y 

es
ca

pe
 d

et
ec

tio
n?

 If
 s

o,
 h

ow
? 

!
A

re
 th

er
e 

an
y 

ex
te

rn
al

 fr
au

d 
ris

k 
fa

ct
or

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 b

en
ef

its
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 o
r 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 ta
x 

re
ve

nu
es

, w
hi

ch
 a

re
 h

ig
h 

ris
k 

of
 fr

au
d?

 
!

 
A

re
 y

ou
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l, 

or
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
re

ss
ur

e 
to

 m
ee

t f
in

an
ci

al
 o

r 
op

er
at

in
g 

ta
rg

et
s?

 
!

A
re

 y
ou

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l o
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

re
ss

ur
e 

be
in

g 
ap

pl
ie

d,
 o

r 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

 o
ffe

re
d,

 to
 y

ou
 o

r 
co

lle
ag

ue
s 

to
 m

ee
t 

fin
an

ci
al

 o
r 

op
er

at
in

g 
ta

rg
et

s?
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
22

 

Page 79



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 5
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y
A

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

th
at

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 p
re

pa
re

, w
hi

ch
 r

ep
or

t t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

A
ud

it 
(E

ng
la

nd
) 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
01

1 
an

d 
th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. 

A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
 

R
ep

or
t i

ss
ue

d 
by

 th
e 

au
di

to
r 

to
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

af
te

r 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

au
di

t t
ha

t s
um

m
ar

is
es

 th
e 

au
di

t w
or

k 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
n 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
an

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
is

su
es

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 a
ud

ito
rs

’ w
or

k.
  

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
 

T
he

 a
ud

ito
r’s

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
m

at
te

rs
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 th

os
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
au

di
to

r 
is

su
es

 th
ei

r 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

. 

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t o
n 

th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

sy
st

em
s 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 th

at
 s

up
po

rt
s 

th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

po
lic

ie
s 

ai
m

s 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

.

A
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts

T
he

 a
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 o
f a

n 
au

di
te

d 
bo

dy
 c

om
pr

is
es

 a
ll 

w
or

k 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t b
y 

an
 a

ud
ito

r 
un

de
r 

th
e 

C
od

e 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

ir 
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

un
de

r 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8.
  

A
u

d
it

ed
 b

o
d

y 
 

A
 b

od
y 

to
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

ap
po

in
tin

g 
th

e 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

r.
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
23

 

Page 80



A
u

d
it

in
g

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

o
ar

d
 (

A
P

B
)

T
he

 b
od

y 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

U
K

 fo
r 

is
su

in
g 

au
di

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 to
 a

ud
ito

rs
. I

ts
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
re

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

hi
gh

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f a
ud

iti
ng

 th
at

 m
ee

t t
he

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 u
se

rs
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pu
bl

ic
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 in
 th

e 
au

di
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
  

A
u

d
it

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s

P
ro

no
un

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

P
B

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

 b
as

ic
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 a
nd

 e
ss

en
tia

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

w
ith

 w
hi

ch
 a

ud
ito

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

 in
 

th
e 

au
di

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
.  

A
u

d
it

o
r(

s)

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

.  

C
o

d
e 

(t
h

e)

T
he

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t b

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 P

ar
lia

m
en

t. 
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 (
th

e)

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 fo

r 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

 in
 E

ng
la

nd
.  

E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s

P
ro

no
un

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

P
B

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

 b
as

ic
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, i
nt

eg
rit

y 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
ity

 th
at

 a
pp

ly
 to

 th
e 

co
nd

uc
t o

f a
ud

its
 a

nd
 w

ith
 

w
hi

ch
 a

ud
ito

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

.  

G
ro

u
p

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

  

C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 o

f a
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
an

d 
its

 s
ub

si
di

ar
ie

s,
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

s 
an

d 
jo

in
tly

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d 

en
tit

ie
s.

 

In
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l

T
he

 w
ho

le
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f c
on

tr
ol

s,
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 o

th
er

w
is

e,
 th

at
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

es
ta

bl
is

he
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

of
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 
op

er
at

io
ns

, i
nt

er
na

l f
in

an
ci

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
.  

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
24

 

Page 81



M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

 

T
he

 A
P

B
 d

ef
in

es
 th

is
 c

on
ce

pt
 a

s 
‘a

n 
ex

pr
es

si
on

 o
f t

he
 r

el
at

iv
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

or
 im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 m

at
te

r 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
. A

 m
at

te
r 

is
 m

at
er

ia
l i

f i
ts

 o
m

is
si

on
 w

ou
ld

 r
ea

so
na

bl
y 

in
flu

en
ce

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

s 
of

 a
n 

ad
dr

es
se

e 
of

 th
e 

au
di

to
r’s

 r
ep

or
t; 

lik
ew

is
e 

a 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t i

s 
m

at
er

ia
l i

f i
t w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

si
m

ila
r 

in
flu

en
ce

. M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f a

ny
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
rim

ar
y 

st
at

em
en

t w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

 it
em

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
em

. M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

is
 n

ot
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f g
en

er
al

 m
at

he
m

at
ic

al
 d

ef
in

iti
on

, a
s 

it 
ha

s 
bo

th
 q

ua
lit

at
iv

e 
an

d 
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e 
as

pe
ct

s’
.  

T
he

 te
rm

 ‘m
at

er
ia

lit
y’

 a
pp

lie
s 

on
ly

 to
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
av

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
du

tie
s 

un
de

r 
st

at
ut

e,
 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 g
iv

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 d

o 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

af
fe

ct
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
.  

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

ce

T
he

 c
on

ce
pt

 o
f ‘

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e’

 a
pp

lie
s 

to
 th

es
e 

w
id

er
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
au

di
to

rs
 a

do
pt

 a
 le

ve
l o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 th
at

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
le

ve
l 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 th

ei
r 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. S
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 h
as

 b
ot

h 
qu

al
ita

tiv
e 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s.

  

T
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 

T
ho

se
 e

nt
ru

st
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n,

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 T

hi
s 

te
rm

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

an
d 

its
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts

A
 p

ro
je

ct
 le

ad
in

g 
to

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
on

so
lid

at
ed

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

U
K

 p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
on

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
. T

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

m
us

t s
ub

m
it 

a 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

pa
ck

 to
 th

e 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t f
or

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t w
hi

ch
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n,
 b

ut
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

fr
om

, i
ts

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. 

    A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
25

 

Page 82



If 
yo

u 
re

qu
ire

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t i

n 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

r 
in

 a
 la

ng
ua

ge
 o

th
er

 th
an

 E
ng

lis
h,

 p
le

as
e 

ca
ll:

  
08

44
 7

98
 7

07
0 

©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 a
ud

ito
rs

 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. R
ep

or
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 n

on
-e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
 o

r 
of

fic
er

s.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

cc
ep

t n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

: 
!

 
an

y 
di

re
ct

or
/m

em
be

r 
or

 o
ffi

ce
r 

in
 th

ei
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
; o

r 
 

!
 

an
y 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
.  

            

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

 

  

Page 83



 

 

AUDIT AND 
PENSIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 

Audit Commission 
Pension Fund Audit Opinion Plan 2011-12 
 
This plan sets out the external audit work that 
the Audit Commission proposes to undertake for 
the audit of the Pension Fund financial 
statements 2011-12. 
 
 
 
 

 WARDS 
 All 

 
  RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
1. To note the content of the report 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 84



  A
u

d
it

 p
la

n
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
H

am
m

er
sm

it
h

 a
n

d
 F

u
lh

am
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

  

A
u

d
it

 2
01

1/
12

 

Page 85



C
o

n
te

n
ts

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

3

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.5

M
ile

st
o

n
es

 a
n

d
 d

ea
d

lin
es

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.7

T
h

e 
au

d
it

 t
ea

m
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.8

In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 q
u

al
it

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
9

F
ee

s
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
0

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
ct

iv
it

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..1
2

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 B
as

is
 f

o
r 

fe
e

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.1

4

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
5

       

Page 86



In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

T
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
’s

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

o
f 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 o
f 

A
u

d
it

o
rs

 a
n

d
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
ed

 B
o

d
ie

s 
se

ts
 

o
u

t 
th

e 
re

sp
ec

ti
ve

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
o

r 
an

d
 t

h
e 

au
d

it
ed

 b
o

d
y.

 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

se
ts

 o
ut

 th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 is

su
ed

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t t
o 

yo
u.

  

T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t s

um
m

ar
is

es
 w

he
re

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

ite
d 

bo
dy

 b
eg

in
 a

nd
 e

nd
 a

nd
 I 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
m

y 
au

di
t w

or
k 

to
 

m
ee

t t
he

se
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s.
 

I c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 g

ov
er

ni
ng

 m
y 

au
di

t w
or

k,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
: 

!
 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8;

 a
nd

  
!

 
th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e.
  

M
y 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 d
oe

s 
no

t r
el

ie
ve

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

r 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

an
d 

P
en

si
on

s 
C

om
m

itt
ee

, a
s 

th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e,
 o

f t
he

ir 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 

A
ud

iti
ng

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 r

eq
ui

re
 m

e 
to

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
w

ith
 y

ou
 th

e 
pl

an
 fo

r 
th

e 
au

di
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

os
e 

ar
ea

s 
vi

ew
ed

 a
s 

hi
gh

es
t r

is
k.

 I 
ha

ve
 th

er
ef

or
e 

se
t o

ut
 th

e 
au

di
t r

is
ks

 a
nd

 th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 I 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 fo

r 
th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 2
01

1/
12

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 a
nd

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 a

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t. 

M
ile

st
o

n
es

 a
n

d
 d

ea
d

lin
es

, t
h

e 
au

d
it

 t
ea

m
, i

n
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 q
u

al
it

y 

I h
av

e 
se

t o
ut

 th
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

tim
et

ab
le

 a
nd

 o
ut

pu
ts

 fr
om

 2
01

1/
12

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k.

 I 
al

so
 c

on
fir

m
 th

e 
au

di
t t

ea
m

 is
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t a
nd

 s
et

 o
ut

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

m
ee

ts
 q

ua
lit

y 
st

an
da

rd
s.

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
3

 

Page 87



F
ee

s

T
he

 fe
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t i
s 

£3
5,

00
0 

w
hi

ch
 is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
fe

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r.

 T
he

 fe
e 

ha
s 

no
t c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 it
 w

as
 o

rig
in

al
ly

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
 

to
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

. 

               A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
4

 

Page 88



A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 

P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 
I w

ill
 c

ar
ry

 o
u

t 
th

e 
au

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

cl
u

d
ed

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

o
f 

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

o
n

 A
u

d
it

in
g

 (
U

K
 a

n
d

 Ir
el

an
d

) 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

in
g

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

o
ar

d
 (

A
P

B
).

 I 
al

so
 r

ep
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

cl
u

d
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

. I
 a

m
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 is
su

e 
au

d
it

 r
ep

o
rt

s 
g

iv
in

g
 m

y 
o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 w
h

et
h

er
 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

u
e 

an
d

 f
ai

r.

M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

 

I w
ill

 a
pp

ly
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

t o
f m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
in

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
m

y 
au

di
t, 

in
 e

va
lu

at
in

g 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f a

ny
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
, a

nd
 in

 fo
rm

in
g 

m
y 

op
in

io
n.

  

Id
en

ti
fy

in
g

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

ks
  

I g
ai

n 
an

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

ris
k 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t (

w
he

th
er

 d
ue

 to
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

) 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
 d

o 
th

is
 b

y:
 

!
 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 r

is
ks

 fa
ci

ng
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
as

se
ss

in
g 

yo
ur

 o
w

n 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
; 

!
 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y;

  
!

 
as

se
ss

in
g 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 

th
e 

IT
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it;
 a

nd
  

!
 

as
se

ss
in

g 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

t a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s.

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
5

 

Page 89



I h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
is

ks
 th

at
 a

re
 r

el
ev

an
t t

o 
th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

se
t t

he
se

 o
ut

 b
el

ow
.  

T
ab

le
 1

: 
A

u
d

it
 r

is
ks

 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

C
h

an
g

e 
in

 p
en

si
o

n
s 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 p
ro

vi
d

er
 

In
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
1 

th
e 

ca
bi

ne
t a

w
ar

de
d 

th
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

pe
ns

io
n 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
to

 C
ap

ita
 H

ar
ts

he
ad

 L
td

 
re

pl
ac

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

or
s 

th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 T

he
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 p
ro

vi
de

r 
w

ill
 r

eq
ui

re
 u

s 
to

 g
ai

n 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

ov
er

 
th

is
 n

ew
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t s
er

vi
ce

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l. 

I w
ill

 r
el

y 
on

 e
xt

er
na

l a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

ov
er

 th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
fr

om
 L

on
do

n 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
au

di
to

rs
 fo

r 
th

e 
fir

st
 s

ev
en

 m
on

th
s 

of
 th

e 
ye

ar
, a

nd
 

C
ap

ita
’s

 a
ud

ito
rs

 fo
r 

th
e 

fin
al

 fi
ve

 m
on

th
s 

of
 th

e 
ye

ar
. W

he
re

 th
es

e 
as

su
ra

nc
es

 in
di

ca
te

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 r

is
ks

, I
 w

ill
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 te

st
in

g 
as

 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

T
es

ti
n

g
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

 

M
y 

au
di

t w
ill

 in
vo

lv
e:

 
!

 
pl

ac
in

g 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
y 

fo
r 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
n 

of
 p

en
si

on
s 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 li

ab
ili

tie
s;

  
!

 
pl

ac
in

g 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 c
us

to
di

an
 to

 c
on

fir
m

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

; a
nd

 
!

 
su

bs
ta

nt
iv

e 
te

st
s 

of
 d

et
ai

l o
f t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

on
 a

ll 
m

at
er

ia
l b

al
an

ce
s.

 

T
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 b
y 

30
 J

un
e 

20
12

. I
 a

im
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
m

y 
w

or
k 

an
d 

is
su

e 
m

y 
op

in
io

n 
by

  
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

. I
 w

ill
 a

gr
ee

 w
ith

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

en
tr

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
.  

P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 

I w
ill

 a
ls

o 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d’
s 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t p
re

pa
re

d 
un

de
r 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

34
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t P

en
si

on
 S

ch
em

e 
(A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n)
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

00
8.

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
6

 

Page 90



M
ile

st
o

n
es

 a
n

d
 d

ea
d

lin
es

 
T

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 p

re
pa

re
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 b

y 
30

 J
un

e 
20

12
. I

 a
im

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

m
y 

w
or

k 
an

d 
is

su
e 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 b

y 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

.  

T
ab

le
 2

: 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 t

im
et

ab
le

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
ed

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
D

at
e

O
u

tp
u

t

In
te

rim
 p

en
si

on
s 

au
di

t v
is

it 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

12
A

ud
it 

P
la

n 

F
in

al
 p

en
si

on
s 

au
di

t v
is

it 
Ju

ne
 –

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 

Is
su

e 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 o
f P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t 
B

y 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

A
ud

ito
r’s

 r
ep

or
t 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
7

 

Page 91



T
h

e 
au

d
it

 t
ea

m
 

T
he

 k
ey

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

te
am

 fo
r 

th
e 

20
11

/1
2 

au
di

t a
re

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s.

 

T
ab

le
 3

: 
A

u
d

it
 t

ea
m

 

N
am

e
C

o
n

ta
ct

 d
et

ai
ls

 
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es

Jo
n 

H
ay

es
 

D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ito
r 

 

j-h
ay

es
@

au
di

t-
co

m
m

is
si

on
.g

ov
.u

k

08
44

 7
98

 2
87

7 
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t i

nc
lu

di
ng

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 

re
po

rt
s,

 s
ig

ni
ng

 th
e 

au
di

to
r’s

 r
ep

or
t a

nd
 li

ai
so

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s.
  

Ju
lia

n 
M

cG
ow

an
 

A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er
 

j-m
cg

ow
an

@
au

di
t-

co
m

m
is

si
on

.g
ov

.u
k

08
44

 7
98

 2
65

5 

M
an

ag
es

 a
nd

 c
oo

rd
in

at
es

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 e
le

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k.

 
K

ey
 p

oi
nt

 o
f c

on
ta

ct
 fo

r 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
C

or
po

ra
te

 F
in

an
ce

. 

Ja
m

es
 B

ev
er

id
ge

 

P
rin

ci
pa

l A
ud

ito
r 

j-b
ev

er
id

ge
@

au
di

t-
co

m
m

is
si

on
.g

ov
.u

k

08
44

 7
98

 2
05

4 

M
an

ag
es

 th
e 

au
di

t t
ea

m
 w

hi
ls

t o
n 

si
te

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
es

 th
e 

pr
om

pt
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

ud
it 

is
su

es
 to

 C
or

po
ra

te
 F

in
an

ce
. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
8

 

Page 92



In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 q
u

al
it

y 
In

d
ep

en
d

en
ce

 

I c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

et
hi

ca
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

P
B

 a
nd

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

nd
 o

bj
ec

tiv
ity

 a
s 

su
m

m
ar

is
ed

 in
 a

pp
en

di
x 

1.
 I 

am
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
th

at
 m

ig
ht

 c
on

st
itu

te
 a

 th
re

at
 to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 th
at

 I 
am

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
yo

u.
 I 

am
 n

ot
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 th

at
 m

ig
ht

 c
on

st
itu

te
 a

 th
re

at
 to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. 

Q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 

I a
im

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 y

ou
 w

ith
 a

 fu
lly

 s
at

is
fa

ct
or

y 
au

di
t s

er
vi

ce
. I

f, 
ho

w
ev

er
, y

ou
 a

re
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 a
ny

 d
iff

ic
ul

ty
 th

ro
ug

h 
m

e 
an

d 
m

y 
te

am
 p

le
as

e 
co

nt
ac

t 
C

hr
is

 W
es

tw
oo

d,
 D

ire
ct

or
 –

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 &

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
, A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e,
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, 1
st

 F
lo

or
, M

ill
ba

nk
 T

ow
er

, M
ill

ba
nk

, L
on

do
n 

S
W

1P
 4

H
Q

  
(c

-w
es

tw
oo

d@
au

di
t-

co
m

m
is

si
on

.g
ov

.u
k)

 w
ho

 w
ill

 lo
ok

 in
to

 a
ny

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

 a
nd

 to
 d

o 
w

ha
t h

e 
ca

n 
to

 r
es

ol
ve

 th
e 

po
si

tio
n.

  

If 
yo

u 
ar

e 
st

ill
 n

ot
 s

at
is

fie
d 

yo
u 

m
ay

 o
f c

ou
rs

e 
ta

ke
 u

p 
th

e 
m

at
te

r 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

O
ffi

ce
r 

(T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, 

W
es

tw
ar

d 
H

ou
se

, L
im

e 
K

iln
 C

lo
se

, S
to

ke
 G

iff
or

d,
 B

ris
to

l B
S

34
 8

S
R

).
 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
9

 

Page 93



F
ee

s
T

h
e 

fe
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
d

it
 is

 £
35

,0
00

 a
s 

se
t 

o
u

t 
in

 m
y 

le
tt

er
 o

f 
28

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

11
. 

T
h

e 
au

d
it

 f
ee

 

V
ar

ia
tio

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
sc

al
e 

fe
e 

on
ly

 o
cc

ur
 w

he
re

 m
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 o
f a

ud
it 

ris
k 

an
d 

co
m

pl
ex

ity
 a

re
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 d

iff
er

en
t f

ro
m

 th
os

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

20
10

/1
1 

fe
e.

 I 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 th

er
ef

or
e 

se
t t

he
 a

ud
it 

fe
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
fe

e 
an

d 
th

e 
au

di
t f

ee
 fo

r 
20

10
/1

1.
  

T
he

 s
ca

le
 fe

e 
co

ve
rs

:  
!

 
m

y 
au

di
t o

f y
ou

r 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
  

!
 

m
y 

w
or

k 
on

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t. 
 

T
he

 s
ca

le
 fe

e 
re

fle
ct

s:
 

!
 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 d
ec

is
io

n 
no

t t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 fe
es

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 in

fla
tio

n;
 a

nd
  

!
 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
on

e-
of

f w
or

k 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

fir
st

-t
im

e 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l F
in

an
ci

ng
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (

IF
R

S
).

  

A
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s

In
 s

et
tin

g 
th

e 
fe

e,
 I 

ha
ve

 m
ad

e 
th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 a
pp

en
di

x 
2.

 W
he

re
 th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ot

 m
et

, I
 m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 m

or
e 

w
or

k 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

au
di

t f
ee

. W
he

re
 th

is
 is

 th
e 

ca
se

, I
 w

ill
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

is
 fi

rs
t w

ith
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 I 
w

ill
 is

su
e 

a 
su

pp
le

m
en

t t
o 

th
e 

pl
an

 to
 r

ec
or

d 
an

y 
re

vi
si

on
s 

to
 th

e 
ris

k 
an

d 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fe
e.

S
p

ec
if

ic
 a

ct
io

n
s 

yo
u

 c
o

u
ld

 t
ak

e 
to

 r
ed

u
ce

 y
o

u
r 

au
d

it
 f

ee
 

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

m
e 

to
 in

fo
rm

 y
ou

 o
f s

pe
ci

fic
 a

ct
io

ns
 y

ou
 c

ou
ld

 ta
ke

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
yo

ur
 a

ud
it 

fe
e.

 I 
ha

ve
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ac

tio
ns

 th
at

 
yo

u 
co

ul
d 

ta
ke

: 
!

 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 d

ra
ft 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

; a
nd

 
!

 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s.
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
10

 

Page 94



T
o

ta
l f

ee
s 

p
ay

ab
le

 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

fe
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t, 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 w
ill

 m
ak

e 
ch

ar
ge

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ag

re
ed

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f n
on

-a
ud

it 
se

rv
ic

es
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

po
w

er
s.

 

B
as

ed
 o

n 
cu

rr
en

t p
la

ns
 th

e 
fe

es
 p

ay
ab

le
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s.
 

T
ab

le
 4

: 
F

ee
s

20
11

/1
2 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 
20

10
/1

1 
ac

tu
al

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

A
ud

it 
35

,0
00

 
35

,0
00

0 

N
on

-a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

0 
0

0 

T
o

ta
l

35
,0

00
35

,0
00

35
,0

00

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
11

 

Page 95



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 
o

b
je

ct
iv

it
y

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

in
g 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r 
A

ud
ito

rs
. W

he
n 

au
di

tin
g 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

, a
ud

ito
rs

 m
us

t a
ls

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
iti

ng
 P

ra
ct

ic
es

 B
oa

rd
 (

A
P

B
).

 T
he

se
 

im
po

se
 s

tr
in

ge
nt

 r
ul

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 o
bj

ec
tiv

ity
 o

f a
ud

ito
rs

. T
he

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

pu
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 r
ob

us
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

es
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, o
ve

rs
ee

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
 –

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

, w
ho

 s
er

ve
s 

as
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e’
s 

E
th

ic
s 

P
ar

tn
er

. 

T
ab

le
 5

: 
In

d
ep

en
d

en
ce

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

ct
iv

it
y 

A
re

a
R

eq
u

ir
em

en
t 

H
o

w
 w

e 
co

m
p

ly
 

B
us

in
es

s,
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 

pe
rs

on
al

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

st
af

f s
ho

ul
d 

av
oi

d 
an

y 
of

fic
ia

l, 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 o

r 
pe

rs
on

al
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
, o

r 
co

ul
d 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 b

e 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

to
, c

au
se

 th
em

 in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 o

r 
un

ju
st

ifi
ab

ly
 to

 li
m

it 
th

e 
sc

op
e,

 e
xt

en
t o

r 
rig

ou
r 

of
 th

ei
r 

w
or

k 
or

 
im

pa
ir 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

ity
 o

f t
he

ir 
ju

dg
em

en
t. 

 

T
he

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

r 
an

d 
se

ni
or

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

te
am

 
m

us
t n

ot
 ta

ke
 p

ar
t i

n 
po

lit
ic

al
 a

ct
iv

ity
 fo

r 
a 

po
lit

ic
al

 p
ar

ty
, o

r 
sp

ec
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t g
ro

up
, w

ho
se

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 r

el
at

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 to

 th
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 o
f l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t o

r 
N

H
S

 b
od

ie
s 

in
 g

en
er

al
, o

r 
to

 a
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t o
r 

N
H

S
 b

od
y.

  

A
ll 

au
di

t s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
ec

la
re

 a
ll 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
th

re
at

s 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. D
et

ai
ls

 o
f d

ec
la

ra
tio

ns
 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 a
ud

ito
rs

. W
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, s

ta
ff 

ar
e 

ex
cl

ud
ed

 fr
om

 e
ng

ag
em

en
ts

 
or

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
s 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
th

re
at

 to
 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 to
 a

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
ly

 lo
w

 le
ve

l. 
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
12

 

Page 96



 

A
re

a
R

eq
u

ir
em

en
t 

H
o

w
 w

e 
co

m
p

ly
 

Lo
ng

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
ud

it 
cl

ie
nt

s 
T

he
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 a
ud

ito
r 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t s
ho

ul
d,

 in
 a

ll 
bu

t t
he

 m
os

t e
xc

ep
tio

na
l c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 b
e 

ch
an

ge
d 

at
 le

as
t 

on
ce

 e
ve

ry
 s

ev
en

 y
ea

rs
, w

ith
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 
th

re
at

s 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
fte

r 
fiv

e 
ye

ar
s.

  

T
he

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

rs
 a

 
ce

nt
ra

l d
at

ab
as

e 
of

 a
ss

ig
nm

en
t o

f a
ud

ito
rs

 a
nd

 
se

ni
or

 a
ud

it 
st

af
f t

o 
en

su
re

 th
is

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t i
s 

m
et

. 

G
ift

s 
an

d 
ho

sp
ita

lit
y 

T
he

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

r 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

it 
te

am
 m

us
t 

ab
id

e 
by

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 p

ol
ic

y 
on

 g
ift

s,
 h

os
pi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
en

te
rt

ai
nm

en
t. 

 

A
ll 

au
di

t s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
ec

la
re

 a
ny

 g
ift

s 
or

 
ho

sp
ita

lit
y 

irr
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

of
 w

he
th

er
 o

r 
no

t t
he

y 
ar

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
. G

ift
s 

an
d 

H
os

pi
ta

lit
y 

m
ay

 o
nl

y 
be

 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 w

ith
 li

ne
 m

an
ag

er
 a

pp
ro

va
l. 

 

N
on

-a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t p
er

fo
rm

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k 

fo
r 

an
 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

 (
th

at
 is

 w
or

k 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

m
in

im
um

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

ei
r 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s)
 if

 it
 w

ou
ld

 c
om

pr
om

is
e 

th
ei

r 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 o

r 
m

ig
ht

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
a 

re
as

on
ab

le
 p

er
ce

pt
io

n 
th

at
 

th
ei

r 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

. 

A
ud

ito
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t a

cc
ep

t e
ng

ag
em

en
ts

 th
at

 in
vo

lv
e 

co
m

m
en

tin
g 

on
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f o
th

er
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 o
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 w
or

k 
w

ith
ou

t f
irs

t c
on

su
lti

ng
 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

. 

W
or

k 
ov

er
 a

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
va

lu
e 

m
us

t o
nl

y 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
io

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

ud
it 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n.

  

A
ll 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
th

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 –
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
, t

o 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 is

 n
ot

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 

 

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e,

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 S

ta
nd

in
g 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
an

d 
A

P
B

 E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
13

 

Page 97



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 B
as

is
 f

o
r 

fe
e 

 
 

 
A

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s

In
 s

et
tin

g 
th

e 
fe

e,
 I 

ha
ve

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g.
 

!
 

T
he

 r
is

k 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 is
 n

ot
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 d

iff
er

en
t t

o 
th

at
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

fo
r 

20
10

/1
1.

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

ar
e 

op
er

at
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y.
 

!
 

T
he

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
pr

ov
id

es
:  

!
go

od
 q

ua
lit

y 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
an

d 
re

co
rd

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 th
e 

te
xt

 o
f t

he
 o

th
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 b

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 b

y 
30

 J
un

e 
20

12
;  

!
ot

he
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
qu

es
te

d 
w

ith
in

 a
gr

ee
d 

tim
es

ca
le

s;
 a

nd
 

!
pr

om
pt

 r
es

po
ns

es
 to

 d
ra

ft 
re

po
rt

s.
 

!
 

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
qu

es
tio

ns
 a

sk
ed

 o
r 

ob
je

ct
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t e
le

ct
or

s.
 

W
he

re
 th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ot

 m
et

, I
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 m
or

e 
w

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
au

di
t f

ee
.  

   A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
14

 

Page 98



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y 
A

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
ac

co
un

ts
 in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

th
at

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 p
re

pa
re

, w
hi

ch
 r

ep
or

t t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 F
un

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

(E
ng

la
nd

) 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

01
1 

an
d 

th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
. 

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
 

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t o
n 

th
e 

F
un

d’
s 

sy
st

em
s 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 th

at
 s

up
po

rt
s 

th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f t
he

 F
un

d’
s 

po
lic

ie
s 

ai
m

s 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

.

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
 

T
he

 a
ud

ito
r’s

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
m

at
te

rs
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 th

e 
[P

en
si

on
 P

an
el

] b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

au
di

to
r 

is
su

es
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n.

 

A
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts

T
he

 a
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 o
f a

n 
au

di
te

d 
bo

dy
 c

om
pr

is
es

 a
ll 

w
or

k 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t a
n 

au
di

to
r 

un
de

r 
th

e 
C

od
e 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
ir 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8.

  

A
u

d
it

ed
 b

o
d

y 
 

A
 b

od
y 

to
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

ap
po

in
tin

g 
th

e 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

r.
 

A
u

d
it

in
g

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

o
ar

d
 (

A
P

B
)

T
he

 b
od

y 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

U
K

 fo
r 

is
su

in
g 

au
di

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 to
 a

ud
ito

rs
. I

ts
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
re

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

hi
gh

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f a
ud

iti
ng

 th
at

 m
ee

t t
he

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 u
se

rs
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pu
bl

ic
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 in
 th

e 
au

di
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
  

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
15

 

Page 99



A
u

d
it

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s

P
ro

no
un

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

P
B

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

 b
as

ic
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 a
nd

 e
ss

en
tia

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

w
ith

 w
hi

ch
 a

ud
ito

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

 in
 

th
e 

au
di

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
.  

A
u

d
it

o
r(

s)

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

.  

C
o

d
e 

(t
h

e)

T
he

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 P
ar

lia
m

en
t. 

 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 (
th

e)

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 fo

r 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

 in
 E

ng
la

nd
.  

E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s

P
ro

no
un

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

P
B

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

 b
as

ic
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, i
nt

eg
rit

y 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
ity

 th
at

 a
pp

ly
 to

 th
e 

co
nd

uc
t o

f a
ud

its
 a

nd
 w

ith
 

w
hi

ch
 a

ud
ito

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

.  

In
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l

T
he

 w
ho

le
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f c
on

tr
ol

s,
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 o

th
er

w
is

e,
 th

at
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

es
ta

bl
is

he
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

of
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 
op

er
at

io
ns

, i
nt

er
na

l f
in

an
ci

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
.  

M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

 

T
he

 A
P

B
 d

ef
in

es
 th

is
 c

on
ce

pt
 a

s 
‘a

n 
ex

pr
es

si
on

 o
f t

he
 r

el
at

iv
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

or
 im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 m

at
te

r 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
. A

 m
at

te
r 

is
 m

at
er

ia
l i

f i
ts

 o
m

is
si

on
 w

ou
ld

 r
ea

so
na

bl
y 

in
flu

en
ce

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

s 
of

 a
n 

ad
dr

es
se

e 
of

 th
e 

au
di

to
r’s

 r
ep

or
t; 

lik
ew

is
e 

a 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t i

s 
m

at
er

ia
l i

f i
t w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

si
m

ila
r 

in
flu

en
ce

. M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f a

ny
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
rim

ar
y 

st
at

em
en

t w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

 it
em

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
em

. M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

is
 n

ot
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f g
en

er
al

 m
at

he
m

at
ic

al
 d

ef
in

iti
on

, a
s 

it 
ha

s 
bo

th
 q

ua
lit

at
iv

e 
an

d 
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e 
as

pe
ct

s’
.  

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
16

 

Page 100



T
he

 te
rm

 ‘m
at

er
ia

lit
y’

 a
pp

lie
s 

on
ly

 to
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
av

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
du

tie
s 

un
de

r 
st

at
ut

e,
 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 g
iv

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 d

o 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

af
fe

ct
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
.  

P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

, t
ha

t t
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
m

us
t p

ub
lis

h 
un

de
r 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

34
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
en

si
on

 
S

ch
em

e 
(A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n)
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

00
8.

 

T
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 

T
ho

se
 e

nt
ru

st
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n,

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d.
 T

hi
s 

te
rm

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 [t
he

 P
en

si
on

 P
an

el
] 

an
d 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. 

    A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
17

 

Page 101



If 
yo

u 
re

qu
ire

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t i

n 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

r 
in

 a
 la

ng
ua

ge
 o

th
er

 th
an

 E
ng

lis
h,

 p
le

as
e 

ca
ll:

  
08

44
 7

98
 7

07
0 

©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 a
ud

ito
rs

 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. R
ep

or
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 n

on
-e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
 o

r 
of

fic
er

s.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

cc
ep

t n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

: 
!

 
an

y 
di

re
ct

or
/m

em
be

r 
or

 o
ffi

ce
r 

in
 th

ei
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
; o

r 
 

!
 

an
y 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
.  

            

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

 

  

Page 102



 

AUDIT AND 
PENSIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 
15 March 2012 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 

Audit Commission 
Certification of Claims and Returns- Annual 
Report 2010-11 
 
The report details the results of work conducted 
by the Audit Commission to certify grant claims 
in respect of the 2010/11 financial year. 

 WARDS 
 All 

 
  RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Committee notes the report and 
monitors the implementation of the 
recommendations. 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 103



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
1

 C
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 
re

tu
rn

s 
- 

an
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
H

am
m

er
sm

it
h

 a
n

d
 F

u
lh

am
  

A
u

d
it

 2
01

0/
11

 

Page 104



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
2

C
o

n
te

n
ts

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

3

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

m
y 

20
10

/1
1 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
4

R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
20

10
/1

1 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 w
o

rk
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.5

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 o

n
 p

re
vi

o
u

s 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..7

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.8

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 f

ee
s

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

9
      

Page 105



In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

L
o

ca
l a

u
th

o
ri

ti
es

 c
la

im
 la

rg
e 

su
m

s 
o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 m

o
n

ey
 in

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 s

u
b

si
d

ie
s 

fr
o

m
 c

en
tr

al
 

g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
an

d
 o

th
er

 g
ra

n
t-

p
ay

in
g

 b
o

d
ie

s 
an

d
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 r
et

u
rn

s 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t

o
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

. M
y 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 a

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 t

o
 

g
ra

n
t-

p
ay

in
g

 b
o

d
ie

s 
th

at
 c

la
im

s 
fo

r 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
si

d
ie

s 
ar

e 
m

ad
e 

p
ro

p
er

ly
 o

r 
th

at
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

in
 f

in
an

ci
al

 r
et

u
rn

s 
is

 r
el

ia
b

le
. T

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

o
u

tc
o

m
es

 o
f 

m
y 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 
yo

u
r 

20
10

/1
1 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s.
 

U
nd

er
 s

ec
tio

n 
28

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8,
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 m
ay

, a
t t

he
 r

eq
ue

st
 o

f a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s,

 m
ak

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
ce

rt
ify

in
g 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

be
ca

us
e 

sc
he

m
e 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t. 
W

he
re

 s
uc

h 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

re
 m

ad
e,

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 to
 it

s 
au

di
to

rs
 s

et
 o

ut
 th

e 
w

or
k 

au
di

to
rs

 m
us

t d
o 

be
fo

re
 th

ey
 g

iv
e 

th
ei

r 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

. T
he

 w
or

k 
re

qu
ire

d 
va

rie
s 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t d

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
r 

gr
an

t-
pa

yi
ng

 b
od

y,
 b

ut
 in

 b
ro

ad
 te

rm
s:

 
!

 
fo

r 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
be

lo
w

 £
12

5,
00

0 
th

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 d

oe
s 

no
t m

ak
e 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 I 
w

as
 n

ot
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 w
or

k;
 

!
 

fo
r 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

£1
25

,0
00

 a
nd

 £
50

0,
00

0,
 I 

un
de

rt
oo

k 
lim

ite
d 

te
st

s 
to

 a
gr

ee
 fo

rm
 e

nt
rie

s 
to

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

re
co

rd
s,

 b
ut

 d
id

 n
ot

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 

an
y 

te
st

in
g 

of
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 o
f e

xp
en

di
tu

re
; a

nd
 

!
 

fo
r 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

ov
er

 £
50

0,
00

0 
I p

la
nn

ed
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 m
y 

w
or

k 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

in
st

ru
ct

io
n 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
or

 th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 to

 d
ec

id
e 

w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t t

o 
pl

ac
e 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 it

. D
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
at

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
I u

nd
er

to
ok

 te
st

in
g 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 a
gr

ee
 fo

rm
 e

nt
rie

s 
to

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

re
co

rd
s 

an
d 

te
st

 th
e 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 o

f e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
r 

da
ta

.  

C
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

w
he

re
 I 

ag
re

e 
w

ith
 y

ou
r 

of
fic

er
s 

th
at

 th
is

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. M
y 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

re
fe

r 
to

 a
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

le
tte

r 
w

he
re

 
th

er
e 

is
 d

is
ag

re
em

en
t o

r 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y,
 o

r 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 s
ch

em
e 

te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s.

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
3

 

Page 106



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

m
y 

20
10

/1
1 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 
W

e 
ce

rt
ifi

ed
 n

in
e 

gr
an

t c
la

im
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ith

 a
 to

ta
l v

al
ue

 o
f £

35
5 

m
ill

io
n.

 T
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

qu
al

ify
 o

f g
ra

nt
 c

la
im

s 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 a

ud
it 

is
 a

de
qu

at
e.

 T
he

 
th

re
e 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 is
su

ed
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s.
!

 
T

he
 n

at
io

na
l n

on
-d

om
es

tic
 r

at
es

 r
et

ur
n 

w
as

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
as

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
w

as
 n

ot
 r

et
ai

ne
d 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
 o

ne
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

fr
om

 a
 s

am
pl

e 
of

 te
n 

w
as

 
en

tit
le

d 
to

 r
ec

ei
ve

 e
m

pt
y 

pr
op

er
ty

 r
el

ie
f. 

T
hi

s 
is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

a 
on

e-
of

f e
rr

or
. 

!
 

T
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 b
en

ef
its

 c
la

im
 w

as
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

fo
r 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 is
su

es
, b

ut
 m

os
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

in
co

rr
ec

t c
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

ts
 a

s 
ei

th
er

 
cl

ai
m

an
t o

r 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

er
ro

r.
 

!
 

T
he

 n
ew

 d
ea

l f
or

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 c
la

im
 w

as
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

as
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

co
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

fo
r 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t a

pp
ro

va
l o

f e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 li
m

its
 a

nd
 o

ne
 p

ro
je

ct
 

sp
en

t m
or

e 
th

an
 h

ad
 b

ee
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

. 
 T

ab
le

 1
: 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

20
10

/1
1 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 
 

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d
 r

et
u

rn
s 

ce
rt

if
ie

d
 

T
ot

al
 v

al
ue

 o
f c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
ce

rt
ifi

ed
 

9 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
am

en
de

d 
du

e 
to

 e
rr

or
s 

5 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
w

he
re

 I 
is

su
ed

 a
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

le
tte

r 
be

ca
us

e 
th

er
e 

w
as

 d
is

ag
re

em
en

t o
r 

un
ce

rt
ai

nt
y 

ov
er

 th
e 

co
nt

en
t 

of
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 o

r 
sc

he
m

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
ha

d 
no

t b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 
3 

T
ot

al
 c

os
t o

f c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
w

or
k 

£7
1,

41
2.

84
 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
4

 

Page 107



R
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
20

10
/1

1 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 
w

o
rk

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

re
su

lt
s 

o
f 

m
y 

20
10

/1
1 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
e 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t 
is

su
es

 a
ri

si
n

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

at
 w

o
rk

. 
 T

ab
le

 2
: 

C
la

im
s 

an
d

 r
et

u
rn

s 
ab

o
ve

 £
50

0,
00

0 
 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
V

al
u

e 
o

f 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 
(£

00
0)

W
as

 r
el

ia
n

ce
 p

la
ce

d
 

o
n

 t
h

e 
co

n
tr

o
l 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t?

V
al

u
e 

o
f 

an
y 

am
en

d
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
(£

00
0)

W
as

 a
 

q
u

al
if

ic
at

io
n

 le
tt

er
 

is
su

ed
?

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

be
ne

fit
 s

ch
em

e 
16

2,
66

5
N

13
Y

  

P
oo

lin
g 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 c

ap
ita

l r
ec

ei
pt

s 
1,

49
3

N
2

N
 

H
R

A
 s

ub
si

dy
 

13
,8

00
N

15
4

N
 

H
ou

si
ng

 fi
na

nc
e 

ba
se

 d
at

a 
re

tu
rn

 
n/

a
N

n/
a

N
 

N
at

io
na

l n
on

-d
om

es
tic

 r
at

es
 r

et
ur

n 
15

4,
90

8
N

2
Y

 

T
ea

ch
er

s’
 p

en
si

on
s 

re
tu

rn
  

8,
87

2
N

n/
a

N
 

S
ur

e 
st

ar
t, 

ea
rly

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 c

hi
ld

ca
re

 g
ra

nt
 

an
d 

ai
m

in
g 

hi
gh

 fo
r 

di
sa

bl
ed

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
gr

an
t  

9,
93

8
N

n/
a

N
 

N
ew

 d
ea

l f
or

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

* 
2,

89
1

N
-6

1
Y

 
  A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t 

5
 

Page 108



T
ab

le
 3

: 
C

la
im

s 
b

et
w

ee
n

 £
12

5,
00

0 
an

d
 £

50
0,

00
0 

 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
V

al
u

e 
o

f 
cl

ai
m

 o
r 

re
tu

rn
 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 
(£

’0
00

)

V
al

u
e 

o
f 

an
y 

am
en

d
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
(£

00
0)

W
as

 a
 

q
u

al
if

ic
at

io
n

 le
tt

er
 

is
su

ed
?

D
is

ab
le

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

45
9

n/
a

N
 

* 
20

10
/1

1 
is

 th
e 

fin
al

 y
ea

r 
of

 N
ew

 D
ea

l f
or

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 g
ra

nt
 fu

nd
in

g.
 

In
 o

rd
er

 fo
r 

us
 to

 p
la

ce
 r

el
ia

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
co

nt
ro

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 r

ed
uc

e 
au

di
to

r 
te

st
in

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ac
tio

ns
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d:

 
!

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 a

 tr
ac

k 
re

co
rd

 o
f n

o 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 o
r 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
n 

on
 in

di
vi

du
al

 c
la

im
s;

 a
nd

 
!

 
in

cr
ea

se
 q

ua
lit

y 
ch

ec
ki

ng
 o

f c
la

im
s 

pr
io

r 
to

 p
as

si
ng

 to
 a

ud
it,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t c
he

ck
s 

on
 th

e 
el

ig
ib

ili
ty

 o
f e

xp
en

di
tu

re
. 

   A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
6

 

Page 109



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 o

n
 

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 c
o

n
si

d
er

s 
th

e 
p

ro
g

re
ss

 m
ad

e 
in

 im
p

le
m

en
ti

n
g

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
I h

av
e 

p
re

vi
o

u
sl

y 
m

ad
e 

ar
is

in
g

 f
ro

m
 c

er
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

. 
 T

ab
le

 4
: 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
ar

is
in

g
 f

ro
m

 c
er

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 u

n
d

er
ta

ke
n

 in
 e

ar
lie

r 
ye

ar
s 

 

A
g

re
ed

 a
ct

io
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 o

ff
ic

er
C

u
rr

en
t 

st
at

u
s 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 
su

pp
or

t o
f t

he
 T

ea
ch

er
s’

 
P

en
si

on
 G

ra
nt

 C
la

im
. 

H
ig

h 
A

pr
il 

20
11

 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 D
ire

ct
or

 (
H

um
an

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

) 
F

in
an

ce
 &

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

Im
pl

em
en

te
d 

T
he

 T
ea

ch
er

s 
P

en
si

on
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

w
er

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

th
is

 y
ea

r,
 a

nd
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
no

 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 o
r 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 
to

 th
e 

cl
ai

m
. 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 in
te

rn
al

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 w
he

n 
m

ak
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
be

ne
fit

 c
la

im
an

t 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
. 

H
ig

h 
M

ay
 2

01
1 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
 (

H
&

F
 

D
ire

ct
) 

– 
F

in
an

ce
 &

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

P
ar

tia
lly

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

qu
al

ity
 c

he
ck

in
g 

ha
s 

im
pr

ov
ed

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 
ho

us
in

g 
be

ne
fit

s 
cl

ai
m

, b
ut

 
fu

rt
he

r 
w

or
k 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 

en
su

re
 c

or
re

ct
 c

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 

ov
er

pa
ym

en
ts

. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
7

 

Page 110



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
ar

is
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
y 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
ag

re
ed

 f
o

r 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

. A
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
 h

as
 n

o
t 

b
ee

n
 m

ad
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

n
at

io
n

al
 n

o
n

-d
o

m
es

ti
c 

ra
te

s 
cl

ai
m

 a
s 

th
e 

q
u

al
if

ic
at

io
n

 is
 c

o
n

si
d

er
ed

 t
o

 b
e 

d
u

e 
to

 a
 o

n
e-

o
ff

 e
rr

o
r.

 A
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
 h

as
 

n
o

t 
b

ee
n

 m
ad

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
n

ew
 d

ea
ls

 f
o

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
cl

ai
m

 a
s 

20
10

/1
1 

w
as

 t
h

e 
fi

n
al

 y
ea

r 
o

f 
th

e 
sc

h
em

e.
 T

ab
le

 5
: 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

ar
is

in
g

 f
ro

m
 2

01
0/

11
 c

er
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

C
lie

n
t 

re
sp

o
n

se
 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

o
ff

ic
er

In
tr

od
uc

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 b
en

ef
its

 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

t c
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n.
 

H
ig

h 
A

t t
he

 s
ta

rt
 o

f t
hi

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

(2
01

1/
12

01
2)

 w
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f o
ur

 q
ua

lit
y 

ch
ec

ki
ng

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
ho

w
 w

e 
co

ul
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
in

st
an

ce
s 

of
 e

rr
or

 a
nd

 o
m

is
si

on
 in

 th
e 

sy
st

em
.  

A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

is
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

 r
ev

is
ed

 q
ua

lit
y 

ch
ec

ki
ng

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 

w
as

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

fr
om

 A
pr

il 
20

11
. T

he
 n

ew
 q

ua
lit

y 
ch

ec
ki

ng
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
ha

ve
 n

ow
 b

ee
n 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 d

et
ec

t a
nd

 c
or

re
ct

 fi
na

nc
ia

l e
rr

or
s 

fo
r 

bo
th

 
ne

w
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s.
 In

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
, w

hi
ch

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
, 

ar
e 

ch
ec

ke
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
da

te
s,

 c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
ub

si
dy

 
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
ns

 a
re

 c
or

re
ct

. 

A
pr

il 
20

11
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
8

 

Page 111



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 f

ee
s 

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 s
u

m
m

ar
is

es
 t

h
e 

fe
es

 a
ri

si
n

g
 f

ro
m

 m
y 

20
10

/1
1 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
e 

re
as

o
n

s 
fo

r 
an

y 
si

g
n

if
ic

an
t 

ch
an

g
es

 in
 t

h
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

fe
es

 f
ro

m
 2

00
9/

10
. 

 T
ab

le
 6

: 
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 f
ee

s 
 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
20

10
/1

1 
fe

e 
(£

)
20

09
/1

0 
fe

e 
(£

)
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

ch
an

g
es

 in
 f

ee
 g

re
at

er
 t

h
an

 +
/-

 1
0 

p
er

 
ce

n
t

G
ra

nt
s 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
2,

77
2.

00
2,

50
6.

50
M

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

. 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

be
ne

fit
 s

ch
em

e 
34

,0
39

.5
0

36
,5

29
.0

0
n/

a 

P
oo

lin
g 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 c

ap
ita

l r
ec

ei
pt

s 
5,

98
2.

02
5,

39
5.

50
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 th

e 
cl

ai
m

 

H
R

A
 s

ub
si

dy
 

2,
25

4.
00

2,
41

5.
00

n/
a 

H
ou

si
ng

 fi
na

nc
e 

ba
se

 d
at

a 
re

tu
rn

 
5,

87
6.

50
5,

55
1.

50
n/

a 

N
at

io
na

l n
on

-d
om

es
tic

 r
at

es
 r

et
ur

n 
6,

24
9.

32
4,

58
1.

50
Le

ss
 ti

m
el

y 
re

sp
on

se
s 

to
 a

ud
it 

qu
er

ie
s 

T
ea

ch
er

s’
 p

en
si

on
s 

re
tu

rn
 

5,
21

6.
50

9,
52

5.
00

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
qu

al
ity

 o
f w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 

S
ur

e 
st

ar
t, 

ea
rly

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 c

hi
ld

ca
re

 g
ra

nt
 a

nd
 a

im
in

g 
hi

gh
 fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

gr
an

t 
3,

24
4.

50
2,

96
4.

50
n/

a 

D
is

ab
le

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

70
7.

00
1,

01
5.

00
T

he
 a

ud
it 

w
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 le
ss

 ti
m

e.
  

N
ew

 d
ea

l f
or

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
5,

07
1.

50
6,

76
2.

00
F

in
al

 y
ea

r 
of

 c
la

im
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
– 

an
nu

al
 r

ep
or

t 
9

 

Page 112



C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
20

10
/1

1 
fe

e 
20

09
/1

0 
fe

e 
(£

)
(£

)
R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

ch
an

g
es

 in
 f

ee
 g

re
at

er
 t

h
an

 +
/-

 1
0 

p
er

 
ce

n
t

S
in

gl
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

0.
00

4,
65

1.
50

N
o 

cl
ai

m
s 

fo
r 

20
10

/1
1 

T
o

ta
l

71
,4

12
.8

4
81

,8
97

.0
0

 
    A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

– 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t 

10
 

Page 113



©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 g

ra
nt

-p
ay

in
g 

bo
di

es
, a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s,
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 e
xp

la
in

s 
th

e 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

ite
d 

bo
dy

.  
                  

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
20

12
 

  

Page 114



1 

 

 

AUDIT AND 
PENSIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 
15 March 2012 

 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 

Internal Audit Manager 
Audit Commission recommendations 
updates & Annual Governance Statement 
2011 Action Plan 
 
This report gives an update on the 
implementation of Audit Commission 
recommendations and on the AGS 2011 action 
plan. 
 
 
 
 

 WARDS 
 All 

 
  RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Committee notes the report. 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 115



 

1 

Internal Audit 
 
Update on Audit Commission report recommendations 
 
Updates on Audit Commission recommendations were last reported to the Committee in June 
2011 at which point all the outstanding recommendations had been cleared.  No further reports 
have been issued since that date and there are therefore no updates to report to this meeting. 
 
 
Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 
 
The 2011 Annual Governance Statement (AGS) was first considered by the Audit and Pensions 
Committee at its September 2011 meeting. 
 
Attached as Appendix 1 is the first update to the action plan relating to the control weaknesses 
identified in the statement and report on its progress.  Updates have been provided for all 1 of 
the 4 identified control weaknesses.  The relevant issues relating to the remaining 3 
weaknesses were reported resolved at the December meeting and no further remedial action is 
required.  Updates will continue to be reported to future meetings on the outstanding weakness. 
 
The action plan is a necessary result of producing the AGS.  Because these issues are 
considered to be significant the action plan and the progress made in its implementation should 
be periodically reported to the Audit and Pensions Committee to agree and then to monitor 
progress.  The action plan should provide sufficient evidence to show that the individual 
significant control weaknesses taken from the AGS will be resolved as soon as possible, 
preferably in-year before the next statement is due. 
  
Failure to act effectively on the significant control issues would increase the exposure of the 
council to risk.  
 
The schedule at Appendix 1 shows the current stated position as reported by the identified 
responsible officers.  Unless otherwise stated, Internal Audit has not verified the current position 
reported in either appendix and can therefore not give any independent assurance in respect of 
the reported position.   
 
The Audit and Pensions Committee is invited to note the updates provided by operational 
management. 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No. Description of 

Background Papers 
Name/Ext. of Holder of 

File/Copy 
Department/ 
Location 

1. Annual Governance 
Statement Action Plan 

Internal Audit Manager 
Ext. 2505 

Finance, Internal Audit 
Town Hall 
King Street 
Hammersmith W6 9JU 

 
 

 

Page 116



Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Updates  APPENDIX 1 
 

2 

2010/11 Annual Governance Statement 
 

Action Plan  
 

AGS Finding re Significant Control Weakness 
 

Responsible Officer Update reported to December 2011 Audit and Pensions 
Committee meeting 

Update for February 2012 Audit 
and Pensions Committee 

meeting 
Reconciliation of Financial Systems 
 
The Council has progressed well in redeveloping financial systems 
and processes over the past few years through the journey to World 
Class Financial Management (which strengthens the resource 
dedicated to this area) and the adoption of International Financial 
Reporting Standards. While External Audit note the improvement 
made over recent years further improvement is still needed. 
 

 
 

Head of Corporate 
Accountancy 

 
 

A closing 'post-mortem' will be undertaken to identify weak spots and 
areas for improvement 

 
{Target Date 31 October 2011} 

 
Workplan for Corporate Accountancy and Capital and detailed 

closing calendar to be produced. 
 

{Target Date 31 December 2011} 
 

The accounts production process will be reviewed and revised as 
necessary, sharing best practice from other Authorities 

 
{Target Date 31 January 2012} 

 
Quarterly closedown (excluding a quarter 1 close down) to be 

implemented  for 2012/13 
 

{Target Date 30 June 2012} 
 

 
 

Target dates for 31 October, 31 
December and 31 January have 

been met. 
 

The accounts production process 
was reviewed at a workshop in 
November and changes to the 

process were implemented following 
this workshop.  We continue to 

scrutinise our accounts production 
process, particularly in light of 

guidance being issued from CIPFA 
and the Audit Commission and we 
address issues as and when they 
arise.  We have had am initial 

session to share best practice with 
RBKC in November and have 

timetabled a further session for mid-
February. 

 

P
age 117



Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Updates  APPENDIX 1 
 

3 

AGS Finding re Significant Control Weakness 
 

Responsible Officer Update reported to December 2011 Audit and Pensions 
Committee meeting 

Update for February 2012 Audit 
and Pensions Committee 

meeting 
Contract Management 
 
The use of consultants was raised in the Annual Governance 
Statement last year.  While some improvement has been made there 
continue to be weaknesses in managing contracts for consultants.   

 
 

Assistant Director – 
Human Resources 

 
 

A full review of consultants has taken place and a new corporate 
procedure for the procurement of consultants has been agreed and 
implemented by EMT with effect from 1st August 2011. Existing 
consultants’ contracts have been reviewed and HR is in the 

process of converting these, where appropriate to new contracts in 
line with the agreed procedures. 

 

 
 

Issue reported as fully resolved at 
December 2011 meeting. 

 
No further update required 

 

Information Requests 
 
The provision of information in compliance with the Freedom of 
Information Act has been the subject of a review from the Office of 
the Information Commissioner who has sought a written undertaking 
from the council to improve the responsiveness to Information 
requests. In response the council has increased the resource, 
training and support in this area. 
 

 
 

Information Manager 
 
 

Official monitoring finished at the end of November 2010 with a 
marked improvement in performance.  However staff capacity 

issues resulted in Geoff Alltimes and the Information Commissioner 
signing an Undertaking in April 2011.  However, performance 
significantly improved with 92% of all RFIs processed within 

timescale since April 2011 and 85% (the ICO’s target) processed 
within timescale since October 2010. 

 

 
 

Issue reported as fully resolved at 
December 2011 meeting. 

 
No further update required 

 

P
age 118



Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Updates  APPENDIX 1 
 

4 

AGS Finding re Significant Control Weakness 
 

Responsible Officer Update reported to December 2011 Audit and Pensions 
Committee meeting 

Update for February 2012 Audit 
and Pensions Committee 

meeting 
Health & Safety 
 
Substantial progress has achieved in the delivery of a reasonable 
Health & Safety environment. This has included the training, support, 
resource and guidance provided by the Corporate Safety Team. 
Issues remain in relation to the management and control of gas 
safety certification for temporary accommodation and that of 
departmental wide risk assessment as a counter-balance to newly 
emerging areas of risk.  There continues to be a focus on addressing 
these issues 

 
 

Assistant Director – 
Building & Property 

 
 

Quarterly updates are provided to the Executive Management 
Team of the current status of organisational health and safety. 

 
Agreed performance indicators provide information on salient 

pieces of information including gas safety, risk assessments etc. 
 

The status of departmental corporate safety audits are included 
based on a basic RAG system. (red/amber/green). 

 
The report also provides details on organisational accident/incident 

rates and training records. 
 

The sum of this information is conveyed at the quarterly Safety 
Committee, which is attended by departmental representatives, 

Unions, HR etc. The minutes are placed on the intranet. 
 

In addition to this update from the Head of Corporate Safety, 
Internal Audit has recently carried out audit work relating to 
Accommodation Services which included coverage of this 

issue.  The audit work concluded that there are no remaining 
significant issues in this area. 

 
In addition, EMT now sees quarterly reports from the 
Corporate Safety Unit on gas certification compliance. 

 

 
 

Issue reported as fully resolved at 
December 2011 meeting. 

 
No further update required 

 

 

P
age 119



 

 

 

AUDIT AND 
PENSIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 
15 March 2012 

 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 

Chief Internal Auditor 
Internal Audit Manager 
Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Departmental 
Management Teams 
 

Draft 2012/13 Internal Audit Plan 
 
This report sets out the Internal Audit Plan for 
2012-13, for the Committee’s approval. 
 
 
 
 
 

 WARDS 
 All 

 
  RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
To approve the draft 2012/13 Internal Audit 
Plan 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 120



 

1. The audit plan attached as Appendix A based on the current risks 
facing the work of the Council and has been produced by considering 
the most Council’s recent corporate, departmental and thematic risk 
registers.   

2. It has then been refined through discussions with departments, senior 
management and other key stakeholders.  These discussions remain 
ongoing. 

3. Additionally we continue to develop the plans with respect to 
developing tri-borough and bi-borough arrangements.  We will also be 
sharing the plans with the other tri-borough audit services in order to 
continue exploring the possibilities of providing coordinated plans and 
shared assurances across jointly delivered services. 

4. This plan is likely to be subject to change throughout 2012/13 following 
further discussions with departments and other key stakeholders as 
well as currently unforeseen developments.  Any further changes will 
be reported to the Audit and Pensions Committee at the next available 
meeting. 

5. In addition to the plan shown in Appendix A, we have also developed a 
reserve plan to facilitate the effective and efficient substitution of audits 
should that become necessary during the year. 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
No. Description of 

Background Papers 
Name/Ext. of Holder of 

File/ Copy 
Department/ 
Location 

1. Departmental and 
Corporate Risk 
Registers 

Risk Consultant  
extn. 2587 

Finance and corporate 
Services, Internal Audit 
Town Hall 
King Street 
Hammersmith W6 9JU 

2. Record of meetings with 
departments and senior 
management 

Head of Internal Audit 
extn. 2529 

Finance and corporate 
Services, Internal Audit 
Town Hall 
King Street 
Hammersmith W6 9JU 

 

Page 121



 

APPENDIX A 
London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 

Draft Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 
 
 
 

Department Subject Timing Coverage / miniscope Notes 
Corporate/ Cross departmental 

 Corporate & Partnership Governance Q4 
To cover the following areas taken from a 3-year rolling scope: 

- Governance Framework 
- Roles and Responsibilities 
- Capacity and Capability 
- Partnership Organisations 

 

Tri-borough Tri-borough working Q2 Scope dependent on subject (to be determined)  
 Bi-borough working Q2 Scope dependent on subject. Coverage to be identified - to include 

Environment and Residents Services 

Project Regeneration projects Q1/2/3/4 

Coverage dependent on nature and stage of project but likely to 
cover: 

- Council and Service Objectives 
- Programme Management Arrangements and Governance 

- Project Management and Monitoring 
- Definition and Delivery of Benefits 

- Risk Management 

To include consideration of the issues 
raised from Edward Woods, perhaps 

including follow up on implementation of 
the action plan for that project 

Risk Risk Management Q4 

- Risk Management Framework and Governance 
- Roles and Responsibilities 

- Identification of Risk 
- Assessment of Risk 
- Management of Risk 

- Monitoring and Reporting of Risk 

Audit work to underpin reliance on risk 
management processes for audit and 

business planning 

 
 
 

    

P
age 122



 

Department Subject Timing Coverage / miniscope Notes 
Corporate Services 

 Core Financials - Council Tax Q3 

 
- Legislation, Policies and Procedures 
- Council Tax Transactions and Records 

- Valuation 
- Tax Setting 
- Liability 
- Billing 

- Collection 
- Refunds 

- Debt Recovery and Enforcement 
- Management Reporting 

Dependent on outcome of discussions 
with new External Auditor 

 Core Financials - NNDR Q3 

 
- NNDR Transactions and Records 

- Valuation 
- Liability 
- Billing 

- Collection 
- Refunds 

- Debt Recovery and Enforcement 
- Management Reporting 

Dependent on outcome of discussions 
with new External Auditor 

 Core Financials - On-street parking Q3 

 
- Applications for Permits 

- Issue of Permits 
- Income and Banking 

- Return of Permits and Refunds 
- Public Notices and Enforcement 

- Management Information 

Dependent on outcome of discussions 
with new External Auditor 

P
age 123



 

Department Subject Timing Coverage / miniscope Notes 

 Core Financials - Penalty Charge Notices Q3 

 
- Policies, Procedures and Legislation 

- Contract Management 
- issue of PCNs 

- Reconciliations, Interfaces and Payments 
- Appeals 

- Monitoring of Income Collection 

Dependent on outcome of discussions 
with new External Auditor 

 Core Financials - Schools (SIMS) Q3 
Full audit and testing for external audit: 

- Monitoring and Review of Schools Financial Returns 
- Reconciliations to Council Records 

Dependent on outcome of discussions 
with new External Auditor 

 
Not sure if this is still needed in current 
context (subject not covered in past 3 

years by external audit) 
 Core Financials - preliminary testing Q2 Preliminary testing of relevant systems' key controls to prepare for 

external audit testing 
Dependent on outcome of discussions 

with new External Auditor 
 Core Financials - other systems Q2 Light-touch testing of all other identified Core Financial systems to 

ensure continued compliance with required controls 
Possibly to be done (at least in part) 

using CRSAs currently being developed 
by Deloitte for Croydon Partnership 

 Financial Accounting system ledger - Cedar Q1 
 

- Accounting Records 
- Accounting Transactions and Manual Adjustments 

- Year-End Procedures 
- Financial and Performance Management Reporting 

 

 Development of Finance Systems WCFM Q1 Likely to take the form of risk and control advice where finance 
systems and procedures are due to change significantly.  

IT 

 Network Infrastructure + WiFi + Laptop and 
Mobile Devices Q2 

This audit will test the security and management of controls over 
the Council's Network Infrastructure; WiFi governance, risk, usage 
and arrangements; and will test controls over the risk management 

and security of Laptops and Mobile Devices used by staff. 
 

P
age 124



 

Department Subject Timing Coverage / miniscope Notes 

 IT Strategy including Tri-Borough Q1 

This audit assesses the controls applied to integrating  the overall 
corporate strategy into the strategic route map for IT activities and 

investments by review of controls for example; Roles and 
responsibility for ICT strategy is clearly defined; A current 

integrated and appropriate ICT strategy has been developed and 
formally approved; and management and monitoring 

arrangements. 

 

 Starters Movers Leavers (SML) - Post 
Implementation Q3 

Post Implementation audit. This audit will test controls over: Risk 
management of any ongoing residual project risks; Post 

implementation methodology to assess and quantify business 
achievements and delivery of strategic goals; and Post 

implementation knowledge management learning initiatives for 
ongoing continuous improvements. 

 

 PCI DSS Audit Q1 

An audit of PCI DSS, but not giving Assurance over the 
accreditation to PCI DSS. Controls will be tested over PCI 
Governance within the Council (Responsibility); Monitoring 
arrangements to maintain compliance (PCI changes, internal 
change control); Regular Compliance checks (Internal and 

external); Regular Pen Tests; and Action plans to remedy issues 
identified in compliance checks. 

 

 iCasework - Application Q1 
Application audit.  This will include testing controls over access, 
input, data processing, output, interfaces, management trails, 
support arrangements, backup and recovery, and supplier 

management.  Also to consider the value of further audit coverage. 
 

 Tri-Boro IT Security Audit of Adult Social 
Services Q1 Scope to be determined.  

 Tri-Boro IT Security Audit of Children's 
Services Q2 Scope to be determined.  

 
 
 

    

P
age 125



 

Department Subject Timing Coverage / miniscope Notes 
Contracts 

Contracts Recently tendered contracts Q2 

To cover: - 
- market testing 
- Letting of  

- Section of contractors 
- Tender Receipt, evaluation and reporting 

- e-tendering (where appropriate) 
 

Possible extensions of scope could cover: - 
 

• Defining the procurement strategy  
• Pre-qualification.  
• Inviting tenders  

• Invitation to tender (ITT)  
• Evaluating and refining tenders 

• Awarding the contract  
• Putting the contract in place  

• Contracts, terms and conditions  
• Managing the contract  
• Review and testing  

• Feedback 

Themed audit to cover testing across 6 
recently tendered contracts.  Specific 
individual contracts to be proposed to 
and agreed with Competitions Board.  
Deliverables - 6 management letters & 
one overall report (with assurance level) 
to be issued to the Competitions Board.  

Jane West - Consider passenger 
transport, facilities management, 

schools catering 

Contracts Extended contracts Q1 

To cover: - 
 

• The frequency that Extensions of Time are used?  
• Contractors notification  

• CA/Project Manager assessments 
• Relevant events (type and use of)  

• Resulting effect on LADs and Contractors recovery of cost 
• Contract compliance 

Themed audit to cover testing across 6 
recently tendered contracts.  Specific 
individual contracts to be proposed to 
and agreed with Competitions Board.  
Deliverables - 6 management letters & 
one overall report (with assurance level) 
to be issued to the Competitions Board. 

P
age 126



 

Department Subject Timing Coverage / miniscope Notes 

Contracts Delivering a cost reduction programme for 
the LB Hammersmith & Fulham. - Q1 

 
- Contract Formalities 

- Contract Management and Performance Management 
- Payments 

- Budget Management 
- Value for Money 

 

Contracts Resurfacing and Road Marking – Colas Q1 

 
- Contract Formalities 

- Contract Management and Performance Management 
- Payments 

- Budget Management 
- Value for Money 

 

Contracts Housing Repairs Water Systems – Seven 
Trent Q1 

 
- Contract Formalities 

- Contract Management and Performance Management 
- Payments 

- Budget Management 
- Value for Money 

 

Contracts Provision of Penalty Charge Notice 
Software – TSMP Q1 

 
- Contract Formalities 

- Contract Management and Performance Management 
- Payments 

- Budget Management 
- Value for Money 

 

Children's Services 
School Avonmore Primary School Q1 Governance, Financial Management, Procurement, Maintenance & 

Business Continuity and School Meals Income.  
School Brackenbury Primary School Q1 Governance, Financial Management, Procurement, Maintenance & 

Business Continuity and School Meals Income.  
School Fulham Primary School Q1 Governance, Financial Management, Procurement, Maintenance & 

Business Continuity and School Meals Income.  

P
age 127



 

Department Subject Timing Coverage / miniscope Notes 
School Greenside Primary School Q1 Governance, Financial Management, Procurement, Maintenance & 

Business Continuity and School Meals Income.  
School New Kings Primary School Q1 Governance, Financial Management, Procurement, Maintenance & 

Business Continuity and School Meals Income.  
School Pope John Catholic Primary School Q1 Governance, Financial Management, Procurement, Maintenance & 

Business Continuity and School Meals Income.  
School St Mary's Catholic Primary School Q1 Governance, Financial Management, Procurement, Maintenance & 

Business Continuity and School Meals Income.  
School St Stephen's CE Primary School Q1 Governance, Financial Management, Procurement, Maintenance & 

Business Continuity and School Meals Income.  
School Hurlingham & Chelsea School Q1 Governance, Financial Management, Procurement, Maintenance & 

Business Continuity and School Meals Income.  
School Lady Margaret School Q1 Governance, Financial Management, Procurement, Maintenance & 

Business Continuity and School Meals Income.  
School Cambridge School Q1 Governance, Financial Management, Procurement, Maintenance & 

Business Continuity and School Meals Income.  
School The Bridge Academy PRU Q1 Governance, Financial Management, Procurement, Maintenance & 

Business Continuity and School Meals Income.  

 Customer Referral Management Q2 

 
- Service Level Agreements 

- Service Provision (portfolio of services and provision of those 
services) 

- Billing and Income Recovery 
- Performance Management 

 

 School performance monitoring Q1 
To cover the systems in place to monitor schools financial and 

academic performance and how poor performance is identified and 
addressed. 

 

P
age 128



 

Department Subject Timing Coverage / miniscope Notes 

Contracts 
West London Alliance Home Support 
Framework Agreement 2011/12 Social  
Community Care Support Services 

Q3 

 
- Contract Formalities 

- Contract Management and Performance Management 
- Payments 

- Budget Management 
- Value for Money 

 

 Themed schools audit - Head Teacher's Pay 
and incentive payments Q1 

To cover whether: - 
 

-       Headteacher’s spinal point is within the acceptable range 
based on number and age of pupils  

-       Any payments above the allowed level are only allowed when 
School is a school causing concern, if the School has substantial 
difficulties recruiting/retaining the Headteacher, or the Headteacher 

is running more than one school (This provision should not be 
used simply to pay the Headteacher more money based on his 

performance).    
-       Approval and annual review of pay scale by Governing Body 

-       Check if any additional payments are made to the 
Headteacher and if they are appropriate and approved 

-       That schools aren’t paying Inner London Supplement of £822 
per year any more as this provision ceased in 2008 

-       The above could also be expanded to leadership team pay 

 

 Themed schools audit - Leasing Q1 
To cover: - 

 
-       Appropriate lease (i.e. operating not finance lease) 

-       Advice sought and Approval obtained to enter into lease 
-       Value for money sought 

 

P
age 129



 

Department Subject Timing Coverage / miniscope Notes 

 SEN Transport Q2 
- Management of Bookings and Requests 

- Vetting and Security 
- Payments to Transport Providers 

- Internal Recharges 
- Monitoring and Management Information 

 

Contracts Social Enterprise contract management Q2 

 
- Contract Formalities 

- Contract Management and Performance Management 
- Payments 

- Budget Management 
- Value for Money 

 

Adult Social Care 

Project Disability equipment Q2 

Coverage likely to cover: 
- Council and Service Objectives 

- Programme Management Arrangements and Governance 
- Project Management and Monitoring 
- Definition and Delivery of Benefits 

- Risk Management 

 

Project Transfer to sheltered housing/ continuity of 
care Q1 

Coverage likely to cover: 
- Council and Service Objectives 

- Programme Management Arrangements and Governance 
- Project Management and Monitoring 
- Definition and Delivery of Benefits 

- Risk Management 

To be identified by Director/ DMT 

Contracts West London Housing Related Support 
Joint Framework Tender Q1 

 
- Contract Formalities 

- Contract Management and Performance Management 
- Payments 

- Budget Management 
- Value for Money 

 

P
age 130



 

Department Subject Timing Coverage / miniscope Notes 

 CSD departmental governance Q3 
- Governance Structure 

- Roles and Responsibilities 
- Management Information and Reporting 

 
Tri-borough Adult Social Care (Tri-borough working) Q2 Scope dependent on subject (to be determined)  

 Outsourcing Q3 

To cover the outsourcing process with proactive work to feed into 
identified projects. May cover: 

would expect to cover: 
- Decision to Outsource 

- Development of Service Specification 
- Payments 

- Contract Monitoring 
- Financial Management 

Possibly to include: - 
 

Meals 
Transport 
Removals 

Learning Disability 
Transport & Technical Services 

Contracts 
Planned preventative maintenance - 

passenger lifts and goods lifts Lot no 2 
Housing Properties 

Q2 

 
- Contract Formalities 

- Contract Management and Performance Management 
- Payments 

- Budget Management 
- Value for Money 

 

 Parking Enforcement Q2 To refer to and extend the coverage of the audit being carried out 
in relation to External Audit as a core financial  

Housing and Regeneration 

Project BPM programme Q2 

Coverage dependent on nature and stage of project but likely to 
cover: 

- Council and Service Objectives 
- Programme Management Arrangements and Governance 

- Project Management and Monitoring 
- Definition and Delivery of Benefits 

- Risk Management 

 

P
age 131



 

Department Subject Timing Coverage / miniscope Notes 

 Regeneration Governance Q1 
audit of Regeneration governance (programme/projects). Scope 

likely to include: 
- Governance Structure 

- Roles and Responsibilities 
- Management Information and Reporting 

 

 Income collection Q2 
More detailed work than the standard core financial audit work to 
cover timely rent account set up, collection, arrears collection, and 

including segregation of duties/controls in regional offices; to 
undertake early in the year 

 

Contracts Repairs and Maintenance Q1 
contract management including use of management information 
(eg tracking repeat visits), 'resolve first time' visiting, lessons to 

learn for new contract, accruals process 
 

Environment, Residents & Leisure Services 

 Neighbourhood Wardens Q2 
Possible scope 

 - Allocation and Monitoring 
- Investigations 

- Issue, Collection and Monitoring of Fixed Penalty Notices 
- Management Information and Performance 

Tasking and briefings 

 Neighbourhood Wardens Q2 To be clarified by department Wardens Database 
Other 

 Verification of Priority 1 audit recommendations 
implementation Q1/2/3/4 Verification of P1 recs not included in follow-ups for quarterly 

reporting to FSB and possibly APC 
To include all P1s - P2s to be included 

as requested by in-house team. 
 End of year reports Q1 

To produce year end reports on schools, IT, projects/project 
management, Finance (including a section on procurement) and 

others as agreed 
 

 Follow-up audits Q1/2/3/4 
Estimate based on 1.5 days each for an estimate of 8 follow-ups 

required. 
 

Additional budget to be requested and agreed as justified. 
 

 Audit and Pensions Committee Training Q2   
 

P
age 132



October 2011 –  December 2011 
 

   
 

 

 

AUDIT AND 
PENSIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 2012 
 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 

 
All departments 

COMBINED RISK MANAGEMENT HIGHLIGHT 
REPORT 
 
This report updates the Committee of the 
risks, controls, assurances and 
management action orientated to manage 
organisational level risks. 
 
 

 WARDS 
 All 

 
  RECOMMENDATION: 
 
1. The committee consider the 
current Strategic, Programme 
and Operational risk position as 
outlined in the report. 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 13

Page 133



October 2011 –  December 2011 
 

   
 

1. PURPOSE 
1.1. This report updates Members on the highlight risk management issues identified 

across council services and follows changes in the reporting process to Committee 
to meet BS31100 requirements for Enterprise Risk Management. Effective risk 
management continues to help the council to achieve its objectives by ‘getting 
things right first time’ and is a key indicator of the ‘Corporate Health’ of the council. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 

2.1. The Finance and Corporate Services Department acts as the lead Department on 
risk management supported by the Principal Consultant Risk Management. 
Departmental Executive Directors act as Risk Champions in their own service 
areas to support the process across all levels of the authority. Risk Management is 
critical to both the value for money assessment and provision of annual assurance 
that form part of the annual accounts. 

 
3. Strategic risks update 

3.1. The Corporate Risk and Assurance Register has been reviewed by the Council’s 
Executive Management Team. The full version accompanies this paper for 
Members information at Appendix 1. 

 
3.2. Revision highlights include; 

 
3.3. Corporate risk number 1.  - Business Continuity  - Medium risk – Stable 

3.3.1. As services are redesigned within the TriBorough working programme 
consideration is being given to ensure service continuity is maintained 
throughout the process and in any procurement or commissioning. The 
Councils Business Continuity Manager, now a Bi Borough appointment, 
provides a service for the council and the Royal Borough of Kensington and 
Chelsea. This will be an important factor in ensuring consistency of planning 
and response in the event of a potential major service interruption.  

 
3.4. Corporate risk number 2. – Managing Projects – Low risk – Stable 

3.4.1. The Executive Management Team receive consolidated statistics on four 
Portfolios; 

 
3.4.1.1. Customer Access & Service Delivery 
3.4.1.2. Transforming the way we do business 
3.4.1.3. Market management 
3.4.1.4. Tri-borough 
 

3.4.2. All portfolio managers have now met with the Principal Consultant Risk 
Management and confirm that each report on risks and mitigations to HFBB on 
a monthly basis. They highlight a number of key risks that include, but are not 
limited to; 

 
• Challenging Medium Term Financial Strategy savings  
• Rapidity and complexity of change 

Page 134



October 2011 –  December 2011 
 

   
 

• Development of commercial skills 
• H & F Bridge Partnership negotiations 
• Key staffing changes 

 
3.4.3. Each risk is accompanied with a proposed mitigation and provides an update 

on the Organisational Development and Transformation resource 
requirements, benefits realisation and plans to provide increased Programme 
Assurance.  

 
3.4.4. In December 2011 Cabinet were informed of the results of a tendering 

exercise for two Business and Management Consultancy contracts. These 
were successfully tendered in support of market management and debt 
recovery and constitute an important element in the Council’s pursuit of 
significant savings over the next few years. These services comprise 
Procurement Services & Savings and Enhanced Revenue/Debt 
Collection/Recovery. The services will be provided on a ‘gain share’ basis, with 
the successful organisation(s) primarily receiving payment only by way of a 
proportion of the savings identified or additional debt recovered on behalf of 
the Council. This is not a traditional consultancy service type contract with the 
risk for delivery placed firmly with the successful bidder and not the Council. 
This is the first time the Council has used this model which ensures payment is 
only made when there is a delivered outcome to the Council. 

 
3.5. Corporate risk number 3 – Managing Statutory Duty – Medium risk – Stable 

3.5.1. Meetings between Tri-Borough colleagues to discuss health and safety 
management systems are being held fortnightly and an operating model is to 
be proposed and discussed at HFBB. It has been agreed that the Host 
Borough will coordinate the cascade of health and safety information from all 
boroughs to senior managers through a designated health and safety advisor. 
Each council will retain a Safety Committee to comply with current legislative 
requirements. Where a service is being provided to potentially ‘at risk’ clients 
for example in Tri Borough Adult Social Care Services  the proposals extend to 
create a cross borough representative group. 

3.5.2. A new system has been rolled out replacing the previous mechanism for 
recording and managing information about violent service users. In future staff 
will record any incident on the corporate health and safety incident reporting 
system used for accidents, violent incidents, dangerous occurrences and near 
misses. A routine report will pull this information to the intranet so that it is 
accessible to all council staff. 

3.5.3. The new system removes the risk and bureaucracy of duplication of entries 
and management of information. This will enable corporate safety to review the 
nature and frequency of incidents whilst Executive Services will retain the 
responsibility for managing the information in terms of relevance and 
accessibility ensuring it is removed as soon as it is no longer applicable.

Page 135



October 2011 –  December 2011 
 

 4

 
3.6. Corporate risk number 7.  – Maintaining reputation and service 

standards  - Low risk – Stable 
3.6.1. Increasingly apparent are the numbers of high profile information 

security incidents reported in the national media. Added to this is the 
interest shown by the Information Commissioners Office into 
individual cases where local authorities have fallen below expected 
standards of Information security management. ITSOG, the councils 
Information Technology Standards Operational Group, periodically 
review the councils breaches of information management protocols 
and other incidents. A copy of the December ITSOG report is 
attached as Appendix 2 that highlights the number of Statistical 
summary of incidents. 

 

3.7. Opportunity risk number 2. – Tri Borough, Merging of services with 
Westminster and the Royal Borough of Kensington & Chelsea.– Low risk 
of realisation– Stable 

 
3.7.1. Risk and issue management is facilitated through the Royal 

Borough of Kensington and Chelsea Programme Management 
Office (PMO). An updated position on Tri Borough working risks 
and mitigations has been  reflected in the councils Corporate Risk 
Register.  

3.7.2. A common set of risks are emerging from Portfolio managers via 
the summary provided by the PMO that include, but are not limited 
to accommodation, IT, timing and Human Resources. All portfolios, 
Adult Social Care, Corporate Services, Libraries and Environment 
are reporting via the agreed highlight reports registering emerging 
risks and their mitigations.  

 
4. Detailed information on controls and assurances is contained in the fabric of 

the corporate risk register, project tracking record and contract and market 
testing schedules. Work is in progress to mitigate these risks. The exposure 
rating of corporate risks has not proven to be volatile indicating a reasonable 
and consistent level of Internal Control. 

 
5. Programme and projects 

5.1. The Transformation Office are refreshing their project and programme 
governance reporting arrangements. Departments will in future track and 
report on progress of individual projects. Aspects of which will be 
discussed at their respective Department Management Teams.  

 

Page 136



October 2011 –  December 2011 
 

 5

6. Operational highlights 
6.1. Tri Borough working arrangements have now been put into place for 

Insurance Services. This is being hosted by the Royal Borough of 
Kensington & Chelsea and will cover the Internal claims handling and 
Insurance purchase processes. Background information on Risk 
Management activities for the past three years and forward plans have 
been requested by the Insurance Broker in advance of  re-tendering of 
the insurance portfolio.  

 
6.2. Following a request by the Health and Safety Executive a copy of the 

council’s asbestos strategy and management procedures have been 
forwarded. A programme of asbestos awareness training, to kick off the 
new management strategy, had already been scheduled for 
November/December. This forms part of a targeted programme of health 
and safety training based on the revamped procedures that are being 
rolled out. 

6.3. A strategy was drawn up between Corporate Safety and Building Property 
Management in April 2011 setting out the identified risks and the 
immediate and long-term management actions. The required control 
measures in summary include: asbestos management surveys of 
property portfolio, starting with schools; changes to the corporate asset 
management system to allow it to act as the asbestos register, the 
repository and hub for asbestos management plans and audit trail of 
contractor movements; the adoption of a new control of contractors 
procedure and permissions to work system; the recruitment of an 
Appointed Person to manage the asbestos portfolio; the creation of 
individual asbestos management plans for each building and an overall 
strategy for the entire portfolio; the roll out of tailored asbestos awareness 
training for premise managers, contractors and staff; monitoring of 
compliance through inspection and key performance indicators. 

 
7. Market Testing 

7.1.  An update to contract schedules  (market testing programme, new 
contracts,  contract renewals and contract review & negotiation 
Programme) was reviewed and discussed at the councils Competition 
Board. Competition Board has asked the councils Contracts Register 
Group to monitor progress on new contracts, contract renewals and 
renegotiations, Market Testing Programme,  and contract monitoring and 
report back to Competition Board on an exception basis. In effect this 
concerns reporting on red flag items where major problems or issues 
have been encountered and Competition Board need to be advised. It 
was also considered sensible to report on any major headlines issues. 

 
 

Page 137



October 2011 –  December 2011 
 

 6

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No. Description of 

Background Papers 
Name/Ext. of Holder of 

File/Copy 
Department/ 
Location 

1. Association of Local 
Authority 
Risk Managers & 
Institute of 
Risk Management, 
2002, A 
Risk Management 
Standard 

Michael Sloniowski 
2587 Corporate Finance 

Division, Internal Audit, 
Town Hall, 
Hammersmith 

2. The Orange Book, 
Management of Risk 
Principles 
& Concepts – HM 
Treasury 

Michael Sloniowski 
2587 Corporate Finance 

Division, Internal Audit, 
Town Hall, 
Hammersmith 

3. Departmental Risk 
Registers, Tri borough 
Portfolio risk logs  

Michael Sloniowski 
2587 Corporate Finance 

Division, Internal Audit, 
Town Hall, 
Hammersmith 

4. CIPFA Finance Advisory 
Network The Annual 
Governance Statement 

Michael Sloniowski 
2587 Corporate Finance 

Division, Internal Audit, 
Town Hall, 
Hammersmith 

5. BS 31100 Code of 
Practice for 
risk management 

Michael Sloniowski 
2587 Corporate Finance 

Division, Internal Audit, 
Town Hall, 
Hammersmith 

 

Page 138



  
 

 

 

 

AUDIT AND 
PENSIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 
15 March 2012 

 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 

Chief Internal Auditor 
Internal Audit Manager 
Deloitte & Touche LLP 

Internal Audit Quarterly report for the 
period 1 October to 31 December 2011 
 
This report summarises internal audit activity in 
respect of audit reports issued during the period 
to 31 December 2011, as well as reporting on 
the performance of the Internal Audit service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 WARDS 
 All 

 
  RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
To note the contents of this report 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 14

Page 139



  
 

CONTENTS 
 
 
 

 
1. Introduction 1 
 
 
2. Internal Audit Coverage  1 
 
 
3. Internal Audit Service   2 
 
 
4. Audit Planning 3 
 
Appendix A 
Audit reports issued 1 October to 31 December 2011  4 
 
Appendix B 6 
Tenancy Fraud Initiative 2011/2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 140



 

1 

1 Introduction 
1.1 This report summarises internal audit activity in respect of audit reports 

issued during the period 1 October to 31 December 2011 as well as 
reporting on the performance of the Internal Audit service. 

1.2 In order to minimise the volume of paperwork being sent to Committee 
members, the appendices detailing outstanding recommendations and 
reports, as well as the full text of all limited or nil assurance reports 
have not been appended to this report.  However, the information 
which would have been contained in these appendices has been made 
available to all members separately. 

2 Internal Audit Coverage 
2.1 The primary objective of each audit is to arrive at an assurance opinion 

regarding the robustness of the internal controls within the financial or 
operational system under review. Where weaknesses are found 
internal audit will propose solutions to management to improve 
controls, thus reducing opportunities for error or fraud. In this respect, 
an audit is only effective if management agree audit recommendations 
and implement changes in a timely manner 

2.2 A total of 12 audit reports were finalised in the third quarter of 
2011/2012 (see Appendix A).  In addition 1 management letter and 2 
follow up reports were issued. 

2.3 In addition to follow-up audits of limited and nil assurance reports, 
Internal Audit also seeks to verify the implementation of all other 
priority 1 recommendations.  In the quarter ended 31 December 2011, 
9 recommendations were reviewed.  8 were found to have been fully 
implemented whilst the remaining one was found to have been partly 
implemented. 

2.4 Two audit reports issued in this period received limited assurance.  All 
8 of the recommendations made in the report on Client Affairs – 
Property Protection and all 5 made in the report on Direct Payments – 
Use of Funds have now been reported as fully implemented.  Follow-up 
audits will now be scheduled.  Full copies of both these reports have 
been made available to members.   

2.5 The Internal Audit department works with key departmental contacts to 
monitor the numbers of outstanding draft reports and the 
implementation of agreed recommendations.  

2.6 Departments are given 10 working days for management agreement to 
be given to each report and for the responsible director to sign it off so 
that it can then be finalised.  We are very pleased to be able to report 
that there are no outstanding reports as at 31 December 2011. 

Page 141



 

2 

2.7 We are also delighted to be able to report that there are no audit 
recommendations made since Deloitte commenced their contract in 
October 2004 where the target date for the implementation of the 
recommendation has passed and it has either not been fully 
implemented or where the auditee has not provided any information on 
their progress in implementing the recommendation.  This compares to 
the 20 reported as outstanding at the end of the previous quarter.  

2.8 Internal Audit are now focussing on a more proactive approach of 
assisting departments and HFBP to concentrate on forthcoming 
recommendations in order to maintain the current excellent position.  

2.9 As part of the tri-borough programme some department names have 
been amended whilst their areas of responsibility have remained 
broadly similar.  The changes are as follows: - 

♦ Community Services has become Adult Social Care 
♦ Environment Services has become Transport and Technical 

Services 
♦ Finance & Corporate Services has become Corporate 

Services 
♦ Residents Services has become Environment, Residents 

and Leisure Services.  
 

3 Internal Audit Service 
3.1 Since the last report to the Audit Committee, there has been no 

structural change to the operation of the internal audit service. The in-
house team consists of the Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) and Audit 
Manager.  Deloitte Public Sector Internal Audit Ltd carries out individual 
audits and also periodically provides management information to 
support the reporting requirements of the in-house team  

3.2 Part of the CIA’s function is to monitor the quality of Deloitte work. 
Formal monthly meetings are held with the Deloitte Contract Manager 
and one of the agenda items is an update on progress and a review of 
performance against key performance indicators.  The performance 
figures are provided for the period from 1 April to 30 June 2011 are 
shown below. 

Page 142



 

3 

Performance Indicators 2011/12 
 

Ref Performance Indicator Target Pro rata 
target 

At end of 
December Variance Comments 

1 % of deliverables 
completed (2011/12) 95% 75% 69% -6% 75 reports delivered out of a total 

plan of 108 
2 % of planned audit days 

delivered (2011/12) 95% 75% 64% -11% 608 days delivered out of a total 
plan of 949 days 

3 
% of audit briefs issued no 
less than 10 working days 
before the start of the 

audit     
95% 95% 95% On Target 

37 out of 39 briefs issued more 
than ten working days before the 

start of the audit. 

4 
% of Draft reports issued 
within 10 working days of 

exit meeting 
95% 95% 93% -2% 

43 out of 46 draft reports issued 
within 10 working days of exit 

meeting. 

 
3.3 The Corporate Anti-Fraud Section which is part of the wider Internal 

Audit Unit is lasing with Housing and Regeneration Department in 
respect of Tenancy Fraud and an update has been attached as 
Appendix B. 

4 Audit Planning 
4.1 The 2012/13 Internal Audit Plan has been submitted to the Committee 

for approval as a separate report. 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
No. Description of 

Background Papers 
Name/Ext. of Holder of 

File/ Copy 
Department/ 
Location 

1. Full audit reports from 
October 2004 to date 

Geoff Drake 
Ext. 2529 

Finance and corporate 
Services, Internal Audit 
Town Hall 
King Street 
Hammersmith W6 9JU 

Page 143



 

4 

APPENDIX A 
 

Audit reports Issued 1 October to 31 December 2011 
 
We have finalised a total of 12 audit reports for the period to 31 December 
2011.   In addition, we have issued a further 1 management letter and 2 follow 
ups. 
 
Audit Reports 
We categorise our opinions according to our assessment of the controls in 
place and the level of compliance with these controls. 
Audit Reports finalised in the period: 

No. Audit 
Plan Audit Title Director Audit Assurance 

1 2011/12 Holy Cross Primary School Andrew Christie Substantial 
2 2011/12 Normand Croft Community School Andrew Christie Substantial 
3 2011/12 St John’s CE Primary School Andrew Christie Substantial 
4 2011/12 Sullivan Primary School Andrew Christie Substantial 
5 2011/12 St Peter’s CE School Andrew Christie Substantial 
6 2011/12 Direct Payments John Chamberlain 

(Acting) Limited 
7 2011/12 Supported Housing Contract Renegotiation John Chamberlain 

(Acting) Substantial 
8 2011/12 Reablement John Chamberlain 

(Acting) Substantial 
9 2011/12 Client Affairs – Property Protection John Chamberlain 

(Acting) Limited 
10 2011/12 Client Affairs – Funerals John Chamberlain 

(Acting) Substantial 
11 2011/12 Client Affairs – Appointeeships and 

Deputyships 
John Chamberlain 

(Acting) Substantial 
12 2011/12 Election Expenses Jane West Substantial 

 
Audit Reports 

 
Full 
Assurance 

There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the system objectives and 
the controls are being consistently applied. 

Substantial 
Assurance 

While there is a basically sound system, there are weaknesses, which put some of 
the system objectives at risk, and/or there is evidence that the level of non-
compliance with some of the controls may put some of the system objectives at 
risk. 

Limited Assurance Weaknesses in the system of controls are such as to put the system objectives at risk, 
and/or the level of non-compliance puts the system objectives at risk. 

No Assurance Control is generally weak, leaving the system open to significant error or abuse, 
and/or significant non-compliance with basic controls leaves the system open to 
error or abuse. 

 
 

Page 144



 

5 

Other Reports 
 
Management Letters 
No. Audit Plan Audit Title Director 
13 11/12 Key Financial Controls – Self 

Assessments Jane West 
 
 
Follow ups 
 
No. Audit 

Plan 
Audit Title Director Implemented Partly 

Implemented 
Not 

Implemented 
Not 

Applicable 
14 2011/12 Parking Pay and 

Display 
Nigel 
Pallace 7 1 0 0 

16 2011/12 CRB Checks* Jane West 0 0 0 0 
 
* No recommendations raised in the original report as there was a sound system of controls in 
place to identify and follow up outstanding and due CRB checks. However, our audit work 
identified that there remained a significant number of officers who have not been CRB 
checked in the last three years for whom CRB check applications have not been submitted.  
Our follow up work established that the Council’s position on outstanding CRB checks has 
improved since the original audit was undertaken; however we have raised a further 
recommendation that departments should be formally reminded to submit CRB check 
applications. 
 
 
 
 

Page 145



 
 

6 

APPENDIX B 
 
Tenancy Fraud Initiative 2011/2013 
 
There is a Tenancy Fraud Initiative partnership between Housing and Regeneration Department 
(HRD) and the Corporate Anti-Fraud Section (CAFS).  This links the work of CAFS with the 
tenancy fraud initiative being managed by a consultant within the Technical and Support 
Services Unit in HRD. Fortnightly operational meetings are held as well as monthly fraud steering 
group meetings.   
 
The core strategy is to identify areas of tenancy fraud, in particular illegal subletting, and 
identifying areas of weakness with internal processes and controls in order to reduce the 
likelihood of error and fraud. 
 
The initiative will involve referrals of proactive intelligence to CAFS that arise from developing 
data matching techniques. CAFS will conduct prioritised visits providing monthly feedback on 
their enforcement actions. 
 
The priorities will be eviction, conviction and with an overarching consideration of asset recovery 
where cost effective and “profitable”. Prevention of loss will also be a major consideration. 
 
The use and feedback of 12,346 Experian data matched records with key trends in Council held 
data will develop a proactive approach and a legacy for future operations against tenancy cheats. 
6% of tenancies have been designated high risk with 109 classified as high quality matches. 
Additional training and database access within HRD will allow more detailed briefing packages 
and referrals to be made to CAFS. 
 
Two referrals have already been made to CAFS for further investigation.  A steep rise in referrals 
is expected moving forward.  
 
Four operational recommendations have been raised to more closely record squatting of council 
properties, to ensure all void properties are correctly categorised, to introduce safeguards to 
prevent repossession of council properties by squatters and to roll out JANUS concierge 
software within the south of the borough. 
 

Page 146



Agenda Item 16

Page 147

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 17

Page 149

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 PENSION VALUE AND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE
	Psolve Performance Report Dec 2011

	6 Alternative Investments
	Psolve Alternatives Investments Report

	7 Communities and Local Government Consultation on proposed amendments to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations contained in the draft LGPS (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2012
	Appendix 1- Capita Hartshead review

	8 London Borough Of Hammersmith & Fulham Audit Opinion Plan 2011/12
	2011-12 LBHF Audit Plan

	9 London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Pension Fund Audit Opinion Plan 2011-12
	2011-12 LbHF PF Audit Planl

	10 Certification of Claims and Returns- Annual Report 2010-11
	2010-11 LBHF Grants Report - final

	11 Audit Commission recommendations updates & Annual Governance Statement 2011 Action Plan
	12 Internal Audit Plan 2012-13
	13 RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
	14 Internal Audit Quarterly report for the period 1 October to 31 December 2011
	16 Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting
	17 ANNUAL BUSINESS PLAN FOR THE PENSION FUND

